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WHO WE ARE

Senior is an international, market-leading, engineering solutions
provider with 33" operating businesses in 14 countries.

Senior designs, manufactures and markets high-technology
components and systems for the principal original equipment
producers in the worldwide aerospace, defence, land vehicle
and power & energy markets.

Senior's vision is 1o be a trusted and collaborative high value-added
engineering and manufacturing company producing sustainable
growth in operating profit, cash flow and shareholder value.

The Group is split into two divisions, Aerospace and Flexonics,
servicing five key sectors.

To find out more vigit
www.seniorplc.com

OUR VALUES

SAFETY
We operate safely, protecting
people and the environment

INTEGRITY
We operate with integrity
and in an ethical manner

CUSTOMER FOCUS
We put the customer at the
heart of everything we do

RESPECT AND TRUST
We work together with mutual
respect and trust

ACCOUNTABILITY
We do what we say

EXCELLENCE
We continually strive 1o do better
in every aspect of our business

1) Inchurling Senior Flaxonics Blois wiicn was disposed
n February 2019




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING MARGIN®
+6% +4IJBPSl

£1.082.1m 8.9%

(2077 - £1 023 3l P01/ -8 1%

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX"™ PROFIT BEFORE TAX

+14% +17%

£83.0m £61.3m

12017 - £/3 1) 12007 £52 2my)

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE™

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

+12% 17%

16.08p 11.99p

12017 - 14 390 1237714 390

DIVIGEND PER SHARE RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED"™
+1% +110BPS

147 [ 13.0%

12017 - 6 G5p1 2017 - 11 9 sl

FREE CASH FLOW™ NET DEBT®™

-22%

£45.3m

{2017 - £58 3™}

Ad, ssied operaung protit ard adjusted pro‘it betore tax are
stated bafore £15 40y amaortsation of mtasgizle assels from
acguisitions (2017 F17 1m1, £2 dir charge for UK Guar anteed
M.y Pensons 12007 - Erili and £3 2m cosls assocated
aith the US class actor lawsuts (2017 - £mib Adjustea

crofIt Ledare Tax 14 amsa stated bafare loss on disposal of

En 207 £38me

FBITDA s defined as adjusted prof t be‘ere tax, and celore
nieresT depraciator, amart sation and peofit or loss or sale
Gf property pant ard cogapment 1T also cweisdes pratt or loss
belore ta< rem disposed Operations and s based on frozen
GAAF 1pre-IFRS 16! This meisure s Lsed for the puroose ot
assessing covenart complance and s reporied "o the Growp
Easriniva Commuttes:

o Argconchanon of adiusted nroht hetore tax o prof t
before tax s showsin Hete 9

120 Areconeilauon of adjusted garmings per share to oasic

carmings ser snare 15 shown 1 Noe 12

See Notes 32b and 32¢ for the agnvaton of free cash How

and of ret dect respectvey

1 Adusted operating margin s the ratio of adwsterd
operalrg profil to “averue A reconsil aton of aoustea
operaling profil 1o oparatag 370k 1s $70ann Mote &

13

E

£153.0m

12017 —£165 3mt

By See page 19 for the Jen mnon of return on cacital
emp oyed

Tre US Dol a- excharge rate apaled 1 the translation of
rayasge, profit and oo sh flow tems at avorage cates tor 2008
M35 51334201/ - 31 29 The JS Deodar axchange tate

app ied e tne balarce sheet a1 31 Decerrbar 2019 was
$12812017 -31 28}

Cautionary statement

The Annual Report & Accounts 2018 contains
certain forward-looking statements Such
staternents are made by the Directors in
good faith based on the informatior avalable
to them at the date of this Report and they
should pe treated with caution due 1o the
mherent uncertanties underlying any such
forward-looking statements
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OUR BUSINESS DIVISIONS

GROUP AT A GLANCE

The Group aims 1o create long-term
sustainable growth in shareholder
value through a cuiture of
empowerment of autonomous and
collaborative operations working
within an effective control framework.
Our vision is to be a trusted and
collaborative high value-added
engineering and manufacturing
company producing sustainable
growth in operating profit, cash fiow
and shareholder value.

14 33 8,180

COUNTRIESWE WORLDWIDE EMPLOYEES
OPERATE IN OPERATING
BUSINESSES™

OUR PEOPLE WORLDWIDE
1. NORTH AMERICA 2. UK AND EURDPE
43% 32%
3.ASIA 4. REST OF THE WORLD
21% 4%

READ MORE ABOUT QUR

PEOPLE AND CULTURE ON

PAGES

Arirchua ~g Senor - exonics Biois which vas dispazen n Fohr Liry 2019
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AEROSPACE

Serving both the corrmercial agrospace

and defence markets with a range of products
and systems for structures, Yuid conveyance,
and gas turbire cngines

GROUP REVENUE

/0%

REVENUE

£760.4m (+7%)“
ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£80.4m (+7%)”
ADJUSTED OPERATING MARGIN

10.6%

EMPLOYEES WORLDWIDE

5,350

READ MORE ABOUT AEROSPACE ON PAGE 30

FLEXONICS
Serving markets with products fer land

vehicle ermission control thermal management
and industrial process contros applications

GROUP REVENUE

30%

REVENUE

£322.9m (+10%])-
ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£26.1m (+33%/"
ADJUSTED OPERATING MARGIN
8.1%

EMPLOYEES WORI.DWIDE

2,790

12+ At constant curendcy

READ MORE ABOUT FLEXONICS ON PAGE 32




OUR GLOBAL MARKETS

OUR CUSTOMERS

/0%

AEROSPACE
DIVISION

%

1. CIVIL AIRCRAFT

52%

2. MILITARY/DEFENCE AEROSPACE

1%

3. SPACE & NON MILITARY HELICOPTER
0

2%

4. OTHER AEROSPACE DIVISION

2%

KEY AERQOSPACE CUSTOMERS INCLUDE:

Boeing
1%
Spirit

10%

Rolls Royce

10%

uTC

5%

Alrpus

3%

| ockheed Martir
3%

Safran

3%

GKN
2%

GE

2%
Bombardier
1%
MTU
1%
Ernbraer
1%

Larm Research
1%

Other Asrospace
Dhvision

17%

FLUID CONVEYANCE SYSTEMS

= High-pressure and ow-gressure
ergingered ductng systems
imetal and comrpos te!

* Ergineered control bellows.,
sgnsors and assemihes

GAS TURBINE ENGINES

= Procision-machimed and
fabricated engine components
{rotating and structural)

s Fluid syszems ducting
and cortrol products

_ STRUCTURES
* Precision-machined
arfrarme components

[

i

and assemblies I
e
1%
‘“ KEY FLEXONICS CUSTOMERS INCLUDE:
0‘ Cumminsg Faurecia LAND VEHICLE
0 0 EMISSION CONTROL
3 O O/ 4 /O ‘[ /O + Exhaust gas recyeling coolers
O Caterpillar Daimler * Fuel mixmg and distribation

FLEXONICS
DIVISION

1. TRUCK & OFF-BIGHWAY

11%

2. PASSENGER VEHICLES
5%

3. OIL & GAS

6%

4. POWER GENERATION
3%

5.0THER

5%

3%

Other Land Vehicle
4%

Renault

1%

Sauer Danfoss
1%

PS

1%

G
1%
Schlumberger
0
2%
Fmerscn
%
1%
Other Industnal
& Aerosnace

1%

systems
* Flexble couplings

L S e ]

INDUSTRIAL PROCESS

CONTROL

s Engineered expansion joints,
dampers and diverters

» Flexble hose assembues

and cortrol bellows

Fuel cells and nea* exchangers

* Pracision-machined
compenents

READ THE GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ONPAGESGTOB
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2018: A year delivering profitable growth

I1AN KING
CHAIRMAN

DIVIDEND PER SHARE GROWTH

6.8%

Increase N pad and proposed dvadena per share

SAFETY IMPROVEMENT

25%

Improveriert in lgst tre incident rate

EMPLOYEES

8,185

Erployess worlgwidle

| was pleased to assume the role of Chairman at
the AGM i April 2018 after the retirerment; of my
predecessor, Charles Berry. | would ke to thank
Charles, David, Bindi, the executive team and
the Board in helping me in my mducuon phase:

STRATEGY

The Group has a we'l-defined strategy with
avision to be a trusted and collaborative high
value-added engiresnng and manufactunng
company producing sustanable growth in
operating proht, casn Hlow and shareholder value
We aim 1o achieve this through a culture of
empowerrment of astonomous and callaborative
operations workirg within an effective control
framework, Senior's businesses operate within
115 five market sector framework: three in the
Aegrospace Division {Fluid Conveyance Systems,
Gas Turbine Engines and Structures) and

tw In the Flexonics Division {Land Vehicle
Cmission Control and Industnal Process
Conzrol), witk each market sector offer.ng
deliverable growth opportun:ties

The Group's strategy, whilst retaining flexibility
as markel condiions change, continues to
provide a solid foundation for Serior's luture
growth aspirations.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

In oy first year, | have had detailed engagement
with the executive team, wisited many of the
Senor aites and also had meetings with our
major shareholders. After visiting over 20 of

the major operations across the glabe, | was
heartened with the opanness, transparency,
objectivenass and accountabiity of the toams

4 SEMN ORPLC ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2014

This 1s a great cultural strength of Senior,
something our shargholders refy on which

came aut clearly and postvely dunng the
sharetiolder feedback meetings. [11s my intention
o conunue this type of stakeholder engagement
during 2019.

2018 PERFORMANCE

Sanior defivered revenue of £1,087 1m, up 5.7%
gver the prior year, ar / 8% up on a constant
currercy basis, dnver by sales growth across
botn Aerospace and Flexonics Divisions. Adyusted
profit before tax increased to £83.0m, up 13.5%,
or 15.3% on a constant currency basis, over the
prior year. Margins 'n the Aeraspace Divisior
ware stable as operational efficiencies and
learning curve improvements offset the impact
of volumea reduction on mature programmes and
product iIntroduction costs on néw programmeas.
Margin improvement in the Flexonics Dwision
refected the volume growih i the truck,

ol [-hiy tvay and upstream cik and gas marksts.
Adjusted earnings per share increased by 11.7%
10 16.08 pence.

Group cash generation continued 10 be healthy,
with frec cash flow ot £45.3m for the year
resulting In a strong financial position for the
Group at the end of 2018

DIVIDEND

Tne Board 1s proposing a final dividend ot

5.23 pence per share which would bring total
dividends, pard and proposed, for 2018 10 7.42
ponce per share. The increase of 68.8% over
2017 reflects the Group's encouraging prospects
Dividend cover is 2.2 imes adiusted earnings
per share.

GOVERNANCE

Tne Board, i~ recognising the importance

of setting the nght tone from the top of the
argamisation, undertook to implement &
goverance framewaork encompassing Group
Policies, the Code of Conduct and delegated
authorties approprate 1o the Group's strategy
and the Board's nsk appette. During 2018,
the Group rolled out a compulsory 2018 Code
of Conduct onhine training course across the
Group to all employees and traning on the
General Data Protechion Regulation was also
provided to all UK and relevant overseas
employses. The Grou alse cantimued with
Anti-Broery and Corruption Act traming.

The Board has continued to maintain oversight
of capital a’location, performance and risk
management. Thase have been covered on
pages 20 to 25 of this Annual Report.

Michelle Yorke, Director of Fisk and Cormnphance,
has joined the Group Executive Committee
reflecting the importance the company places
on managing rsk and creating a proactive
control envirgnment,

SAFETY

The health, well-be'ng and safety of cur
employess is of critical importance and s ore
of our core values The nclusion of behavioural
hased safety v our Zero Harmn program is hefping
us to reduce our injury rate In 2018 we
reduced the lost ume injury rate by 25%

and the 1otal recardable \nyury rate by 16%
These significant reductions mean we have
now achieved our 2020 target for lost time
nury rate. In 2019 we have plans to further
embed our beravioural salely progran and
have targeted further reductions in both lost
time and recordable injury rates.

SUSTAINABILITY

In Senior conducting our operations with integrity
in an ethical, sustanable and socially responsible
manner is seen as core to the ongeing success
of the Group In 2018 we met our 2020
Sustainabiiity targets for carban intensity,
waste and environmental certification (to 150
14000 We achieved a reduction of 8% in our
carbon nlensity (CC par £m revenus), as well
as a reduction of 7% 1 the total carbon emitted
{C0 el Cur manutactuning facilities recycled
92% of waste materials in 2018, Further detals
can be found on page 37 ot this report. In 2019
we will look to create new targets to take us
beyond our 2020 Sustainatiity program

THE BOARD

As previously announced, Charles Berry
retired from the Board at the conclusicn
of the Company's Anrual General Meeting
n Apnl 2018

Rapv Sharma was apponied to the Board with
effect from 1 January 2019. Rajiv has been the
Group Chief Executive ot Coats Group ple since
January 2017, having served as an executive
director since March 2015, During his career,
Rajrv has held senior rales in var ous comoan'es



A SPECIAL THANKYOU
T0 CHARLES BERRY

Vorad b
Chrario, <

ncluding Honeywell, GE ard Shell He holds

a degree in Mechanical Engineenng, as well
as an MBA ‘rom the University of Pittsburgh,
USA. Rapv's background ard experience in
Asian markets will complemert and further
strengthen the current Board memgoership and
prove invaluable to us 1in Senier's continued
development.

OUR PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Serior's continued strength is a reftection of
the quaiity of the people within the Group. At the
end of 2018, Sevor emploved 8,185 people
wth 43% located in North America, 32% in
UK and Eurape, 21% 0 Asia and 4% in the rest
of the world reflecting the global foatprint of the
Group. The Board and Exacutive strongly believe
that diversity and inclusion is vital to a realthy
bhusiness We are proud of our diverse work force
and nave set ambitious goals 1o improve
gender diversity in the Senior popuiation

On behalf of the Board, | would qke to thark all
of the Group's employees for their substantal
contribution ta Senior over the oast year.

Finally, | look forward to serving as Chairman
of your Board. Senior ple has a world class
management team led by Dawvid Squires and
Bindi Foyle, and | lock forward 1o supporting
therm m our pursuit of long-term value creation
for alt cur staketolders.

IAN KING
CHAIRMAN

OUR PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Senio-'s cortinued strengthis a reflection of the
quality of the people within the Group. In cur
autoriomous anc collaborative business model,
the capablities and skilis of our peoole drive
our saccess. Ve recognise the importance of
attracting the best talent into the business and
retaining and developing inanid.Jals to enable
them to do therr best work We have continued
1o run our Group development programmes
which include Operaticnal Excellence (see
Srazegic Objectives, pages 16 and 17}

and Leadership traming, enhancing tnese
orograrrmes by atihsirg virtual learning
techruques, collaboration seftware, and
husiness focused projects.

Cur culture s one of openness and transparency.
We value and are proud of our diverse worxforce:
we strongly believe that wide diversity and
inclusion is vital to a bealthy business. Everyone’s
opirion matters, and we gather feedback wa
employee engagemert surveys, openly shanng
the results, consulting with colleagues regarding
their feedback and developing approprate act-on
plans We hold ourselves accountable, we do
whal we say

In May 2018, we held a global Senior
Leadership Conference with the theme of
Collabgarating for Success. This proviced an
opportunity to showcase how callaboration

has enhanced our customer deivery. We heard
from customers, discussed new technologies,
operational excellence and talent development
and agreed actons to help deliver our strategy
ard meet stakeholders expectations |t was a
packed agenda and enabled over 100 business
leaders to share best practice, rew ideas and
leave with a shared vision for the future
Feedback coliected from the delegates
demonstrated that there is a renewed passon for
working together across business and country
boundaries, as well as a focus on collaborating
and working in partnership to provide solutiors
for the perefit of alt our stakeholders.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Senior delivered a solid
performance in 2018

DAVID SQUIRES
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE

REVENUE

£1,0682.1m

12007 £1,023 900

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£83.0m

(2007 - £72 1

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE"

16.08p

12017 4 38p)

(1 Acecoruiation of adjuste t carmings cor share o
basic carirgs g sharc 5 srown in Mlote 12
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OVERVIEW DF 2013 RESULTS
Senior dehverad profitable growth in 2018 and
gererated healthy free cash flow

Group revenue increased by 5.7% ta another
record level of £1,082.1m (2017 - £1,023 4m}
Excluding the adverse exchange rate impact of
£18.8m, Group revenue increased by £78.5m
(7 8% on a constant currency basis as sales
grew across botk Divisions Group order Intake
in 2018 was encouraging with a book to-bill of
1.1x The revenue increasce in the Acgrospace
Dwvision was driven by growth across ali key
market sectors, particularly large commercial
aerospace. Ingreased revenue in the Flexonics
Division was driven by higher revenue from the
ruck, off-highwway and nower & energy markets,
particularly i upstrear ol & gas and power
generation markets

We measure the Group on an adjusted basis
wihirh evelides Gronn items that do nat impact,
the operating performance {see Note 9}
Referances below therefore focus on these
adjusted measures. Adjusted operating profit
increased by £9.0m {10.9%) to £91.6m (2017
- £82 6mi, after charging research and
develnpment expenditure of £29.7m, an
ncrease of £4 1m (16.0%) over the prior year
Excluding the adverse exchange rate impact
of £1.5m, adjusted operatrg proht increased
by 12 9% on a constant currency bagis The
Group's adjusted operating margin increased
by 40 basis paints, 16 8.5% for the full year
Rarging :n the Aerospace Division were stable
as operational eiciencies and learning curve
impravements offset the 'mpact of volume
reductions on mature programmes and product
introduction costs on newy programmes
Margin improvement in the Flexonics Division
reflected the volume growth In the truck,

atf highway and upstream ol & gas markets.

Adjusted profit before tax increased to £83.0m
{2017 - £73.9m), up 13.5%, or 15.3% on a
constant currency basis. Adusted earnings
per share ncreased by 11.7% to 16 08 pence
{2017 ~ 14.39 pencel.

Renorted operating profit was £6%.9m (2017
£65 5mi ard reported profit before tax was

61 3m 2017 - £52 ?m} Basic earn.ngs per

shargwas 11.99 pence (7017 -~ 14 39 pence),

with the Group benefiting in the prior year from
a £16.0m exceptional nor -cash 1ax credi;
related to US tax refarm

The Group cortinues to generate healthy cash
flows and delivered free cash inflow of £45 3m
12017 — £58 3m) after gross mvestment in.
capital expenditure of £58.3m representing 1 4x
depreciaton) As previously guded, working
capital as a percentage of sales remained under
the target cahng of 16%, and was 14 44 at
the end of 201812017 - 13 4%). The year over
year Increase was 10 support new product
Iintroductions. The level of net debt at the

end of December 2618 reduced 0 £153.0m
(December 2017 - £155.3m}. This decrease
was principally due to free cash inf.ow of

£45 3m, offset by £29.6m dividend paymen:s,
£7 2m purchase of shares by the employee
benefit trust and adverse currency movements
ot £8.7m. The ratio of net deobt to EBITDA at
371 Dooember 2012 was 11y (31 Neoremher
2017 -1 3x). Return on capital employed
(ROCE} increased by 110 bas's points to

13 0% (2017 - 11.9%),

The Board is proposing a final dividend of

5 23 pence per share This would bring total
dividends, paid and proposed for 2018 to 7.42
pence per share, representing an increase of
G 8% over the prior year,

DELIVERY OF GROUP STRATEGY

From a strategic perspective, the Group
contrmues to benefit from retairing a balance
between Aerospace and Flexonics, drawing
on shared technology and intellectual property.
We are investing in new technology and
product developrrents that will underpin future
growth n hath segments of our business

We undertake regular reviews of the Group's
partfolic as we seek ta morease shareholder
value by leveraging our current operations,
and where appropnate, acquisiners, disposals
or mergers of operations will be considered 1o
optinise returns on capital

During 2018, the Group made good prograss
Jgams: our six strategic priorties which weare
dentified as key elernents of our husiness
model, urderpinning the continued delvery
of sharehalder vaue



STRATEGIC PRICRITIES

ENHANCE SENIOR'S
01 AUTONOMOUS AND
COLLABORATIVE BUSINESS

04
05
06

READ MORE ABOUT OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
ON PAGE 14

FOCUS ON GROWTH

INTRODUCE A HIGH
PERFORMANCE
OPERATING SYSTEM

COMPETITIVE COST COUNTRY
STRATEGY

CONSIDERED AND EFFECTIVE
CAPITAL DEPLOYMENT

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

Further details including our plans for 2019

are noted on pages 14 to 17 of the Anrual
Report & Accounts 2018 However, some of
the 2018 huigh.aghts ‘nclude those set out below.

Under our Focus on Growth strategic pricrity
we Pave made good progress on technology
projects that will lead to future growth in the
medium and long term:

= We have commenced invastrent in our
Advanced Additve Manufacturirg Centre
in Burbank, Cahforria and secdred a launch
customer for first parts.

Frorm a strategic perspective, the Group continues 1o
penefit from retaining a balance between Aerospace
and Flexonics, dravwing on shared technology and

intellectual property.

¢« \We have been developing our thermat
management capabiiity to cool battery packs
for electric vehicles, First prototype orders
have been receved and initial delivenes rmade.

Qur novel RT20°V process for designing and
manufacturing lightweight low pressure
ducts has been oroven and the firs:
developmeant and production cortract
incorporating RT21 ™ parts has peer secured.

In 2018 we continued with the deployment of
the Senior Operating System across the pusiness
with a focus on driving efficiencies and learning
curve improvements through rollout of the best
in class processes and lean manufactunng.

ir February 2019, the Group seold its French
Flaxonics land vehicle business, Senior
Flexonics Blois {"Biais™). Blois' mair end
market was Eurcpean passenger vehicles and
tre sale enabies us to have greater focus on
our core activities

We will continue to “prune 1o grow” where
it rakes sense 1o do so while maintaining a
disciplinred aporoach to additions to our portfolio.

MARKET CONDITICNS

Cur Aerospace end markets remain healthy.
We are watchmg with care for any geopolitical
impact from the ongoeing trade discussions,
which could impact our Flexonics markets

In partcular,

The outlook for the civil commercial aerosgace
sector continues 1o be strorg with goed visibility
due to tre production ramg-up of new aircraft
programimes, |IATA reported arr traffic growth
of 8.5% in 2018 and dernand for new aircraft
remains robust wath Boeing, Airbus and
independent forecasters predicting air traffic to
grow n excess of 4% per annum over the next
20 years Senior has good shipset content on
all key commercial aircraft platforms. 2078 was
a cross-over year with a significant norease

in production of newer aircraft platforms and

a similar significant decrease in production of
mature arcraft platforms. Production of the 737
MAX and A320neo, as well as the 787 and
A350 ramped up dur'ng 2018; however, as
anticipated, oroductior of the classic 737,
A320, A330 as well as the 777, 747 and A380
rarrpad-down in the year. [he A330neo

antered into service in Novermber 2018 and
Aurbus del vered three AZ30neos in 2018,
The 777X s scheduled to enter service in 2020,

In the regional and busiress jet market, 2018
saw significant momentJm with Embraer’s
E2-Jet entering into service in April and
Bombardier's Global 7500 securing US
certification and entering into service at the
end of 2018, The A220 continues to ramp-up
delivenes. The Group expects to benehit from
the Mitsubishi Regional Jet IMBJ), which s
scheduted 10 enter into service in 2020 In
the defence sector, market growth is being
supported by the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter,
CH-53K King Staliion helicoper and T-X tramer
programmes which are expected to grow
significantly over the long term, while the
near-term outlook for the UH-60 Black Hawk
hel'copter programme has beer reaffirmed
in the Budget Act of 2018

Our Flexonics Division end marke:s are

less certan and somewhat dependent on
geopofitical factors such as the ongoing trade
discussiors between the US ang Chira.
Market production of North Amencan heawvy-
duty trucks mcreased 26.9% in Z018. Industry
analysts are currently forecastung a low level

of production growth in this market in 2019,
with growth in the first hatt of the year part'y
offset by a decrease n the second half of the
year. In the upstream ol and gas market, we
saw improved drilling activity in the US Permian
Basin in 2018, however, cutput may be restricted
in the first half of 2019 aue to infrastructure
constraints. These constraints are currently
expected to alleviate in the second nalf of 2018,
Downstream oil and gas activity remains stable.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Looking further ahead, the Group is well-positioned,
financially robust and expects to continue 10 make

Qood Progress.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

To erable us to meet Ingcreasing custorner
demand and to ensure we reman competiive
and profitable, the Group continues to mvest
In capacity for both our Aerospace and
Hexonics businesses.

Construction of our new Aergspace factory
In Malaysia is at an advanced stage This
investment was a direct consequence of
winning new comméreial aerospace business
ann the new faciiity 1s anticipated to be
operational during the second half of 2019.

To support upcoming planned growth,
constructior: has commencea on the
expansion of the Aerospace Fluid Systems
Metal Bellows facility in Massachusetts.
This expansion s ant.oipated 10 complete
in the first half of 2020

In 2020, we will also be increasing the
fotprint of our Aerospace Fluds Systems
BWwWT faciity in the UK from 112,000 5q leet
o 140,000 sq. feet, as a direct conseguence
of winning new civil aerospace business

Our plans to relocate our Flexores Crumin
operatior in South Wales to a new dedicated
high tech, design and development centre
are continuing. YWe anticipato construction

to commence in the second half of 2013

In 2018, we continued to balance angamng cost

reduction and learning curve improvements on

nowear programmes, with the cost of “urther new
product introductions and ndustrialisation.

We will see 3 similar patterr 10 2019 based

on the work we have already won As we have

consistently outhned, any new work packages we
take on mest our return on capital targets and are
i line with our capital deployment strategy

8 SEMNIOR PLC ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2018

QUTLOOK

2019 trading has started in ine with
expectations. Qverall, our visibility in the
Aerospace Division remains good and our
future prospects renam strong.

Moarket conditions in our Flexonics Division
are less certain After adjusting “or the sale of
Biois, we expect a shght decling in Flexonics
top Ine wrich 1s potentially due to softer
demand 1n some of our industrial markets
However, we currently expect margin
prograssion in this Division in 2019 to offset
the sales decline.

The Board anticipates that, even with changeable
geopolitical conditions, 2019 will be another year
of impravement in pe-farmance for the Group
Looking further anead, the Group 's well-
positioned, financially robust and expects

o contnue 1o make good progress.

DAVID SOUIRES
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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High value-added engineering and
manufacturing solutions provider with a solid
platform for sustainable growth in operating

profit, cash flow and shareholder value.

A DIFFERENTIATED
BUSINESS MODEL

* Design, manufacture and
market high-technology
components and systems for
principal original equipment
manufacturers (QEMs}

Spacialists in providing
engineering solutions to
customers for fluid systems
and structural products
and systems

Integrated global footprint
operating in the aerospace,
defence, land vehicle and
power & energy markets

* Autonomous and cotfaborative
culture enables entrepreneurial
approach within a strong
control framework

Strong and enduring
relationships with key
customers built on technical
innovation and excellent
operational performance

LEADING POSITIONS IN
ATTRACTIVE MARKETS

Commercial aerospace

- Long-term growth trends
from increasing air traffic
driving need for new and
replacement aircraft

US military aerospace

- Defence remains a priority
for the US, key positions on
major funded programmes

Land vehicle

—Demand driven by
tightening global emission
control regutations for
truck, off-highway and
passenger vehicles

Power & Energy
—Market leader of complex
fluid systems and products

READ MORE ON
PAGES 12 AND 13

STRATEGIC PRICRITIES

Focus on growth through
innovation and operational

Implement and ermbed high
performance operating
system across the Group
to optimise profitability
and returns on capital

excellence for our customers

+ Established global
competitive cost
country strategy

= Continuously invest in the
best leadership talent

READ MORE ON
PAGES 10 AND 11

LONG-TERM GROWTH
AND VALUE CREATION

+ Primary strategic objective to
create long-term sustainable
growth in stakeholder vatue

Considered and effective
capital deployment to
maximise returns

Financial objective to
maintair an averall return
on capital employed (ROCE)
in excess of the Group’s cost
of capital

Robust financial platform
and cash-generative nature

» Actively manage the portfolio;

disciplined acquisition and
“prune to grow” strategy

READ MORE ON
PAGES 147017

READ MORE ON
PABGES 16 AND 17

e
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Senior designs, manufactures and markets
high-technology components and systems
for the principal original equipment producers
in the worldwide aerospace, defence,

land vehicle and power & energy markets.
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AEROSPACE KEY MARKETS

Civil Aircraft (52% of Group)

Senor continues to benefit from strong dermand
in tne civil arrcraft sector due to the production
rarrp-up of new aircraft programmes

Large Commerciat Aircraft (45% of Group}
At current build rates, Boeing and Airbus order
books represent over eight years' production.
Sonior maintains a good shipsset content on all
the koy large commaercial aircraft platforms and
will continue to benefit from expected increases
n bulld rates of al' the key platforms including
the new onging versions of the lead ng
narrow bodhied arcralt and the wide-bodied
777X and A330neo, as well as the A350.

The charts oppasite illustrate the growth in
Senior's shipset values over the past 10 years
and the estimated annua production volumes
of the major platforms

Forecast annual growe:h in global passenger arr
traffic 1s a sigmificant driver of demand for new
commercial aircraft, and hence for many of
Senior’s core aerospace producis. Boeing and
Aurpus are predicting arr traffic 1o grow in excess
of 4% per annum over the next 20 years.

Regional and Business Jets {7% of Group)
Sen.or has significantly tigher shioset content
on new regiona. jel platforms such as the
A220 {previously known as the CSenes),
Mitsubishi MRJ and Ermbraer EZ2-Jet than
legacy regional jets. Production of the AZZ0
and the BEZ-Jel, which entered into service in
April 2018, continues to ramp-up, whilst the
MRJ 1s anticipated to enter into service In
2020, Senior also has healthy shipset content
on Bombaraier's Global 7500 business |et
which entered into service In December 2018
Therefore, the Group's regionat and business
Jet market revenue s expected to benefit .n
the medium term

Military Aerospace {11% of Group}
European and US defence budgets are
growing as a result of increased geopolitical
tensiors and Senior's revenue from the
military and dofence sector is expected to
benefit from the F-35 Joint Stnke Fighter,
CH-53k and 1-X trainer, which 1s scheduled
to ramp up signifcantly aver the long term.
Production of the Black Hawk helicopter

15 expected to decrease over the short

to mediumn term.



GLOBAL EMISSIONS STANDARDS
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FLEXONICS KEY MARKETS

Land Vehicles {16% of Group)

The ircreasingly stningent glonal regurements
for reduced carbon emissions nfluerces the
demand for the majonty o the Group's oroducts
in the land vehicles market which arises in the
form of reduction targets for emissions from cars,
trucks and off--highway vehucles and through
increased fuel efficiency from therr engines

Tre chart apposite highlights the deployment

of emissions standards n major geographies

QOur Flexonics Division end markes are

lass certain and somewhat deperdent on
geopolitical factors such as the ongoing trade
discussions between the US and China.

In the truck and off-highway sector {11% of
Group), Senior's revenue arises predominar:ly
from North America, where tne heavy-duty
truck and oft highway markets have grown in
2018 Production of North Amercan heavy-duty
trucks 1s antcipated to improve in the meadium
to longer term as demand for replacerment
capaciy 1s driven by regulatory changes.

in the passenger car sector (5% of

Group), Senior’s revenue currently arises
predominantly from European markets.
However, the Group is expected to benefit
from new programme launches in Incia
and China over the medium term.

In the medium to longer term, as a result of
growth in GDP and as ermissiors regulations
continue to tighten, demand for the Group's
produJcts in the land vehicle sectors s anticipated
1o increase, particularly in geographies outside of
Nartiy America and Eurcpe. Senior is developing
solutions for the next generation of more
efficient internal combustion engines, as

well as electrifled land vehicle applications.

Power and Energy {14% of Group)

Senior designs and manufactures products for
glabal industrial process cortrol markets including
petrochemical and powser genaration markets,
to maet an increasingly stringent regulatory
environment in the upstream oil and gas
market, we saw improved driling activity in the
LS Permian Basin in 2018, howaver, output may
be restricted In the first half of 2019 due

1o infrastructure constrants. These constraints
are currently expected to alleviate in the second
half of 2019. Downstream ol and gas activity
remains stable.,

Over the longer term, projected Increases

in global energy usage, tightening emission

control regulations and emerging changes n
power generat'on wili drive increased global
demand far the Group’'s industnal products

n



OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Qur vision is to be a trusted and

collaborative high value-added engineering
and manufacturing company producing
sustainable growth in operating profit,

cash flow and shareholder vaiue.

WHATWE DO

OUR CORE VALUES
THE "SENIOR WAY"

OUR STRENGTHS

Senior designs, manufactures
and markets highly
engineered, technology rich
components and systems for
principal original equipment
producers in the worldwide
aerospace, defence, land
vehicle and power & energy
markets.

The Group has a global
footprint with 33" operating
husinesses located in 14
countries servicing blue-chip
customers.

READ MORE ABOUT OUR OPERATIONAL REVIEW

FOR AEROSPACE
PAGE 30

FOR FLEXONICS
PAGE 32

i Inziwamg Secw bewenes Blos v enwas disposed in Febraary 2019
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SAFETY
\We operate safely, protecting people
and the environment.

INTEGRITY
We operate wth integrity
and n an ethical manner.

CUSTOMER FOCUS
We put the customer at the heart
of everything we do.

RESPECT AND TRUST
We work together with mutual respect
and trust,

ACCOUNTABILITY

We do what we say

EXCELLENCE
We continually strive to do better
In every aspect of our business

ORGANISATION

» A culture of autcnomous collaboration

+ Active sharing of best practices

* Complementary capabiities

* Leverage common customer and
suppler relatignships

FINANCIAL

+ [inancial strength supporting
investmeant and innovation *or
customer benefit

GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

+ 33" operating husircsses in
14 countries covenng five
market sectors

« Ar integrated global footorint
providing custemers will tharkel
proximity and cost competitiveness

PEQPLE AND CULTURE

» Irtegnty and high ethical standards
« Maintaining a safe and healthy
workplace

Empowerment of local managemert,
within a weli-defined control
framework

Ongoing investment in personal
ard professional development at

all levels throughout the busincss

INNOVATION

* Focusing or technology product and
process iNRoVaton 10 better serve
our customers and cnhance our
business model



p——

READ MORE ABOUT QUR PEOPLE ON PAGE S

HOWWE DD IT

AUTONOMOUS AND COLLABORATIVE
BUSINESS MODEL

Senior's business model 15 one of empowering
and holding accountable our businesses,
operating within a clearly defined divisional
structure, to develop and delver business
plans in ling with overail Group strategy
Increasing collaboration amongst busingsses
In the Growp is a priority to ensure economies
of scale are realised whilst maintaining the
autonomous business structure. Business
leaders throughout Senior are actively
embracing collaboration activities with
priorities set at Groug level in consultatior
with the businesses.

FOCUS ON GROWTH

Senior's end markets grow naturally at arcund
4% through the cycle. We beleve it is possible
to outgrow our end markets and we seek

to do that both organically and through
acquis.tion by-

+ Growirg market share, particularly with
key customers,

* Focusing onnnovation,

+ Geggraphical expansion; and

+ Seexing out and exploiting aajacent
oppertunities arganically and through
acguisition.

HIGH PERFORMANCE

OPERATING SYSTEM

Serioris implementing a high performance
operating system, drawing on the many
excellent practices from across the Group.
The key elerments include:

» The Senior Operating System: an operational
toolkit Incorporatmg best practice processes
such as fean and continuous Improvemen:
techriques, supplier managerment, new
product introduction, 5/65 rethodology;
factory visual managernent systems; nsk
and financial management, and

A strengithanod busingss rovievy

process utlising a balanced scorecard
ncorporazing KPls with focus on
performance, growth, operational
excellence and talent development

COMPETITIVE COST COUNTRY STRATEGY
Enhance Senior's global fooipnint to ensure
our businesses stay cormpetitive at a capability
and cost level, with key investments in
Thailand, Malaysia, China, India, Mex'co and
the Czech Repuablic to help ensure we meet
our customers’ cost and price challenges
whilst protecting margins. We are actively
mowving products and establishing Increasingly
sophisticated capabiities in these competitive
cost economigs which frees up capacity in
our European and North American factores,
which 1s reeded o satisfy increasing levels

of demand

CONSIDERED AND EFFECTIVE
CAPITAL DEPLOYMENT

Senior understands the importance of
considered and effective capital deployment
in the interest of maximising the creation of
shareholder value All significant investments
undertaker by Serior are assessed using a
rigorous investment appraisa’ process and are
supported by & business case. The Group has
a francial objective o maintain an overall
return on capital employed in excess of the
Group's cost of capital and to target a pre-tax
return in excess of 15%.

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

Senior has a skilled workforce and some
highly expernienced entrepreneurial business
leaders. YWe are bringing renewed focus
1o further developing leadership talent and
upgrading functional capability across the
Group. We are ensuring robust succession
plans are in place across our businesses.
We are working with capable external
partners to deliver tallored tranmg and
develcpment programmes for Senior's
top talent.

READ MORE ABOUT QUR STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES ON PAGES 14TD 17

LONG-TERM
SUSTAINABLE VALUE

CREATE VALUE FOR ALL OUR
STAKEHOLDERS THROUGH OUR
BUSINESS MODEL

SHAREHOLDERS

Genevrating va'ue through our sustamable
growth in operating profit, cash flow and
snareholder value

CUSTOMERS

Continuously dehvenng competinve prodacts
and solutions to custormers with outstanding
qualty ard delivery perfornance

QUR PEQPLE

Inspiring entreprensur.al and operational
leadership drects a highly motivated and
skilled workforce

OUR COMMUNITIES

Actively participating and helping to improve
the guality of fe n cur local communities.
Minmimising our environmental impact through
peer leading sustainable programmes

SENIOR PLE ANNUAL RFPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015 13



STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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In 2015, the following six strategic priorities were identified
as key elements of our business modei, which will drive

the creation of stakeholder value. They will receive specific
attention and focus over the coming years.

WHAT WE'VE DONE SINCE 2015

OUR PLANS FOR 2019

01

ENHANCE SENIOR'S
AUTONOMOUS AND
COLLABORATIVE
BUSINESS MODEL

FOCUS ON GROWTH

INTRODUCE A HIGH
PERFORMANCE
OPERATING SYSTEM

.

.

-

»

Imolemented engagement guidelines to help
optimise the transfer of work 10 cost competitive
iocalions and to facilitate h gher level solutions

to meet customer needs;

Customer Relationship Managers appointed for
key customers,

Updated managemant incentive schemes

to encourage greater collaboration all senior
managers across the Company row have part

of thew incentive lied to Group performance

as well 2s thair business L,

Mutti-site collaboration etforts have led to important
new husmess awards;

Rolied out an online Group-wide interactive
communication tool;

Launched Senior Health & Safety Essential
Behavioural Standard across the Group; and
Brought togethar Ihree Aerospace businesses in
Pacific Northwest unde~ one leadersfup team and
brought together Southern California Aerospace
Structures businesses under one leadership tsam.

Customer Relationship Manageors appointed tor key
Custorners;

Established a Groun-wide technoiogy council 1o
focus on advanced engingenng and manufacturag
methods such as additive manufacturing;
Continued o win more new business and launched
new production programmes in Ching, India,
Malays1a and Thailand,

Opened & Thermaplasic Composites Deveiopment
Certre i the UK,

Secured first development contracts for electne
vehicle applications,

Approved Investment in our Advancea Addive
Manufacturing Centre to be set up in Burbank,

CA: and

Cormmmenced construction of new Aerospace
facilihes in Malaysia and in Massachusetts, USA.

Implemented a new and more intensive business
review process, updated the Group's reporting
systems to Incorporate bestin class real- ume digiial
dashboard, and established Group wide balanced
scorecard wih KPI's,

Established a procurement council to leverage our
global spend;

Launched the Senior Operating System in
Aerospace Structures and Aerospace Fluid Systems;
Held targeted performance improvement
workshops focused on margin expansion;
Delvered a more comprehensive operational
excellence leadersnip development programme, and
Appainted Director of Technology for Aerospace
Structures o implement advanced technologlos

n gur machiming and assenbly cperations

.

.

.

Contnug to focus front end
coilaboration cfforts on
multi-site pusIness
opportunities;

Delwar supply chain savings
fram Procurement Council
collaboration; and

Accelerate collaboration between
Asian and North Amaerican
businesses 0 achieve ncreased
market share

Commence build of a new
hugh teck facibity in Crumiin,
South Wales, focused on
design, development, wGst
and quatification of new
Flexorics products;

Establish our Advanced Additive
Manufacturing Centre ir
Burbank, CA;

Successfuly commence
operations at new Aeraspace
facility n Malaysig; and
Complete expansion of
Nerospace faciity in
Massachusatts, USA

Continue to embed the Senior
Operating System across the
Group; and

Urdertake targeted performance
workshops in businesses with
biggest improvement
opoortunities,



STRATEGY IN ACTION

»

Since 2015, Senior Flexomcs Crumin has been working with a large
car manufacturer on a hea: exchanger apnlication for emissions
reduction on their diesel engire. This was a technically chalieng'ng
development due 1o the specific requiremenis of the customer.
Sen o Bexonics Crumilie collasorated closely with Serior

Flexon-cs New Delhi to develop a technically advanced procuct

and robust business plan, capable of successfully delivering this
high volume programme

Sen'or was successfully awarded seral production of this part out
of the Semor Flexonics New Delhi manufactunng site and both sites
have been collaborating 1o develop the manufacturing process ready
‘or seres productior 1n late 2019,

This joint development and collaboration has brought significant
learnings, which will cnable Senior to deliver even greater
successes in the future

2018 was a year of manufacturing technology advancemaent

as Senior commencad investment in our Advanced Additive
Manufacturing Centre (AAMC! located in Burbank, CA

As Senior's OEM customers are driving for everimproving wesght,
performance and cost targets, the AAMC 15 a collaberative
manufacturirg capabilty to help deliver solutions for our customers.
AAMC is focused on demarding geometries that histarnically
required either complex castings, or machining to achieve.

Sen‘or anticipates the AAMC will help to bring about lower

costs, hghter weights and higher perfermance of addrtively
manufactured compeonents.

Across the Senor Group, teams have been working dilgently at
implementing the Senior Operating Systen Lean Toolkit

In one business, a Kaizen [continuous improvemnent) team created &
value stream map that detailea the manufactunng orocess for a key
product family From this map, a rew floor layout was designed that
incorporatad four machires and additional deburning ard inspection
operations. The new ceil allows one operator 1o run production in
one-piece flow fashion 1o complete a full assembly

Utilising a Standardised Work nlaybook to ensure that the new cell
runs properly, the team has managed to reduce work-in-orocess
inventory by more than 75% and improved productivity by 126%
Although this was a great achievement, the team 1s not done yet, as
shey will continue to Improve ergonomics in the cell to help maintan
our operators’ health and safety.

SENIOR PLC ANNUAL REPCRT & ACCOUNTS 2018
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES CONTINUED

WHAT WE'VE DONE SINCE 2015

OUR PLANS FOR 2019

COMPETITIVECOST
COUNTRY STRATEGY

CONSIDERED AND EFFECTIVE
CAPITAL DEPLOYMENT

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

16 SEMICR PLT ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 201

Opened new arframe structures facihty
in Thaliand 'n June 20186;

Expanded in the Czech Republic by
doubling manufactuning capacity;
Ramped-up new Aerospace
programmes in Thalana and Malaysia;
« Ramped-up cocler and common rail
production at our facilities inIndia

and Mexico,

Transferred Aerospace Fluid Systerms
work packages to Aerospace Mexico,
Continued t© win More new DUSINEsSs In
Ching, India, Malaysia and Thalland, and
Commenced constrJction of new
Aerospace faciity in Malaysia

.

-

-

.

Disposed of loss making small
commodity composites business
based in Wichita,

Sold non-core Agrospace BWT flkeston
UK site,

In Fabruary 2019, sold Frencn Flexonics
nori-core passenger vehicle parts
business, Senior Flexonics Blots;
Invested £1RArm N nrganic canita!
experditure over the last three years

10 support growth programmes;

Full vear dradend per share (iotal paid
and proposed! increased by 19.7% over
last three years, and

Working caprital reduced from 15.1%

of revenue at the end of 2015 to

14 4% of revenue at the end of 2018

.

.

Jane Johnston joined the Sanor
Executive team in May 2016 as Group
HR Directar, responsible for HR strateay
across the Group

Continued to work with external
partners such as Ashridge, to deliver
advanced leadership developrment for
our top talent from arourd the worid,
Improved succassion planning process
ncluding Improving gender diversity in
succession plans for senier leadership
tear, and

Rolled out Pertormance Development
Review process 1o leadershio teams
across the Group

+ Successfuly comnience operations at
naw Aerospace facl ty in Malaysia; and

* Successfully launch new programmes
:n Thaland, Malaysia, india and China

+ Contirue 10 invest In organic capital
expenditure to support future growth;
Continue to pay 8 progressive dividend
-oflacting earnings per share and

free cash fiow generation over the
medium term,

Continue to review performancs

of existing portfolio aganst returns
o capital targets and take action

as required; and

Imvest n acquisitions that meet Heat
Map crteria and ROCE targets.

Ongoing rollout of our Global
Performance Managament System;
Initating the implementaton of a
Global Talent Acquisition System
ard Learning Management System
to attract and develop talent, and
Conunue to focus on diversity and
nelusion across the business.

.



STRATEGY IN ACTION

* Sen'or has neen successful at winning new contracts as a direct
result of staying competitive at a capability and cost level due to 1ts
competitive cost country iocations;

» Senor was awarged a five-year cortract frore Spirt AeraSysterns to

provide machine details and subassemblies on Boeing commieraial

aerospace programmes Senior's capabilities i Malaysia provided
the best overall value propesition to the customer cn a package of
medium to complex mach ned parts and subassemblies,

Senior was also awarded a Detail Part Pariner contract by Arrbus

1o provide medium to complex machine detaills and sub-assemblies

10 Arbus and its partner company STELIA Aercspace, on multiple

programmes including A320, A330 and ATR Cruciai to the award

was Senior's abilily to dual source within the Group as the work

will be performed at both Senior's world-class cost-competitive

Saouth East Asian faciliies in Malaysia and Thailand

Senior held a ground-breaking ceremany for its new Aerospace
manufacturing facility near Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia in March 2018,
The new faciity will complement Senior Aerospace UPFCA's
existing facility.

On completion, tis new 180,000 sg feeot facity wilt house highly
skilled engineering and technical employces, boast state-of-the-art
equipment and vall have comprehensive special process

and non-destructive testing capabilities.

The new facility will provide increased options for Senior
Aearospace’s custorners due to the breadth of the new

capabylines and provide capacity to support future growth

The establishment o this world class facility supports Senior's
strategy to enhance its cost competitive country footprint and will
complertent its customer growth expectations within the region.

Im 2018, Senior delivered an Operational Excellence Programme

over a penod of nine months,

The programmie included the following key elements:

— Wehinars ard action learning sets;

- Business focused Change Management Projects;

- Five day face to face workshog, including a ane day site visit
to a Senior operation to embed learning by putting into practice
the tools and technigues learnt, and provide solutions to real
operational 1ssues for the business concerned,

Each individual completed an Operational Excellence project

which resuhed in significant, measurable business iImprovements

and savings for their operating businesses

SEMIOR P T ANMUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2018
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STRATFCIC BEPCRT

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group highlights five financial and two
non-financial metrics to measure progress
in implementing its strategy.

The Group's financial obyoctives are as follows

1o achieve organ ¢ reverue growth (at

conslant exchange rates) in excess of the

rate of inflation;

ta increase the Group's return on revenue

margin each year;

10 increase adjusted earrings per share

on ar annual basis by move than tho rate

of inflation;

* 1t generate sufficient cash to erable the
Group to fund future growth and 1o feilow
a progressive dividend policy; and

* 10 mairtain an overall return on capral

empicyed In excess of the Group’s cost

of capital and to target a pre-tax return in

excess of 15%.

.

These financial ohjectives are supported by two
nen financial objectives.

s to reduce the Lost Time Injury Rale (e 100
employees) to 0.5 by 2020, and

* toreduce the Group's cnergy irtensity
(tonnes CO; per £m revenuel to 77 by 2020.

The key performance indicators (KPls) are
detarmined as follows

Orgaric revenue growlh 1s the rate of growth

af Group revenug, at canstant exchange

rates, excuding the elfect of acquisitions

and discontinued activities.

Return on revenue margin s the Group’s

adjusted operating profit divided by revenue

Adjusted operating profitis defined in

Note 9.

Adjusted sarrings per share 1s definedin

Note 12

* Net cash from operating activitias is avalabie
from the Conscidated Cash Flow Statement.

« Return on capital employed 1s the Group's

adjusted operating profit divided by the

average of the capital employed at the start

and end of the perod, capital employed

being tota' equity plus net dobt (defined

in Note 32c)
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* CO, emissions/Em revenue 1s an esumate

of the Group’s carbon dwxide emissions In
tonnes divided by the Group's revenua in

£ millions

Lost tme njury frequency rate 1s the number
of OSHA (or equivalert) recordable mjury and
lness cases mvolving days away from work
per 100 cmployees.

The Group collects its environmental data n
accordance with the guidelines specified by the
Global Reporting Inivative (GRI). to the extert
that this 1s currently practicable, and has aoplied
the greenhouse gas corversion factors
contained within the Energy Agency and US
EPA conversion factors 2018. The Group has
used the firancial control approach to define its
organisational boundary and reports data from
its wholly-owned or majenty-owned operations,
Billed or metered sources represent the basis of
the majonty of our greerhouse gas ermissions.

In 2018 all tive finarcial targets were met
Good progress was made towards the two
non-financial objectives and the Group was
pleased 10 see both CO, emissions and Lost
Time frjury Rates decrease in 2018, The Group
achieved its 2020 safety ana energy goals in
2018, two years earlier than targeted We are
now looking at targets extending past the
2020 intative. Further deiails of the Group's
performance record in this regard, Including its
long term performance trends, are shown on
pages 34 1o 37

A summary of the year-on-year movements in
these KPls and the main drivers of the changes
are des¢ribed opposite.

DRGANIC REVENUE GROWTH
{Em}

+7.8%

T

17 1,004

» T

The Group delivered strong organic revenue
growth due to positive contribution from both
Divisions. In Agrospace, growth was primarily
driven by increased bulld rates on large
comrnercial aircraft programmes. Increased
revenue in Flexonics was driven by growth
from truck and off-highway and upstream cil
and gas markets partly offset by lower revenue
from certain passenger cars and light

vehicles markets.

RETURN DN REVENUE MARGIN
(%)

+40bps

186
17 g1

» I

The improvernent in the Group's return

on revenue margin 10 8.5% was primarily
attnbutable to improved operational efficiency
and the positive impact of increases in revenue
i the Flexonics Division,

93



ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER 1\
SHARE {p)

+17 .7%

16 14.37

17 14.39

13 16.08

The Group's adjusted profit befora tax idefined
n Note 9} improved by 13 5%, partly offset

by an increase in the adjusted tax rate {defined
on page 27} from 17.5% to 19.0% and resulted
in an 11.7% improvernent in adjusted earnings
per share.

CARBON DIOXIDE EMISSIONS
{TONNES/Em REVENUE)

8% DECREASE

16 81.3
17 65.0

» I

The Group has achieved a 8% reduction
in carbon dioxide emissions (CO e} per
£m revenue. This has been achieved with
a combimation of energy efficiency gains
and the reduction in emission factors for
electrical {scope 2} emissiong in some of
our operational regions (due to a different,
less carbon intensive fue! mix}.

N

NET CASH FROM OPERATING J,
ACTIVITIES (Em)
0
-9.2%
16 100.3
17 110.9

o INREY

The Group's cash conversion was agan strong,

rowever it reduced from 2017°s level due to
an Increase in working capital and in income
tax paid. Despite the reduction in cash from
operating activities, the Group has been able
to fund an increased level of gross investment
in capital expenditure of 1.4 1imes (2017 -1.3
tumes!} depreciation and propose a6.8%
increase in annual dividend per share.

LOST TIME INJURY RATE
{INCIDENTS PER 100
EMPLOYEESPA))

25% DECREASE

3

N

35 |29 254 295

Rate e 100 enproypas

02 2004 205 206 017 2018
B (5l Recardanks byary s

Las: e ~coent Tate

The Group continued to focus on the Zero Harm

programmre with continuing implementaticn of

behavioural safety through managerial leadership

workshops In 2018 we achieved a 25%
raduction in the Lost Time Inury Rate and a
16% reduction in the total Recordable Injury
Rate In 2019 the behawvioural safety continues
to evolve as we continue to embed our

" Essential Behaviours for Health and Safety”
into our safety management processes.

RETURN ON CAPITALEMPLOYED
(%}

+110bps

16 12.9
17 119

o I

The Group's return on capital empioyed
improved 0 2018 to 13 0% and was In excess
of the Group's cost of capital. This was achieved
through a cormbination of earnings enhancements
and continued balance sheet efficlency, in
particular due 1o the effective allecation of
capital expenditure and asset utlisation on
profitable growth programmes, as well as
continued effective control over working

capital requirerents at operational level.
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STRATFGIC REPORT

DUR APPROACH

Tne Group ams to emibed its sk managerniant
procedures within its exisling DUSINESS pIoCesses
and the corporate governance structurg

We believe that the benefits of managing risk
are best achievea when Enterprise Risk
iManagement 1s aligned with the srategic

and operat'oral priontes of the Group,

The foundation of Semior’s risk mariagement
approach is a half-yearly nsk assessmiant review,
a though risks are contindously monitored by
the Executive Committee and the Boara

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

20 SFNIOR L0 AMNUA. REPORT 4 ACCQUNTS 2014

CUR RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Board has uitmate accountabidity for tho
Group's fisk. management framework and for
determining the nature and extent of the rnisk
that it s willing to take Effective management
of risks ard opportunities 1s essental to the
achievement of the Group's strategic priorities

Tne Board has delegated responsibility for

the monitoring and reviow of the offectivencss
of the Group's nsk management framewaork

1o the Audit Committee

The key elements of our nsk management
framework are.

-

Identitication and ongoing management

of rsks to the achieverment of our strategic
pnorties, through a top down and bottom
up approach, integrated weth the annual
strategic planning process;

A Group-wdg Corporate Framewaork
comprisirg policies, a code of conduct and
delegation of authonty 1o ensure key controls
arc adhered to; and

Ongoirg assarance activities, adopting a
three lines of defence approach, to confirm
that key contrals arc effective and risks

aa being managed In additon, all

entiues comiplete an Annual Controls
Self-Assessmant, which is designed to
highlight ary significant gaps in the internal
control system that require development
of morovement initiatives,

The risk management process s agreed
annually witn the Audit Committee

The Group and operatng unit nsk reqisters

are discussed regJlarly at Quarierly Business
Raviews and Exacutive Comimittee meetings to
ensure that changes to nsks are identilied and
maonitored early and o ensdre implementanon
of the mitigating actions The Board formally
discusses the Group's risks twice a year.

In summary, the Senior Risk Managemert
process 1s Hlustrated nght:



Tne Principal Risks the Group taces are dentfied,
agreed and managed through th s trocess

06

RiSK REPORTING,
MONITOBING AND REVIEW

The status of the rrost signficant
risks, top down and battom up, ara
ragularly reviewed to esure
mitigating actions arg implerentod
and charges to the risk profile
are captured and acted upon

05

RISK RESPONSE PLANNING
Wnere the ret nsk s considerea
to be kigner than the Group's
tolerance eve’ for that nsk,
adaitional mitigating actiors are
dert fied and awners assigned

01

IDENTIFY RISKS
The sks to the achievenrent
of tne Croup’s strateg'c pront.es
are ident’ ed from a top down
and bottom up persoective
Exisurgard amerging nsks
are considgered

02

EVALUATE GROSS
(INHERENT} RISKS

The gress level of sk, considering
irpact ard hkelhsod, to the
achieverment of the stategic

arortes 1s assessed

SENIOR'S RISK

MANAGEMENT
PROCESS

03

IBENTIFY EXISTING
CONTROLS AND PROCESSES
The existing controls and
processes which rmitigate
the hisks are dentified

04

NET {RESIDUAL) RISK
Based on the controls and
processes already in olace the
net risk from ar impact and kkeibood
perspective 15 evaluated.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

OUR INTEGRATED GROUP RISK AND ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK
Top down and bottom up approach on risk
Oversight from the Board and Cxecutive Commttee on all ns<identification, assessment anda mitgaton s undertaken at all levels with'n tre Group.

Key responsibilities
» Has overall responsibility for ensuring the Group ns< managemaeint procass
and systems of internal controf are robust and continuously monitored

* Formulates the Group's strategy and defines the Group's risk appetite and culture

+ Monitors the nature, extent and management of nsk exposure for the Group's
principal risks

* Provides direction and sets the tone on tho .mportance of r sk management

Board and Executive Sub-Committees perform oversight activitics in line with
therr Terms of Reference

Remuasration Hominations HSE
Cammittor Cammittae Committes

* Supports and challenges the Board in menitoring rsk exposure in line
with its Terms of Reference

» Reviews he effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
contro! systems and repor:s to the Board for considerat'on

AUDI Independent Assurance - the Third Line of Defence

ol =2
Audit Asserance

Operational Oversight - the Second Line of Defence

» Development and implementation of strategy, operational plans,
policies. procedures and budgets

« Maomtoring of operating and financial performance
¢ Agsessment and control of nsk - ingludirg emaerging r'sks

» Prionusation and allocation of resources

» Lead and co-ordinate Group risk and control related processes

+ Assesses and supports the Group 0 rtigating the Group's
risks mcluding

Policies and Contrel Specinfist Buainess

FUNCTIONS

Operational Management — the First Line of Defence
* Operational units identify, assess and mitigate their key rsks

» Risk assessments are reviewed and discussed by

OPERATING UNITS Draisional Management
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PRINCIPAL GROUP RISXS

Durng 2018 the orincipal nsks and urcerta:ntes
faced by the Group have been reasscssen
Following this review two risks «dennfied

as principa: nsks 0 the 201/ Annual Repor:

& Accounts are no longer corsidered to be
orincipal risks, one bas been amended and one
has been added. The two risks which are no
longer considered to be principal risks are

* Importance of emerging markets

Whilst this cont nues to be monitored,

wath the Group successtully increasing its
presence in cost competitive countries, the

+ Programme participation
The kelhood and impact of this risk nas
reduced as a resdlt of the Group having
won positions on new platforms

focus 1s en delivering the ramping volumes
on the new cortracts ana platforms the
group has already won

Thre principal potential nisks and uncertainties, togeter w th actions that are being taken o miugate each risk, are.

olncreased risk oDecreased ns« eRISk Jnchanged ®New nsk

Areas of strategic pniaritics as described on pages 14w 1/

000000

RISK

SUPPLY CHAIN {PREVIOUSLY NEW AIRCRAFT PLATFORM DELAYS) 0

Significant snipset content has been secured on a
number of new aircraft platforms currently under
develocpment or minitial phases of producton,

As new arrcraft platforms ramp-up ana end markets
grow, the business and/cr the supply chain is facing
challenges in meeting demand due 1o capacity
constraints and/or auabty 1ssues. Delays in the
ramp-up In preduction of new platforms could have
a matenal adverse impact on the Group's rate of
organic grawth

PRICE-DOWN PRESSURES Q)

Custorner pricing pressure is an ongoing challenge
within our industries, driven by the expectations of
aslines, land vehicle operators and governments
seeking 1o purchase more competitively priced
products in the future. This may put some pressure
on the Group's future cperating margins.

ACQUISITIONS @

Failure to execute an effective acquisttior ard
integration programme would have a significant
impact o the Group's abiity to generate iong-term
value for shareholders.

MANAGEMENT ACTIONS TO MITIGATE RISK

-

006

The Group monitors programme development and launch timing of new a'reraft
platforms very clasely, utiising mternal customer relationships and market intefligence

A cautious approach s taken 1o both capital investment in new programmes,

to rminimise the tme between installation and utibsation of new capital ecuipment,

and to the projected build rates and associated revenue in financial projections.

The Senior Operatmg System will enalrle operating businesses 1o becorne more flexible
and responsive 10 changes Ir demand from custormners.

Work 15 ongoing wth our supply chain to reduce over-reliance on individual supphers
where possible

The growirg breadth of Senior's exposure to a comprehensive and diverse range

of agrospace and land vehicle platforms, together with its broad exposure in global
industrial markets, means that the Group's future organ:c growth profile 1s not overly
dependent on any individual newy aircraft platform.

The Group monitors market and customer data so that we can be prepared to respond

10 charging market gynamics
000

The Group works closely with its custorrers ta find nnovative ways to produce procucts
at a lower cost, thus helping them to meet pricing challenges

The Group Is able to consider bundles of products that in total help achieve customer

pricing challenges

Where appropriate, the Group wil actively pass work to some of its cost competitive

facilities such as Mexico, Thatland. the Czech Republic, South Afnca, Ind'a, Chira and
Malaysia with a view 1o helping satisfy customer challenges.
A project 1s underway in the Aerospace Division to optimise the use of our mackine tools
o support the need for competitively priced products

00

M&A opportunitics continue to be evaluated and discussed at the Beard's strategic
review. Processes are in place to ensure that the Group will be aware of emerging
acquisition cpPCrtunItes.

The Group has a well-established acquisition frarmework that includes prover valuation,
due diligence and integration procgsses.

Consistently healthy free cash flow genegratior gives the Group capacity 10 execute

a targeted acgu'sition programme

Post-acquisition reviews are conducted as appropriate.

SEMNOR S1C ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2018 23



STRATFGIC REPORT

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

RISK
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BREACH &)

Corporate governance legislation (such as the UK
Bribery Act and the US Foreign Corrupt Practices
Acth, regulations ard guinance isuch as the UK
Corporate Governance Code and global health
and safcty regulations) ars Increasirgly complex
and ongrous. A sercus breach of these ru'es and
regulations colld have a significant impact on the
Groug's reputation, lead to a loss of confidence
on Lhe part of investors, customers or other
stakeholaers ard ulimately have a matenal
adverse impact on the Group's enterprise value,

FINANCING AND LIGUIDITY §)

The Group could have insufficient financial
rasources o fund 1its growth strategy or meet
s financial obligatiors as they fall due.

Forcign axchange mavernents could have a matsrial
impact on the Group's finanaial performance, both
on the bakance sheet {ranslation sk} and income
staternent {transact.on ngk}

GEOPOLITICAL IMPACT QD

Trade relations. for example mposing of taritfs in
the US, the UK decision to cave the EU and otner
likely geopohtcal events have creatcd uncertainty
over the future impact on .ntemational trade and
the ability to retan and recrait foreign nationals

24 SFNIOR PLC ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2018

MANAGEMENT ACTIONS TO MITIGATE RISK

» The Group bas well-established governance polices and procedures in all key a“eas,
neluding a Group Cade of Conduct, anti-bribery procedures, & Heaith & Safety Charter,
and vanous policies and procedures over the review and reporting of nisk management
and interna; control activities

Governance updates are provided 0 the Boarg and the Executive Comniittee at
appropriate irtervals, and to key operational maragerent,

All emplovees are required to complete annual Code of Conduct training More than 88%
of emplayees have completed the 2018 Code of Conduct training

All EU sites have received training on the General Data Protection Regulatons and
employees in other locations have receved traning as appropriate 1o ther roles

There has been increased focus on trade compliance at our US sites.

The Board has received an update on Directors’ responsibilities.

-

000

The Group manages hquidity risk by mairtaining adequate reserves, banking faciities and
ravolving credit facihties, and by continucusly moritoring forecast and actual cash flows,
matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and liabilities and paying close attention
to the projected level of headroom under the covenants contained in its cormnmitted
borrowing facilities.

The Group's overalt treasury risk management prograrrme focuses on the unpradictability
of financial markets, and seeks to minmise potential adverse effects on the Group's
finarcial performance.

Compliance with financal policies and exposare imits are revicwed by the Group's
Treasury Committee on a regular basis

The Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange risk
ansing on operatons’ trading activities in foreign currercies; however, it does not grter
into or trade fmancial Instruments, Incluading dervauve financial instruments, for
speculative purposes

Tne Group's hedging policy 1s updated ana approved by the Board regularly The last
update was made in June 2018

In February 2019, the Group refinanced its main revolving credit facilities of £80.0m

by increasing the committed facilities to £120.0m and extended the matunty to

February 2024

-

00
The Board ensures that it 1s kept informed of US trade developments and Brexit so that it
can assess the irpact on the Group and take action as approprate.
The Group anticipates that any drect or inarect impact from Brexit will be lirmied and not
significant grven the Group's global positioning
The Group's Brexit Comrittee nas undertaken detalled reviews to identify our exposure
to the UK's decision to leave the EU on 28 March 2019 ncluding regudatory, supply chart
and workforce aspects.
In a imited number of cases we are undertaking some contingency planming to minimise
any potential eperational disruption
Tne Group momitors potential changes to international tax regulatons and tanffs to
understand the hkely impact

-



RISK

CYBER/INFORMATION SECURITY Q

The rnisk that te Group 1s sunjected to external
threats from hackers or viruses potentially causing
crizical or sensitve data o be lost, corrupted. made
inaccessible, or accessed by unauthornsed users,
result ng ir f nancial lgss

MANAGEMENT ACTIONS TO MITIGATE RISK

INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE e

In order to continue to wan new business and

achicve profitable growth the Group rrust innovate.

Trere 's a nsk that the Group does NGt continue 1o
innovate and Irplement technological change
resulting I its technology becoming uncompetitive
or obsolote.

NEW PRODUCT INTRODUCTION D

Tre ability 1o Introduce nev products in ine with
the plan at peint of contract award 1s iImportant if
the Group 1s to achieve its strategic objectives.
There is a risk that new programmes or products
are not introduced to schedule, quality and cost
at atime when new programmes are ramging up.
Thus could result in delays, cost overruns and
disappointed customers.

SHORTAGE OFKEY sX1LLS ()

Cormpgetition for skuled labour has increased.
There is a risk that operatirg businesses will be
unable to recruit and retain key skills, partcularly
machinists and welders

A Group-wide Information Security maturty assessment was conducied n 2018,
Plans to further develop matunty nave been prepared and a Head of Informration

Secunty recruied.

The Group continues to monitor developmenrts i1k cyber secunty threats
The Group has secunty controls In place including polices and procedures
The Group's IT and Information Security polcies have been strengthened
Employees have recewed awarenass tra nirg on cyber-related issues.

The Group has a technelogy council which meets regularly 1o discuss ‘nnovation and

technological change.

The Group 1s establishing an Advanced Additive Manufactunng Centre and has secured

a launch customer for first parts.

The Group 1s a member of the Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre which focuses
on advanced machining and riaterials research
Global Marketing Teams are engaged to ensure that customer requirements and prionties

are cons dered,

The Group continues to invest In IMproving technology.
The Semior Operating System wik be developed to nclude best practice wo s for

innovation ar.d proaJdct development.

00000

The Group 1s exparienced in bidding and launching new products. Formal New Product
Introduction (NPH processes, such as Advanced Product Quality Planning (APQP),

are used in some parts of the Group and are being rolled out

There s a Group Contract Reviow Policy which Pelps to ensure that large, new
programme bids have been reviewed by senior managers. Non-advocate support

15 provided 10 sites with challenging NPI proposals.

The status of NPI programmes 1s subject to regular review by divisianal and Group
management to ensure that any cost, quality or schedule 1ssues are idenufied and dealt

with promptly

The provisior of non-advocate support will contirue to be provided as required 1o
ensure appropnate cnal enge and ngour s applied to the NPI process.
The Senior Operating Syslem will be developed to miclude best practice tools for

new product Introduction,

00000

A number of sites have established relationships with local coileges andfor developed
ir-house traning programmes to ensure that skilled iabour 1s in place.

Operatung businesses arg collaporating to understand where parts can be manufactureo
i more than one location or where there 1s the possibility of maoving labour.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Another record year of revenue growth
Adjusted profit before tax increased by 14%

BIND!I FOYLE
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's operating results (at reported currency) is set out in the table below Further detail an the performance of each Division 18

set outin the Divisional Review,

Adjusted
Ravenue eperalng prohr Margn
2018 2017 2ms 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m £m % %o
Agrospace 760.4 7253 80.4 786 10.6 10.6
Floxonics 3229 7988 26.1 20.0 81 57
Share of results ol jomnt venture - - 0.6 .7 - -
Inter-segment sales {1.2} 07 - -
Central costs - {15.5} 147 -~ ~
Group total 1,0821 1.023.4 ' 9216 326 85 8.1
{1 See table oelow far reconciiat or o1 adusted oocrating proft t0 reported aperatirg profe
Adiusted operating profit may be reconciled to the operating prefit that is shown in the Consolidated Ircome Statement as follows
2018 2017
£m £m
Adjusted operating profit 91.6 328
Amortisation of intangible assets from acguisitions {15.4) 70
UK Guaranteed Mimmum Pensions {2.4} -
US class action lawsuns {3.9) -
Operating profit 69.9 65.5

REVENUE {£m}

17 1.023.4
18 1,082.1

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT (Em}

17 826
18 91.6
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FINANCIAL DETAIL

Revenueg

Group revenue Increased by 5.7% to another
record levei of £1,082.1m (2017 - £1.023.4m).
Excluding the adverse exchange rate impact of
£19.8m, Group revenue increascd by £78 5m
{7 8%} on a constant currency basis as sales
grew ac-oss both Divisions 11 2018, 59% of
revenue onginated from North Amenca, 16%
from the UK, 129 from the Rest of Europe
and 13% from the Rest of the World

Operating profit

Operating profit was £69.9m (2017 — £65 Sm).
Adjusted operating profit increased by £8 Om
(10 9%} 10 £91.6m (2017 - £82.6m;}. Exclading
the adverse exchange rate impact of £1.5m,
adjusted operating profitincreased by 12.9% on
a constant currency basis, The Group's adjusted
operating margin increased by 40 basis points,
10 8.5% for the full year. Margims m the
Aerospace Divisior were slable 8s operational
efficiencies and learning curve ‘mprovemerts
offset the impact of volume reduction on mature
programmes and product introduction costs on

new programmes Margin improvement in the
Flexanics Dnision reflected the volume growih
in the truck, off-highway and upstream oil and
gas markets.

As sct out in Note 8, adjusted operating profit
ard adjusted profit before tax are stated before
£15.4m amortisation of intangible assets from
acquisitions (2017 — £17.1m}, £2 4m charge for
UK Guararteed Minimum Pensions (2017 - £0il)
and £3.9m costs associated with the US class
action lawsuits (2017 - Enill. Adjusted profit
before tax is also stated before 1oss on disposal
of £nil {2017 - £32 8m},

Central costs increased by £0.8m to £15 bm
{2017 - £14.7m} due ‘o higher share-pased
payrment charges and corsultancy and

other costs to strengthen the Group central
capabilities, partly offset by lower legal costs
Incurred related 10 actons as described
Note 36 of the Financial Statements



ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Em)

731
83.0

17
18
ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (p}

17
18

14.3g

16.08

Finance costs

Total finance costs, net of investment income
of £0.6m {2017 - £0 2m} decreased to £8.6m
{2017 - £9.5m) mainly due w0 favourable foreign
exchange Impact on the translatior of interest
crharges on US Dollar denominated borrowings,
the repayment in October 2018 0° $75 Om
(£68.6rm) US private placement carrying a high
rterest rate and net |1AS 19 pensicn finance
credit of £0.2m (2017 £0 7m charge).

Profit before tax

Adjusted profit before tax increased to £82 Om
{2017 —£731m), up 13.5%, 0r 15.3% on a
constart currency bas's. Reported profit before
tax ncreased £9 1m to £81 3m (2017 - £52 2m}
The reconciling tems between adjustea and
reported profit before tax are showwn in Note 9
to the Financial Statements.

Tax charge

The adjusted tax rate for the year was 19.0%
{2017 - 17.5%), being a tax charge of £15.8m
(2017 - £12 8m) on adjusted profit batore tax

of E83 0m (2017 — £73.1m) The mcrease in the
rate is attributed to changes in the tax treatment
of items in the US followirg the enactrment of
the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Actin Decernber 2017,
which outweigh the positive beneft from tho
cut i the US Federal corporate income tax rate

The reported tax raie was 18.3% charge (2017
— 15 5% credit), being a tax charge of £11 2m
(2077 - £8.1m credit} on renorted profit betore
tax of £61.3m {2017 - £62 2m}. The reported
tax charge for the year included the tax credn

of items excluded from adjusted operating profit
of £4.6m (2017 -- £4.9m), and an &éxceptional
non-cash tax credit related to US tax reforme

of fr (7017 - £16 Omy}

Cash tax paid was £6.0m (2017 ~ £4 9m} ana

15 stated net of refunds receved of £2 0m (2017
- £1.9m} of tax paid in pricr perioGs The rate of
cash tax paid is lower than our adjusted tax rate
in both years due 1o accelerated tax rehef for
capital expenciture in the US, the avalability of
tax losses and tax deductible items that do not
affect adjusted profit.

Tax policy

The Group acts with mitegrity in all tax matters,
In accordance with the Group's ethics and
business conduct program e, 1115 the Group's
obligation to pay the amount of tax legally due
and to observe all applicable ries ana reguiations
In the wnsadictions in which it operates Whie
meeting this obligation, the Group also has a
responsibility 1o manage and control the costs of
our business ircluding the taxes we pay for the
benefit of all our stakeholders. The Group seeks
to ach'eve this by conducting business atfairs

n a way that is efficient from a tax perspective,
including maintairing appropriate levels of debt
in the countnes we operate in and clamirg
avallable tax reliefs and mcentives. The Group

is committed to building and maintaining
constructive working relationships with the

tax authorities of the countries In which it
operates. Further details on our approach

to tax may be found on Senior's website

at www seniorplc.com

Earnings per share

The weaighted average number of shares, for the
purposes of calculating undiluted earnngs per
share, decreased to 417.8 million {2017 - 418.9
million}. The decrease arose principally dug to
shares purchased by the employee benefit trust.
Adusted earnings per share increased by 11.7%
to 16.08 pence (2017 - 14.39 pence). Basic
earnings per share decreased by 16.7% to

11.99 pence (2017 - 14.39 pence) pnmarily due
to the benefit of the exceptional non-cash tax
credit in 2017 described above. See Note 12

to the Financial Statements for detalls of the
basis of these calculations.

Research and development

The Group's expenditure on research and
development increased to £29 7m dunng 2018
{2017 — £256m) Expenditure was incurred
mainly on funded and unfunded work, which
relates to designing and engineenng products
n accordance with individual customer
specifications and invesugating specific
manufacturing processes for their production
The Group & $0 INCUrs costs on genera
manufacturing improverent processes
which are similarly expensed. Unfunded costs
in the year have been expensed, consistent
with the prior year, as they did not meet the
strict criteria recuired for capitalisation

FREE CASH FLOW {fm)
17 58.3
18 453

DIVIDEND {PAID AND PROPOSED)
PER SHARE {p)

17
18

6.95

Exchange rates

A proportion of the Group's operatng profit

in 2018 was generated outside the UK and
conseqguently, foreign exchange rates, principally
the US Dollar against Sterhng, can affect the
Group's results,

The 2018 average exchange rate for the

US Dollar applied in the trarslation of income
staternant and cash flow iterns was $1.34
{2017 — §1.29) The exchange rate tor the

US Doillar applied to the translation of Balance
Sheet tems at 31 December 2018 was

$1 28131 December 2017 - $1 35)

Using 2018 average exchange rates would
have dacreased 2017 revenue by £19 8
and decreased 2017 adjusted operating profiz
by £1.5m. A 10 cents movement in the £:3
exchange rate 1s estimated to affect full-year
revenue by £48m, adjusted operatng profit
by £5m and net debt by £9m.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Cash flow

The Group gererated heaithy free cash flow
of £456 3m in 2018 (2017 ~ £68 3m) as set out
In the table below:

2018 2017
£m £m

Operat'ng profit 69.9 655
Depreciation ingluding
anortisation of software) 41.5 40.8
Amortisation of
intangible assets
from acguisttions 154 171
Share of jJoint venture 0.8} 0.7)
Working capital and
PIOVISIoNS movernent {11.1} 12.4
Pansion payments
above service cost {10.3} 9.7
Other items 11.2 04
Cash generatad by
operations 116.0 1258
Interost paid {net) 8.9) 19 8}
Ingome tax pawd 6.0} 4.9
Capital expenditure {56.3) 154.8}
Sale of plant, property
and equipment 05 1.8
Free cash flow 45.2 58.3
Dradends paid (29.8) 27.9)
Proceeds on disposal - 0.4
Loan repayment by
joint venture 05 c3
Purchase of shares
held by employee
benetit trust {7.2) 0.1}
Faoreign exchange
vanations (6.7} 14
Movement in
Non-cashtems =~ - 08
Change n net debt 23 428
Opening net debt {155.3} {198.1)
Closing net debt {153.0) {165.3}
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Capital expenditure

Gross capital expenditure of £56.3m (2017--
£54.8m) was 1.4 tmes depreciation (2017 ~1.3
tmes), with the majority of investment retated
to growth programmes in the Aerospace Division
includ ng ramp-up related capacity expansion
for 737 MAX, A320nac and A35b0 as well as
Ivcstment in setting up our Advanced Additive
Manufactunng Centre. The disposal of plant,
property and eguipment ra'sed £0.5m {2017

- £1 8l Capital expenditure 1S anticipated to
be higher n 2019, as investments continue to
sapport future growth programmes already won.

Working capital

Workirg capital increased by £18 9m in 2018
1o £158 1m (2017 — £137 2m) 10 support new
product mtraductions, Working capital as a
percantage of sales increased oy 100 basis
points from 13.4% at 31 Decernber 2017 to
14.4% at 31 December 2018, princinally due
10 80 basis points increase from exchange
differences and 40 basis points increase
from inventary, partiy offset by 20 basis
points reduction fror recevables in excess
of payablas

Dividend

Tre Group has a long and siable track record
of dvidend growth and the Board intends to
continue to pay a progressive dividend reflecting
earmirgs per share, free cash flow gereration
and dividend cover aver the medium term.

A timal dvidena of 5 23 pance per share

15 prapnsad for 2018 12017 - 4 30 pence),
payment of which, f approved, would total
£21.8m 12017 final dvidend  £20.5m) and
would be paid on 31 May 2019 to shaiehclders
on the register at close of business or. 3 May
2019. Trs would delver total dividends paid
and proposed in respect of 2018 of 7.42 pence
per share, an increase of 6.8% over 2017, At
the level recommended, the full-year dividend
would be coverad 2.2 times (2017 - 2 1 times)
by adjusted earnings per share The cash
outflow incurred duning 2018 in respect of the
finai divigend for 2017 and the intenm divigend
for 2018 was £29.6m (2017 - £27.9m).

Goodwill

The change in goodwll from £302.4m at

31 December 2017 to £312.9m at 31 December
201815 due to foreign exchange differences on
translation only

Retirement benefit schemes

The retirement benefit surplus 1n respect of

the Group’s UK defined beneft pension plan
increased by £11 bon to £30 9m (31 December
2017 - £19 4my, principally due 1o £8 2m casn
contributions in excess of runming costs rmade
by the Group and £5 1m net actuanal gans

This was partly offset by a £2.4rm past service
charge in relation ta the equalisation of histonca
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs) for
men and wormen which follows a High Court
ruling in the UK that clanfied the egal otligation
on pension schemas, Retirement beneft
deficits in respect of the US and other terntones
decreased by £2 3m to £12 dm (31 Cecember
2017 - £14 7m)

Net debt

Nat debt decreased by £7 3m to £153.0m

at 31 December 2018 {31 December 2017 -
£155.3m} Thus decrease was due to £46.3m
free cash inflow and £0.5m loan repayment
by the joint venture, partially offset by £29.8m
dividend payments, £7.2m purchase of own
shares held by the employee nenefit trust
and £6.7m untavourable foreign currency
movements.

Funding and liquidity

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gross
borrowings exciuding fnance leases and
transaction costs directly attnibutable o
borrowings were £170.8m 131 Decernner 2017
— £168.0m), with 68% of the Group's gross
borrowings denomiratad in US Dollars

{21 Docember 2017 - 7R%) Cash and bank
balances were £17.2m {371 Decomper 2017
-£12 &)

The matunty of these borrowings, together with
the maturty of the Group's commitied facilities,
can be analysed as follows:

Gross Cammitted

borrowings!" facilities

£m £m

Within one yaar 2.7 200
In the sacond year 5.6 15.6
in yoars three to five 299 112.8
After five yeoars 122.6 122 6
1/0.8 271.0

Gruss burrawings irclude the use of Barnk overdrafts,
other 'oans and commulted 1acilimes, but oxelude
tinance leases of £0 7m and ransaction costs directly
attnhutanle 1o borrowings of (E0 8rmy

At the year-end, the Group had committed
facihties of £2771.0m comprising private
placernent debt of £153.8m and revolving
credit faciities of £112.2m. The Group is in
a strong funding position, with headroom
a1 31 December 2018 of £118 Om under s
committed faciities



Im January 2018, a rew £27 0m seven-year
prvate placermnens carrying irseres: at the rate of
2 35% per anrum was drawn down and a new
$30 Om I£23.4m1 10-year private placement
carrying interest at the rate of 4 18% per anrum
was drawn down in Sepienber 2018, These
two nevy private placements have replaced the
$7b Om {£68 Bmj} private placement carrying
interest at the rate of 6.84%, per annum that
matured in October 2018.

tn February 2019, the Group rehiranced its
man UK revolving credit facites of £80.0m oy
Increasing the comrmitted faciites to £120 Om
and extended the matunty to February 2024
Allowing for this transagtion and the related
cancellation of £80 Om cormrmitted revoly ng
crodit faciiues {£70.0m that had been due to
mature in March 2019 and £80 Om that had
been due 1o mature In November 2021}, the
weighted average matarity of the Group's
corrmitted faclites is currently 5 3 years

The Group has £Q 2m of uncommitted
borrowings which are repayable on demand

The Group's committed borrowing facilities

at 31 December 2018 contain a requirement
that the ratio of EBITDA {as defined on page 1)
to net interest costs must exceed 3 bx, and
that the rato of net debt to EBITDA must not
exceed 3.0x. At 31 December 2018, the Group
was operating well within these covenants as
the ratio of CBITDA to net interest costs was
15 2% (31 December 2017 — 13 3x) and the ratio
of net debt to FBITDA was 1 1x {31 December
2017 1 3x)

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective for annual pericds beginning

1 January 2013, IFRS 16 Leases will replace
HAS 17 Leases and reqguires lessees to
recognise nght of Lise assets and lease
llabilmes for all leases lbe trey operatng

or financing In classification under IAS 17},
unless the lease term s 12 montbs or less
or the underlying asset 13 low value As at
31 December 2018, the Group holds a
sigmificant number of operating leases which
urder 1AS 17 were expensed on a straight-line
basis over the lease term {see Note 33).

The Group has undertaken a comprehensive
review across all lease commitments and
performed the required assessment of its
cumulative adiustment on transition <a IFRS 16
on 1 January 2019 and applied the standard
from the transitienal date using the modified
retrospective approach and not restat ng
comparatives, As at 1 January 2019, the
Group's audited nght of use assets were
£96.7m, iease lizhilites were £96.3m and
working capital and non-current labities
decreased by £0.4m in total

The estimated annual financial Impact has

a'so beer updated from prior guidance in

order to refiect the lease por:folio ard inancial
conditicns at the date of transition; actual financial

impacts wil d ffer as these conditicns change.
From the f nancia. year ending 31 Decernber
2019, depreciation I£10.2mannually as
determired at the date of transition) on

the right of use assets will be charged to the
Consohdated Income Statement whi e interest
1£3 6m annually as determined at the date

of transiuen) will be accrued against the ease
habilies These charges to the Consohdated
Income Staternent wi i be partly offset by
operatrg lease rentals tnat wiil 7o longer

oe expenised to the Consoldated Ircome
Staternent (£11.3m annually as determined

at the date of transition).

The adoption of IFRS 16 does not imrpact the
Group's lending covenants, as noted above,
as thase are currently based on frozen GAAP

VIABILITY STATEMENT

Ir accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, published ny

the Financial Reporting Council in 2016, the
Directors have assessed the prospects of the
Group over the treae-year period te 31 December
2021, reflecting the normal mid term olanring
cycle of its business operaticns while
adequately covering custamer lead times

for both new and expansion inves:ment,

Although this three-year perod s shorter

than other time horizons, such as the Goodwil,
mparment assessment, capital Investment and
e matunties of some longer-term borrowings,
the Directors have no reasor 1o believe that the
Group will not be wiable over a longer pencd
The prncipal Group ns<s and uncertainties

on pages 20 to 25 and areas of strategic
prorities on pages 14 to 17 take longer-term
prospects Into cansideration; howvever, giver: the
inherent uncertainty invalved, the perod over
which the Directars consider it possible to

form a reasonable expectaton ard degree of
configence as to e Group's viability 1s the
threg-year period to 31 December 2021,

In its assessmen: of the viability of the Group,
the Directors have considered each of the
Group's pnncipal nisks and uncertainties and
i particular the nsks associated wath potential
delays in the launch or ramp-up N oroduction
of new aircraft p atforms.

The Directors have adopted a scenano appreach
supported by financial medeling The “Base
Case Scenana”, compnsing the Group Budget
‘or 2019 and the Group's Strategy for 2020 and

" GOING CONCERN

As a consequence of the work undertaken
1o support the viability statement above,
the Directors have continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
Financial Statements,

SENIOR BLE ANNUAY

Brexit

YWhile we do ngm anticipate a significant drect
impact from Brexit on the Groun's activities,
we remain a ert o the impact any fina. deal wrl
have on the macro ecoromic condimions, Our
335es5ment 1s that any d rect or indirect iImpact
frorr Bresut will be imited and not sigrificant
given the Group's glcbal posiioning

(AU W I R R
BINDI FOYLE
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR

2021 before future acquisitions, is flexed 1o
reflect the probatdity weighted ard cumulat ve
estimated effects of the Group’s principal nsks
and uncertainties In addition, the Directors
have also carmed out a Reverse Stress Analysis
by modeling the point at which future viaoility
becomes uncertan.

The scenaros are des.gned to be severe but
plausible, and take account of the avallability
and likely effectiveness of the migating actions
that could be taken to avoid or reduce the
impact or occurrence of the underlying nsks
and that realistically would be achieved in

the circumstances In considering the likely
effectiveness of such actions, the conclusions
of the Board's regular monitoring and review of
risk and interna: contral systems, as discussed
on pages 20 to 25, is taken into account.

The Directors consider that this stress-testing
hased assossment of the Group's prospectsis
reasonable in the circunrstances of the inherent
uncertainty involved

Based upon the robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the Group and their
stress-lesting based assessment of the Group's
praspects, all of which are descrnbed on pages
20 to 25, the Dhrectors have a reasonable
gxpectation that the Group will be able to
comnue 1IN operaton and meet its labilites as
they fall due over the period to 31 December
2021, subject to Senior rezaining the ability

to acquire funding over the three-year period
1o 2021 v order to refinance committed
facilues as they fall due, which is expected

to be the case.
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DIVISIONAL REVIEW

AEROSPACE
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AEROSPACE DIVISION

GLOBAL
AEROSPACE
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10 4 3

North America United Kingdorm Contingntal Europe
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SALES IN LARGE
COMMERCIAL AIRCRAFT
SECTOR INCREASED BY

6.9%

dunng the year
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REVENUE

£760.4m

2017 £771 Gy

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£680.4m

2017 £75 7eml

ADJUSTED OPERATING MARGIN™

10.6%

12017 -106%)

REVENUE RECONCILIATION

£m ; 60 13 7601
314 "m ‘ma——— pu
[VARNY)
i
i
A E [ [n} - 3
A 2017 revoe Lo O Milay
B Large ceramaroial E Otrer

€ TFeqonal & basress oty FO20 H ever ae

The Aerospace Division represents 70%

12017 — 71%) of Group revenue and consists

of 19 operauons. These are lacated in North
America {teny, the United Kingdom {four),
continental Furope {three), Thailand and
Malaysia. This Divisional review is on a constant
currercy basis, whereby 2017 results kave been
translated using 2018 average exchange rates
and on an adjusted basis to exclude the charge
relating 1o amortisation of iIntangitle assets from
acquisitions. The Division's coerating results on
3 constant currency basis are summansed below:

2018 2017 Change
£m £m
Revenue 760 4 7110 +69%
Adjusted
operating
proht 804 /72 16 9%
Adjusted
operating
margin 106%  106%

Divisicnal revenue increased by £49 4m {6 9%)
10 £760.45r 12017 - £711.0m) whilst adiusted
operating profitincreased by £5.2m (6 9%)

to F80.4m (2017 - £75 2m)

T Adjusted operating margir 15 he rauo of ad asted)

puerating peeft by evente A s onohatos of ad) sted
operabng prad Lo e abrg proth s shownin Mote 3

20 2007 trarslated using 20408 average exnange rares
LONSINT Cu ey



3%

AEROSPACE REVENUE
FROM OTHER MARKETS

OTHER MARKETS IN AEROSPACE INCLUDE:

THE GROUP BENEFITED
FROM INCREASED
PRODUCTION IN:

737 MAX
- A320neo

11.4%

INCREASE IN REGIONAL AND
BUSINESS JET MARKETS

=@

Space Non-military helicopters

Powaer and energy

Senior's sales ir the large commercial arcraft
sector increased by 6 9% curing t1e year Tne
Group benefited from :ncreased production

of the 737 MAX, A320neo, 787 and A350;
however, these increases were part'y offset
by decreasea production of the 777, 747, A330,
AZ80, and the current engine versians of the
737 and A320.

The Dvision's sales to the regional and busness
jet rrarkets increased by 11.4% during the year.
Thus retiected the ircreased production of the
A220 and Embraer E2-Jet which were partialy
cttset by lower production of legacy jets.

Revenue from the military and defence sector
increasead by & 0% durirg the year, primanly dus
to the ramp-up of the Joint Strike Fighter which
was partially offset by the anticipated Black
Hawk build rate reductions

Arcund 8% of the Aerospace Division's revenue
was derived from other markets suchk as space,
non-riktary helicopters, power and energy,
medical ard sermi conductor equipmient, where
the Group manufactures products using very
simifar lechnolagy to that used for certair
aerospace products. Revenue dernved from
these markets increased by 6.4%, manly due to
demand for Senior’s proprietary products for the
semi-conductor and medical equipment market.

The dvisional adjusted operating margin was
stable at 10.6% (2017 - 10 6%). As anticipated,
- marging were impacted by the year-on year
volume reductions cn mature programmcs such
as the 777, 747, A330, A3B0, and the current
engine versions of the 737 and A320, and the
costs associated with the intraduction and
industrialisation of new programmes. The
deployment of the Senor Operating System
r 2018 helped to offset these impacts by
delivenng efficiency and learmning curve
improvements.,

© [uring 2018, Senior successfully won sigrificant
additionat content on platforms such as the
TITX(+55%}, which 1s scheduled to enter
service in 2020, and Global 7500 {+91%), whickh
entered into service in Decermber 2018 and will
ramp-up over the coming years. Based on the
waork we have already won, we will continuc
to balance ongoing cost reduction and learning
curve iImprovements on newer programmes,
with the cost of further new product
introductions and industrialisation in 2019,

Overall, the future prospects for the Group's Aerospace Division are

VISIBLE AND STRONG
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DIVISIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED

FLEXONICS
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Cont'nental Earope United Kingdom

REVENUE

£322.9m

(2017 - £292 3m)

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£26.1m

2017 -£197m)

ADJUSTED OPERATING MARGIN®

8.1%

(2017 -8 7%

REVENUE RECONCILIATION
£rn

s 186 07 3229
2973 -

A B C >} F F

A 20T revanue D Powar and ensrgy
B Truck ard otf-rigiway E Other
C Passcrger vehcles F 20°d “over ue

The Flexonics Division represents 30% {2017

- 29%;) of Group revenue and prior to the sale of
Blois in February 2013, consisted of 14 operations
which are located in North America {four},
continental Europe (three), the United Kingdom
{two), South Africa, India, Brazil, Malaysia and
China where the Group also has a 49% equity
stake in a land vehicle product joint venture.

This Dwvisional review 15 on a constant currency
basis, whereby 2017 resdlts have oeen transiated
using 2018 average exchange rates and on an
adjusted basis to exclude the charge relating

to amortisation of mtangible assets from
acquisitions. The Division's operating results on
a constant currency basis are summanscd below.

2018 2011 Change
£m £m

Revenue 3229 283.3  +101%
Adjustea
operating profit 261 197 +325%
Adjusted
operating
margin 1% 6.7% +140bps

Disional revenue increased by £29 6m {10 1%)

to £322 9m {2017 - £293 3m} and adjusted

operating profit increased by £6.4m {32 5%

0 £26 1m (2017 - £19.7m}

121 Ad usted operating “hagin s the rato of ac asted
enaaing protl to reverue /oceconcnaton ot ad-usted
nperanng profit to operating pro11s shown.n Mote -

PO20T rrar slated vsiry 2018 dvelage @xidige tales
S Lenstart uenoy



Groud sales to truck ang off-h.ghway markets
increased by 17 3% Senior's sales to the
North Amer'can truck and of f-highway market
increased by £14.3m (19 8%, pnimarily due

to higher sales of EGR coolers for new vehicies
as heavy-duty truck and ot f-highway producton
increased, partly offset by the expected
decrease in sales of service paris “or older
models Sales to European truck and off-highway
Tarkets grew by £4 0m (21 7%}, aue to
ramrp-up of new programmes Sales w0 Irdia
and China decreased by £1 0m {10.5%;) as
grow/th from the rama-yup in new programmes
In India was offset by lower dircer sales to
China as some prod.acts transioned t© our
China joint venture

=

A

Group sales to passenger veh cle markets
decreased oy £5.0mM {9 2%) in the year As
mentioned previously, we elected not 1o add
rew busness at low margins with high capita.
requiremeants in passenger vehicle, electing
instead to deploy capital in other parts of the
Group with higker returns

Sales from the Group's power and energy
markets increased by £16 6m (12.7%) Sales
to oll and gas markets were up £6.9m {11.4%)
onimarily due to Increased driling activity In
upsteam oil and gas related rarkets in North
America, while downstream ol ana gas related
activity was stable. Sales to power generat on
markets increased by £6.9m {21 b%i1 due 10
fugher Morth Amer'can and European activity
Sales from other power and energy rarkets
Increased by £2 8m {7.3%)

SALES TO OiL AND GAS MARKETS
WERE UP BY

11.4%

GLOBAL ENERGY USAGE, WILL DRIVE INCREASED DEMAND FOR MANY OF

THE FLEXONICS DIVISION'S PRODUCTS.

The adjusted opeatrg rrargin increased by 140
basis points w0 § 150 (2017 — 6.7%) principally
due 1o higher demand and volume from trucks,
off-highway and upstream o ard gas. This was
also couplea with benetits from our focus on
cost ranagement and efficency Intatives.

In February 2019, the Group seld its franch
Hexonics land vehicle bus ness, Senior
Flexomics Blois {("Blois™] Blois’ main end
market was Europear passenger vehicles
and the sale enables us to have greater
focus on our core activities,

Qur Flexonics Civisior and markets are less
certain ara somewhat dependent on geopoltical
factors such as the ongoing trade discussions
between the US and China Inaustry analysts
are cJrrently forecasting a low level of producton
grawth for North American heavy-duty trucks
In 2019, with growth in the first half of the year
partly offset by a decrease in the second half
ot the year In the upstream oil and gas related
markets output In the first half of 2019 may be
restricted due to infrastructure constraints in
the US Permian Basin, with these expected to
alleviate r the second haif of 2019. Downstream
ol and gas activity remains stalbie for 2019

After adjusting for the sale of Blais, we expect
a shght decline in Flexonics top line which 1s
potential v due to softer demand in some of
our ingdustrial markets. However, we currently
expect margin progression in this Division in
2019 as a consequence of our continued focus
on cost management and efficiency inhatives,
couplad with our “prune to grow” strategy

| ooking further ahead, global errussions
standards and enviranmental legisiation
continuas to tighter:, which coupled with
projected increases n g.obal energy usage,
will drive increased demand for many of

the Flexonics Division's products, Senior 's
developing solutions for the rext generation
of maore efficient internal combustion engines,
as well as electrified land vehicle applications
As aresult ot its global footprint, technical
innovanon and customer relationships, the
Group remains well pasitioned for the future
as newv Flexonics programmes and products
enter production.

Overall, the future prospects for the Group's Flexonics Division arg

INNOVATIVE AND EFFICIENT
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Operating in an ethical, environmentally and socially
sustainable manner is a key driver in value creation

20/20
OBJECTIVES

Ir 2015, we launched
our 20/20 wision for
sustainability, a five-year
strategy.

Our visian has three core
thermes: Workplace,
Environment and
Community,

ENVIRONMENT
20

[

CARBON EMISSIONS
Objectives

Reduce carbon emissions
through improved energy
consumption and
cthiciency measures

Progress

Emussions of CO, (tonnes
per £ revenue) have
decreased from 65 in
201710 60 for 2018,

WORKPLACE
T

HEALTH & SAFETY
Objectives

Conunue towards our goal
of zero harmi through
effective management
systems, emploves
engagement and defining
safe behaviours.

Progress

A 25% reduction ir our
Lest Time Inury Rate ard
a 168% reduction in our
Total Recordable Injury
Rate compared with 2017

Tris means we have
accamplished the 2020
objective of reducing cur
Los: Time Inury Rate by
50%, two years earlier
than targeted.

O

WATER CONSUMPTION
Objectives

Lirnit the enviranmentat
impacts of our products
and processes through
more efficiont water
consumiption

Progress

Water consumption

for 2018 was 0.31
megaltres/Em turnover
compared with 0.26

N 2017.
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O

ETHICS

Objectives

Actin accordance

wiatn Senior's busingss
orinciples and values,
upholding a zero olerance
aporoach to bribery

and corruption.

Progress

Rolled out advanced
ethics and coriphance
programmes training
across the Group

Plans have been made
ta use an external
provider for Panding
whistle-blowing
notifications

&

WASTE RECYCLED
Objectives

Reduce the overall
quantity of waste
gencrated and improve
proportion of matcrals
reused and recycled

Progress

Through continual
improvement 92% of

our waste produced

was recycled in 2018
compared to 91% in 2017,

&L

EMPLOYEE
ENGAGEMENT
Objectives

Develop a Group HR
Framework with
Improvement objectives
for earning, diversity
and oquality

Progress

The Group continues 1o
partner with weorld class
training providers 1o develop
our leadership pipe'ine and
capability We have launched
Perforrn, our new global
performance rranagement
system to our leadership
teams across our busingsses
We continue to dentify hugh
potential individuals and
talent through our robust
SUCCEsSIoN plannirg and
lalent management orocess
and ensure that they have
appropriate development
plans n place

4

CERTIFICATION
Objectives

Establish formalised
environmental
rmanagameant systems in
all businesses to reduce
the environmenta IMpacts.

Progress

All businesses in Senior
now have 150 14001
accreditation, witn the
Jast two achieving
accreditation in 2018

B

SUPPLY CHAIN
Objectives

Implement a Responsible
Supply Chain Management
Po'icy and comrmun'cate

1t toall suppliers

Progress

A Resgpensible Sourcing
Peolicy has beon adopted.
Key supplicrs have

been included in the
ASSessMent process

COMMUNITY

23

COMMUNITY GIVING
Objectives

Establish positive and
meaningful relationships
with all the communitics
N which Senior operates
and provide firancial
support 1¢ local chanties
and good causes

Progress

Qur busingsses continue
to interact N a positive
way with communities
local to the facility.



2018 TOTAL RECORDABLE iNJURY
RATE FELL BY

6%
WORKPLACE
0

HEALTH & SAFETY
Health & Safety 1s one of our core values i

Senior, it1$ an upmost priofity and remains
one of cur core gusiness objectives.

When compared to our 2017 annual figure
the 2018 Total Recordable Injury Rate fell
by 16% and the Lost Time Injury Rate
reduced by 25% with no work-related
employee fatalities.

The inclusion of behavioural based safety in our
Zero Harm program is now showing tangible
benefits and continues to drive down the injury
rates. The significant reduction in Lost Time Injury
Rate means we have now achieved our 2020
goal to reduce Lost Time injury Rate e 0.b.

In 2019 we nave plans to further embed our
hehavioural safety program ard have targeted
further reductions in both lost tme and
recordable injury rates.

We believe that leadership in health ana safety
1s key to driving the world class health and
safety culture we aspire to. Al of our business
leadership teams have attended a workshop
around our Essential Benaviours, the key
themes of the warkshon sessions were.

* t0 understand why a Behaviour Standard
sLpports a strong safety culture and how
1t works;

to see the conrection betwesn behaviours
ang “reat” incidents;

o compare the current management
behaviours with the Essential Belawviours
using a gap analysis method;

to choose two of these behaviours and
create Action Plans that address these
{Doing Our Bity;

to develop and fead a communication and
engagement strategy 1o launch the Bekaviour
Standard on site; and

to commit to improving a s.ngle behavicur
personally (Doing My Bit).

-

.

Standaras AP Folow Rules
Commatmedtior «p Speak Up
Ris< Managemein 4p Be Mindful

livvohvetnent AP Get Involved

AP Ensure Complarce
AP Frcourage the Tearm
AP Promiye R sk Awareness

AP Eagage (e Team

LOST TIME INJURY RATE
REDUCED BY

0%

Focus on leadership through behavicural safety
has resulted in benefits to existirg safety
progrars Including near-miss reparang. Ve
promote near miss report Ng as a proactive way
1o identify and rectify potential hazards This has
resulted In an unprecedented number of near
MiIss roporss across e Group in 2018, 8,392,
an increase of over 60% compared to 2017

and a record yoar

All of our bus nesses have been subjected to

a Group health, safety and environment audit in
2018, Areas of improvemert are identified and
act'ors tracked centrally. In 2019 this program
will be revised to al'gn the format with the
recent 15 45007 standard Health and

Safety Maragermrent,

In 2018 a fire occurred in ong of our European
businesses. Na staff were :njured i the event
which was confined to a particular processing
area. The business contingency plan is proving
effective in mitgatng the event and all Group
businesses have been required to cxamine
similar plant with learning taken from the event.

For 2019 we have plans to oxtend our
behawvioural safety program with "My Team
My Responsibility ", a werkskhop and coaching
program for our first ine business leaders.

In aadition, we will be strengthening our
communication network for HSE professionals
with a revised intranet as well as global
networking opportunities

INJURY RATES

Tl er o

Rate il

2014
W "7 Recodat e inwey Fate

21 2015 2n'G

8

Los T 1wy Rate
3 %” Managers & -
Leadership
AP SetHigh Stencaras
4p Communicate Opanly
Ap Confront Risk
AP Invalve the We kforve

Businesses have worked hard to embed our “"essential behaviours” for nealth and safety.

O

ETHICS

The highest ethical standard

Serior remairs committed to the highest
standarc of ethics and a zero wlerance towards
bribery and carruptior. Qur ethics and business
conduct programme commits us 1o conducting
business farrly, impartially and in comphaice
with local laws and regulations and to acting
with integrity and honesty in ou” business
relationships. The programme 1s underpinned
by the Code of Conduct, which provides a clear
framework on which to base decisions when
conducting day-to-day business. It does this by’

+ clearly setting out the behaviour expected of
all employees,

» providing guidelines which help employees
to apply our values; and

= enabling employees to raise a concern or ask
a question if in doub

Acting ethically 15 an enabler of our business,
providing competitive advartage by
strengtheiing lorg-term relationships

and protecting the Group’s reputation,

We use various forms o communication and
training. both In-person and through electronic
media, to embed the ethics and integrity
requirenent across the Group. We investigate
any alleged violations or comolaints and take the
necessary action. & register of reported incidents
15 maintained by the Group Company Secratary
and the Board receives regular updates.

The Group recognises that the use of third-party
intermeaiaries can increase potential bnbery and
corraption risks wathin the markets in whick we
operate. All external sa'es agents working on
behalf of Scnior across the world are required to
operate In compliance with the Code of Conduct,
Ine Code requires a pre-anpointrment due
dilgence andl risk assessment to be undertaken,
prior to engaging or re-apponting any sales
agent and reguires them Lo be 1ssued with

the Code, ensuring that they understand,
acknowledge and accept s requiremaents.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY CONTINUED

Plaase refer to the Corporate Govemnance
Report on pages 44 1o 47 for turthes information
on Corparate Ethics and the Code of Conduct

2018 update

The 2018 Code of Conduct training programmae
was campleted by all employees

The Senio Code of Conduct was updated
and reissued to ali erployoes

The Group Responsible Sourcing Policy was
updated and reissued

Tramning on GDPR was delvered to
employees as appropriate

Our plans for 2019

* All employees will be required o complete
the 2019 Code of Canduct traming programme

= A Learning Management Systern will be
implemented, facilitating the delivery of
eth'cs and other trairing

Q00
<y

*

-

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

In our autonomous and collaborative structure
our operating businesses actively engage via a
range of activitics that are ¢uturally appropriate
for the business These include: meetings with
employee representative bodies, long service
awards, an employee App, holiday parties

and employee assistance programrmes. Our
businesses assess engagement at a local level
via engagement surveys, providing feedback 1o
the participants and develop action plans based
on the feedback As well as our annual Spring
Roadshow when members of the Exacutive
Team visit all our sites o preésent a nusiness
update, cur operations hold regular meetngs
with grouas of employees such as All-hands
meetings, Behavioural Safely sessions, Values
workshops and Kazen events.

Havirg considered the increased emphasis
of the new UK Corporate Governance Code
2018 on stakeholder engagement, the Board
has nominated Celia Baxter 83 a designated
non-executive Director responsble for
engagemaont with the woarkforce

G

SUPPLY CHAIN

Cur businesses have communicated the
requirements of the Group Responsible
Saurcirg Policy to key supplers

COMMUNITY

&

COMMURNITY GIVING

We continue te establish positive and meaningful
relationships with all the communities 1inwhich
Senior operates and provide financial suppert o
iocal chanties and good causes. Our businesses
cOMMtinUE to INteract IN a positive way with
communities local ta therr facinty
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DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Sen‘or plc s committed t@ ensunng equal
opportaities, fairness of treatment, dignity,
work-life balance and the elimination of all
forms of discrimination in the workplace for
employecs and job applicants Senior aims
1o create a working envirenmeant in which alt
meviduals can make best use of their skills,
free from discrnunation or harassment, and
i which all decisions are based on mer't

The Group's Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
policy 1s contained wthin the Code of Corduct
and requires Sentar's emplovess 1o treat
cvaryone they meet In the course of business
with respect, farness ana digruty, Employess
arg required to camply with the Code of Conduct
ard the policies included theren. Dunng the
vear, all employees recevad training on the
Code of Conduct We have made a commitmant
to provide a diverse and inclusive workplace for
example by having policies and procedures that
suppor: the attrachion, selection, retention and
promotion of people from a diverse range of
candidates based on skills and ment nadation,
Senior's operating busnesses adopted local
policies as a means of helping to achiave

these ams.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT IN INDIA

At Senior Flexorucs New Delhi, 1tis our firm
belief to give back to society through engagirg
with our local cornmunity, which also supports
two of Senior's Corporate Responsibility
Objectives: Employee Engagement and
Community Grng.

Quraim s to improve the qualty of Iife thraugh
effective parthershin on a sustainable basis

Keeping the above objectives inmind, we
collaborated with a government school 1n a
deprived area of the Haryana state to resclve
1ssues of unsafe drinking water causing water
borne diseases and related health 1ssues to
850 students.

A water purfication systenr with capacity
ot 250 Iitres per nour was installed with
maintenance back up o ensure the
sustamaoility of tho project,

This has brought Immense delight to school
students along with the elimmation of water
borne diseases.

A formal inauguration coremony was organised
by the school princinal on 17 December 2018
which had active participation from the school
students and the village representatives who
were present for the thanksgivirg

This was a moment of pride for all the Senior
Indiz employees.

The table below shows e diverstty of the
Senior Group's Board of Directors, Executive
Committae and Operational Senior Maragement
n 2018 by gender.

Gender
Male Female
Total Group 81% 19%
Board of Directors 57% 43%
txecutive Committee  B6% _33%
Operatk;ﬁ;a\ Senior
Management 868% 14%

The Board sccks to ensure a diverse workforce
that supports all employees, irrespective of
age, disabllity, gender, race, religion or sexuaf
onentation. We will not accept any form of
unlawful discnmination against cur colleagues
or any third parties be they potental employees,
customers, subcontractors, supphers or
members of the public All employees have

an equal chance to contribute and to achieve
tha'r potential, We strive 16 retlect the diversity
of the commurities we work in, at afl levels
across our workforce Senior plc s an equal
opportunities ermployer

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010
{Gender Pay Gap Information} Regulations 2017,
Senior publishes its Gender Pay Gap report

on the Company's website,

WATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM
WITH CAPAGITY OF

250 Iitres per hour




ENVIRONMENT

O

€0, TO TURNOVER

Ervironmental management remains a strong N A
focus Ir our businesses We achieved a reduction \WATER CONSHUMPTION 20
of 8% n our carbon ntensity {CO: per £ We contnue to monitor ard renort on water i EE N
revenue). as well as a reduction of 7% in the usage. Senior's basinesses Incorporate water o
10%a. ca'bon emited (CO.8) saving Intiatives as they continue o refine g
It s a requirement far ali Senior businesses 1o production processes. In 2018 our waler ntensity 3 *f
attawn an accreditation to 1SO 14000 The last :wo  INereased from 028 2017 16 0.31 for 2018 I
busiresses achieved full accreditation in 2018 fegalitre/Ern turnover) Thisis attnb.ted n the #
nrair 1o Increased activity In some oraduc: ines, .
o0 300% T3 L XA NG 207 2018
D @ ENERGY INTENSITY
In 2018 we saw a small ncrease (1%} n our In 2018, we recycled over 92% of our waste i T a4
absolute Scope 1 (direct) carbor: emissions wih a number of our businesses achieving 1,6; LRy
compared to 2017, the increase may be 7610 wasts to landfill where local conditions are Vi
attrinuted to heating buldings in lower winter favourable to recycing opportunities. This s a .
temperatures in some of our larger businesses resul: of a concerted effort by the businesses 7 i
Total Scope Z lindirect) emissions have reduced 0 oo ne opportumities to mininise wasta 3 :CU
n 2018, down around 8%, this comes iargely and where possble mvestigate new recycling ©
from reduced carbon conversion factors in some oppor tunifies. The total volume of waste 0
of our la-ger businesses. recycled by the Group in 2018 increased by O e
In terms of carbon ntensity we have seen 9% compared to 2017,
further improvements this year, atmbutfed o WATER CONSUMPTION
a combination of continuing energy saving
intiatives and rmore favourable carbon conversion hee
factors. The intensity measure has reduced from o4 }{:’Fé;ilj"‘:{;_‘*
66 tonnes CO e/fm revenue in 2017 10 60 a0 | o, 8 i et
tonnes CO-e/Em revenus in 2018, down 8%. L, e 3 330 0.31
Tooan .
Our Scope 1 and 2 emissions have been : S o
independently venfied in accordance with Z oo
the International Standard on Assurance 0=
Engagements 3410 "Assurance engagements e
on greenhouse gas statements” (ISAE 3410} rm
TUT 3 213 200% 26 201U 2018
Senior submits data and informaton re ated to
Climate Change on an annual basis ta the CDP.
This means that we must detal how we manaye
our emissions of carbon and describe in detal
how we consider carbon and the environment APPROVAL
in the way we conduct cur business and plan The Strategic Report from pages 1 10 37
for the future CDP s a not-for-profit chanty that ) ;
runs tne global disclosure system for investors was approved by e Board of Direstors on
. . ’ 1 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by
compan.es, cities, states and regions to manage
their environmental impacts Over the past
15 years they have created a system which is
used by a broad spectrum of leading comparies DAVID SQUIRES
and nstitutions GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE .
SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Fnergy etficiency (MWhH/Em revenue) B 204 202 194 184 171 169
Scope 1 GHG (1CQe) 9,466 11,475 12,092 10,906 10,348 10,414
Scope 2 GHG tCO. e} 51,151 56,787 56,482 58,578 556,941 51,226
Scope 3 GHG (tCO;el 5,631 2.796 4130 4,089 4,123 3,738
Tonnes CO, emitted per £m of revenue 86 47 8614 85 638 8128 [315] 60
Water usage {in megalitres! N 275 313 264 288 268 332
Percentage of waste recyclad or recovered 1% B1% 82% 81% 91% 92%
Water usage per Em of revenue 036 0.28 031 0.30 026 0.31
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. IANKING

CHAIRMAN

Appointment to the Board

lan K'ng joined the Board on 13 November
2017 as a non-executive Director and becare
Chairman in Apnl 2018.

External Appointments

lan is the senior independent director of

Schroders plc, having been appainted 1o its

Board on 1 January 2017, the lead non-oxeoutive
’ dirgctor for the Departrent for Transport and

1. IAN KING 2 CELIABAXTER a senior adviser to the Board of Greacher

Shacklock LLP

Previous Experience

He was Chief Executive of BAE Systerns plc
from Septemoer 2008 to Jure 2017, having
been onginally appointed to its Board as Chief
Operating Officer, UK and Rest of the World
11 2007 He also served as a non-executive
director and senior ndependent director of
Rotork plc until Jung 2014,

Qualifications
; - Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
4. BINDI FOYLE Managerment Accountants.

2. CELIA BAXTER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR*

Appointment to the Board

Celia Baxter joined the Board on 2 September
2013 and became Chair of the Remunreraticn
Committee in December 2013

External Appointments
She Is a non-execunive director of NV Bekaert
S.A. and RHI Magnes.ta NV

Previous Experience

Her early HR career was with Ford Motor
Cormpany ard KPMG She has held axacutive
HR positicns with Hays ple, Enterprise Ol Pl
and Tate & Lyle Ple, and most recently was
Director of Group HR of Bunzl plc.

5. GILES KERR 6. DAVID SQUIRES

e

Qualifications

Doctor of Philosophy (FhD) and Member
of the Chartered Institute of Personnel
and Development.

7. MARK VERNON 8. RAJIV SHARMA

£
5. ANDREW BODENHAM
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3. SUSAN BRENNAN
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board

Susan Brennan jo ned the Board In
January 2016.

External Appointments

She s the Execur ve Vice-President ard
the Chief Operations Officer of Bloom
Energy Corporation

Previous Experience

She has more than 25 years of manufactunng
experence, ncluding automotive vehicle ard
components assembly. She served as VF of
Manufactunng at Nissan North Amernca, Ing
and as Director of global manufacturing

at Ford. where she lea a global busiress
off'ce for Ford's assembly, powertram and
stamping plants.

Qualifications
BSc in Micrabiotogy and MBA.

4. BINDIFOYLE

GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
Appointment to the Board

Bind Foyle joined the Beard as an Executive
Director on 3 May 2017 and becarme Group
Finance Director on 1 July 2017,

She joined Serier as Group Minancial Controller
n January 20086, a role she held urtif July 2014
when she became respons ble for the Group's
Investor Refations activities. Prior 1o her
appointment as an Execunve Director, Bindi
was Director of Investar Helations and
Corporate Communications for the Group.

Previous Experience

Prior to joining Seror, Bindi held senior inance
roles at Amersham plg and GE, having
previously worked with BDO Stoy Hayward

Qualifications
BSc (Hons) in Economics & Accounting and
a Chartered Accountant.

5. GILES KERR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board

Giles Kerr joined the Board on 2 September
2013 and became Chairman of the Audit
Committee in April 2014,

External Appointments

In Decernber 2018, he was apported

a non-executive director of Abcam plc

He Is also a non-executive director of
Adaptimmune Therapeutics ple, PayPoint plc
and Anx Bioscience plc

Previous Experience

In 2018, he stepped down as Director

of Finance of Ox*ord University ard as
non-executive director of BTG Ple. Heis a
former non-exacutive director of Victrex plc
Giles held a number of positions with
Amersnam plo within firance and corporate
development, cumimating i h's rote as Groupn
Fmarnce Drector He was formerly a Pariner
with Arthur Andersen & Co

Qualifications
BA {Honst in Economics ana a Crartered
Accountant

6. DAVID) SQUIRES

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Appointment to the Board

Dawd Squires was appointed to the Board
or ¥ May 2015 and became Group Crief
Executive on 1 June 2015

Previous Experience

David started his career in the oil industry
warkmg for Shell; however, most of his working
life has been spent In the agrospace INdustry,
initiaily wath Hughes Arrcraft Company inow
Raytheon}, then GEC-Marcon/BAE Systems,
Eaton Corporation, and Cobham ple, before
Jomnng Senor plecin May 2015

Davic has held senior posts in operations

and procurement, business development,
programme rnanagement and ganeral
management. Prior to joining Senior ple, David
was Chief Operating Officor of Cobham ple.

Qualifications

BA in Business Management Studies,
a Fellow of the Chartered institute of
Purchasing and Supply and Fellow of
the Royal Aeronautical Socisty

7. MARK VERNON

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR*

Appointment to the Board

Mark Vernon joined the Board in Apnl 2011
and became Senior Independent Director in
Apnl 7016.

External Appointments

He has been a Director of LigTech Internaticnal,
Inc since 2013 and was appointed its Chairman
in July 2018

Previous Experience

He was the Group Chief Executive of
Spirax-Sarco Engineerng plc untl his
retirernent in January 2014. He has had

a long career in the industrial engineerirg
industry, serving previously as Group
Vice-President of Flowserve's Flow Control
Business Unit, Vice-President o Durco
International and President of Valtek
Imternational, a global controls busincss

Qualifications
BSe i Chermustry.

8. RAJIV SHARMA

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment to the Board

Raijiv Sharma was aopointed to the
Board with effect from 1 January 2019,

External Appointments

Rajiv has been the Group Chief Execut ve
of Coats Group ple since January 2017,
having served as an executive director
since March 7015 Coats 1s a leading
ndustnal thread marufactarer with a
business spanning 50 countnes, including
MNarth America and Europe and with 2
growing presence In Asia

Previous Experience

During hus career, Rajiv has held serior roles
In var-ous companies including Honeywell,
GF and Shell

Qualifications
BTeck in Mechanicat Engineenng and MEA,
Marketing & Strategy.

9. ANDREW BODENHAM

GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY
Appointment to the Board

Andrew Bodenham joined as Group Company
Secretary 1nh 2002, He acts as Secretary to
the Senior plc Board and s Committees and
also sits on the Group's Treasury Committee
and the Exacutive Committee

Qualifications
LLB {Hons} and a Chartered Secretary.

CHARLES BERRY

Charles Berry was non-executive
Chairman and Chairman of the
Nominatuons Committee untll he retired
from the Board at the conclusion of the
Company's Annual General Meetng in
Anril 2018.

"Cela Baxter w ll suceeed Mark Vernen as Senir
Indeperaent Mor-executise Director fallowing the
close ot the 2019 AGM

FNIOR PLC ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2012 39



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1. DAVID SQUIRES 2. DAVID BEAVAN

3. ANDREW BODENHAM

il

1. JOE MOCKUS 8. MIKE SHEPPARD

9. MICHELLE YORKE
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1 DAVID SQUIRES
See mography or page 29

2. DAVID BEAVAN

Dawid took up the role of D rector of Business
Develepment & Strategy tfarmerly the Head of
Business Development! in Aprit 2014, He joined
the Group in 2004, when he was appointed

the Chief Executive of Senior Acrospace BWT
Fror to joining Serior, David had general
management experience within autormctive and
commercial aircrat Tier 1 suppher industnes

3. ANDREW BODENHAM
See bicgraphy on page 39.

4 LAUNIE FLEMING

A US cruzen, he has worked for the Group for
over 20 years. Launie joined the Executive
Committee upon his appointment as Chief
Executive of Aerospace Fluid Systems in
September 2008, Prigr to that appointrment,
he had been Chiet Executive of Senor
Aerospace SSP.

5. BiNDIFOYLE
See wgraphy on page 39

6. JANE JOHNSTON

Jane joined the Group on 16 May 2016,

A Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Personnel
ard Development, Jane kas considerable
experence heaaing un HR functions across
arange of global geographies. She kas worked
in a number of different sectors including
technology, drug developrment, construction,
and professional services and, phor to joining
Senior, was Group HR Director at Pace plc.



1. JOE MOCKUS

A US citizen, he jomed the Group ir October
201G as the Chief Cxecdtive of Serior Flexonics
Bartlet: ana subsequently added responsibility
for the Senwor Flexorics businesses in Mexico
and Ird a. He was apooirted Chief Executive of
Aerospace Structures n February 2017 Prior 1o
joining Senior, Joe served as Presiden: and COO
of Fernco Holdings LLC

8 MIKE SHEPPARD

A US cimizen, he has worked for the Growup for
over 30 years and is the Chef Fxecutive of
Flexonics. A gualified engineer, Mike's previous
positons within the Group Included operationa
roles at the two largest Flexonics businesses,
Pathway and Bart'ett.

9. MICHELLE YORKE

Michkelle took up the role of Director of Risk
and Compliance in September 2018, Michelle
joined the Group in Apnl 2016 as Head of Risk
and Assurance. Prior to joining Senior, Michelle
tas mare than twenty years of experience

ir the aerospace sector having heid a

variety of leadership roles Michelle 1s

a Chartered Accountant.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee, although nat
farmaily appointed as 8 Committee of the
Board, oversees the runn.ng ot all Senior
Grouo operations.

The purpose of the Executive Commitzee
15 1o assist the Group Chief Executive n
the performance o his duties, Inc uding

+ the developrent and implementat an
of strategy, operational plans, pohcies,
procedures and budgets,

the monitoring of operating and financial
perforrance;

the assessment and contral of risk,

the priontisaaon and allocation of
resources, and

the monitorirg of compett've forces

n each area of operatior.

The Committee is also responsible for

the consderation of all other matters not
specificaly reserved for consideration by
the Board. A report on the actwvities of the
Executive Committee 1s provided to the
Board by the Group Chief Executive at each
Board meeting.

The Committee 1s compnsed of two members
of the Board, Dawvid Squires and Bind Foyle,
together with Launie Fierming (Chief Executive
of Aerospace Fluid Systems), Joe Mockus
[Chief Executive of Aerospace Structures),
Mike Sheppard {Chief Executive of Flexonics),
David Beavan {Director of Business
Development & Strategy), Andrew Bodenham
{Group Company Secretaryl, Jane Johnston
{Group HR Dirgctor) and Michelle Yorke
{Dirgctor of Risk and Compliance).

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT (HSE)
COMMITTEE

The HSE committee 1 also not formally
appointed as a Committee of the Board,

but officially oversees alt health, safety and
environmertal matters across the Group.

Its Terrns of Refererce can be fourd on

the Company's website

Trroughout 2018, the members of

this committee were David Squires
IChairmian of the commuitteal, Mike Sheppard
{Chiet Executve of Flexonigs), Joe Mockus
{Chief Executive of Aercspace Structures),
Launie Fleming (Chief Execut've of Aerospace
Fluid Systemst anc Mark Roden {Goup HSE
& Sustanability Director), The committee
met three trmes dunng the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their Report and
supplementary reports, tcgether with
the audited Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
Senior pic1s a holding company The nature
of the Group's operations and ‘ts principal
activities are set out in the Strategic Report
on pages 2 to 37, its Group undertakings are
shown on pages 123 to 125, The Strategic
Report includes datails of the rmarket overview,
key growth drivers, Scnior's business model,
strategic objectives, risks and uncertaintias,
key performance indicators and a sum nary
of the Group's 2018 performance

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

No acguisitions or disposals were comp'etad
during the year. On 15 February 2019, the Group
sold Its Flexonics operating company In France,
Senior Flexonics Blais SAS Details of the
disposal can be found in Note 37 on page 114.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the year are showr in the
Consalidated Incorne Staterment on page 78

Anintenm dividend of 219 pence per share
12017 - 2.0b pence) has already been paid and
the Directars recommend a 2018 final dividend
of & 23 pence per share (2017 - 4.30 pence).
The final dividend, if anproved, will be payable
on 31 May 2019 to shareholders on the register
at the ciose of business on 3 May 2019. Th's
would bring the total dividend for the year to
742 perce per sharg (2017 - 6.95 pance)

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has one class of ordinary

shares, which carries no night to a fixed income.
Each share carvies the right 10 vote at general
meetings of the Company. The Company
1Issued no rew shares m 2018

The total number of shares in ssue at
31 December 2018 was 419,418,082

Further details on share capitat are given
in Note 25,

Detalls of employee share plans are set out
i Note 34,
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Trere are no speaific restrictions on the size of a
holding nor on the transfer of shares, whick are
botn governed by the general provisions of the
Company's Articies of Association and prevaiting
legislation. The Directors arg not aware of any
agreements between holders of t:e Company’s
shares that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or or voting nghts. No
person has any special nghts of control over the
Company's share capital, and a'l issued shares
arg fully pad.

With regard to thae appointment and replacement
of Directors, the Company 1s governed by its
Artcles of Association, the UK Coroorate
Governance Code 2016 (the Corporate
Gavernance Cadel, the Companies Act 2006
and re'ated tegisiation. The Artcles may

he arrended by special resolution of the
sharebo'ders The powers of Directors are
descnbert in the Matters Reserved far the
Senior plc Board, which nray be found on the
Company's wabsite Each year, shareholder
approval 1s sought to renew the Board's
authonity to allot relevant secuntigs.

There are also a number of other agreements
that take efect, alter or terminate upon a
change of control of the Corrpany, such as
cammercial contracts, bank loan agreements,
property [2ase arrangements, and employee
share plans. Nene of these are considered to be
signiticant in terms of therr bkely impact on the
busness of the Group as a whole Furthermore,
the Directors are not gware of any agreements
between the Company and its Directors or
employees that provide for compensation

‘or loss of office or employment that cccurs
because of a takeover bid.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Mote 20 contains disclosures on
financial nstruments

DIRECTORS

Detals of the Directors wha served throughout
the year can be found on pages 38 and 39.
The Directors’ interests in the shares of

the Comipany are \ncluded in the Directors”
Remuneration Report on page 689 No Director
has any interest in contracts w'th the Company
or ts subsidiary undertakings As shown on
page 39, Susan Bronnan is Exeeoutive Vice
President and the Cheef Operations Officer of
Bloom Energy Corperation. Notz 53 provides
detads of the contract Bloom Encray has with
a Group subsidiary. Procedures have been
adopted by Bloom Energy which mean Susan
Brennan has no involverment in this cortract.

The provisions of the Carporate Governance
Code reguire that all Directors of FTSE 350
companies should be subyect to annual election
by shareholders. Celia Baxter, Susan Brennan,
Bindi Foyle, Giles Kerr, lan King, Dawid Sguires
and Mark Vernon wil' aif stard for re-election at
the AGM to be held In April 2019, Rajiv Sharma,
who was apportad a Director towards the end
of 2018, will stanc for election at the 2019 AGM,

BOARD DIVERSITY

Senior remains committed to all aspects of
Board drversity including gender, expenerce,
background ard personai attributes and will
keep under review its balance and gcompositon
The appointments of Celia Baxter to the Board
in 2013, Susan Brennan in 2016, and Bindi Foyle
in 2017 mean that Senior has strong female
representation on 1ts Board.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

Qualifying third-party indemnity provisians for
the benctit of the Direginrs were roenawed by
the Company during the year and ramain in
force at the date of this Report.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2018, the Group Incurred £29.7m 12017
— £25.6mj} on research and development.
Product development and improving
manufacturing processes represert the
prmary focus of the Group's research
and development acttes



POLITICAL DONATIONS
No poitical donations were mace by the
Group dur'ng te year

EMPLOYEES

The Group promotes the aissemination of
relevant nformaton, 50 that employees are
kep: regularly advised of Group and local

operatonal develepments. Where appropnate,

local brief'ng sessions aro held corcerning
such matters as Groud development,
corporate ethics, health and satety, pension
plans and healthcare benefits

Senior provides support, traiming and

development opportunities to all our employees
irrespective of whether o7 not they are aisabled.

We give full and farr consideration to disabled
applicants, and where an existing employee
hacomes disabled during therr employment,
we will make every effort to ensure they are
able 1o continue working for Senior

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
The Group has followed the reporang
reguirements on greenhouse gas emissions,

So far as 1s known, no other shareholder had a
notifiable interest ameountirg 1o 3% or more of

the issued share cap'tal of the Compary, and
the Directors bebeve that the close company
prov siors of e Income and Corooration
Taxes Act 1988 (as amendedi do rot apply
to the Company

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The statement of compliance watn the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2016 1ssued by the Firancial Reporting
Counctl 1s set out on page 44

REMUNERATION REPORT AND POLICY
The Annual Report on Remuneration s to be
put to shareholder vote at the forthcoming
AGM. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy
was approved by shareholders at the

2018 AGM.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The MNotice of Mecting descrines the business

o be considered at the AGM (¢ be held at
11.30 am on Friday 26 Apnl 2019 at Glazier's

AUBITOR

¢ Each of the persons who s a D rector of
the Compary at the date of approval of this
Annual Report con‘irms that so far as the
Director s aware, tneve 1s no relevart audit
information of which the Comparny's Audite”
s unaware, and

the Director has taken al steps that he/she
ought to nave taken as a Drector in order
1o make himself/herselt aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's Auditor s aware of
that rformation.

This information 1s given and shotld be
interpreted In accordarce with the provisions
of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

In 2018, the Group undartook a formal terde-
process for its external audit function, with a
se.ected number of audit firms receving an
invitation to tender. Deloitte LLP, the Group's
external auditor from 2000 to 2018, was not
invited to tender due to the fongevity of its
appointment. Following conclusion of the
tender process, the Board recommended

contamed 1n the Companies Act 2006
{Strategic Report and D rectors” Report)
Regulations 2013; details of the Group's
greerhouse gas emissions can be found
on page 37,

MAJOR SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company has been notiied that the
following shareholders were intergsted in
3% or more of the 1ssued share capiial of

Hall, 9 Montague Close, London Bridge,
London SE1 80D,

ACOUASITION OF THE COMPANY'S

OWN SHARES

The Cormpany purchased no ordinary shares

of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company
during the year. 2.3m {2017 — 0.1m) shares were
purchased by the Senior plc Employee Berefit
Trust In the year 1o satisfy the future vestirg of

that KPMG LLP be appointed as the Group's
axternal auditor for the Tinancial year
commencing 1 January 201/, KPMG's
reappointment was approved by sharghaldes

at the 2018 AGM.
-'-3 X
fgtebo

By Order of the Board

ANDREW BODENHAM

the Company: executive share awards and employee share GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY
%.al  plans. At the end of the year, the Directors had 1 March 2079
12 Fen’;{?{; authonty, under the shareholders’ resolutions
— daed 27 Apnt 2018, to make market purchases
Aberdeen Standard Investments 643 4f the Company’s sharcs up to an aggregate
BlackRock 501 nominal amount of £42m (2017 — £42m), which
Fidelity International 4.54  represented approximately 10% of the issued
Alantra Asset Management 4.06  share capital of the Compary A resolution to
[égaL & Gé'heré\' |nvegtmemf renew this autkority will be proposed at the
Managemenit 369 forthcoming AGM.
Norges Bank Investment
Management 3.54
Janus Henderson Investors - 3.82
Vanguard Group 338
Alang Global tnvestars o 3.36
Mensarus 304
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

IAN KING
CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

| am pleased to present the Group's Corporate
Governance Repart for 2018 on behall of

the Board This report 1s intended to provide
sharehalders with a clear and meaningfur
explarauon of what governance means to
the Board and how this guides its decision-
rmaking process {Good corporate governance
IS given prominence across the Group: the
Board sets the tone and takes the lead on

all governance matters,

The Board remains committed 1o ensunng

the long-term sustainable growth of the Group,
which s key 1o 1he set of core Principles set out
in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,

IAN KING
CHAIRMAN

CORPORATE GOVERMANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report describes
the manner in which the Company has applied
the Main Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016 (the Corporate
Governance Code).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has been :n compliance with
the Principles set out ir Socnons A to E of the
Corporate Governance Code 2016 throughout
2018 and moved towards full compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018,
which became effective on 1 January 2019,

APPLICATION OF THE PRINCIPLES OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Principles of good corporate governance
are detaied in the Corporate Governance Code
under five areas. These Principles have each
been reviewed by the Directars and are
commented upon as follows:
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Section A: Leadership

The Board 1s structured under a non-gxecutive
Chairman, and currently includes two executive
Directors and five independent non-executive
Directors, who were selected for appointment
because of their diverse experience. In addition,
the Company has an Executive Committee,
chaired ny the Group Chief Executve, compnsing
the: executive Directors and other key executives
within the Group Detals of the members of the
Board and of the Executive Commitice are
summansed on pages 38 to 41,

The Directors consider that an effective Board
1S 1n place which leads and conirols the Group,
with ¢ ear divisions of responsibiility between
the Board and Executive team

The Board 1s led by the Chairman, lan King, who
was independent upon appointment, The Board
considers all non-executive Directors of the
Crmpany the ndepenaent faving fakan into
account a list of refatonshios and circumstances
that may appear relevant in determining
ndependence, in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code The Crar
encourages open and honest discussions
between Directors, both within and outsice
Board meetings, and ensures no Director or
group of Directors exerts pressure or dominates
the Beard's decision-making.

The Beard is responsible for setting the strategy
of the Group, including the setting of commercial
stratagy and the approval of Group budgets and
financial staternents. It also approves significant
financial and contractual commitments made
by the Group. The Beard's Terms of Reference
more fully describe the responsibilities

of the Board and may be found on the
Company's websize.

The Boara delegates a certain number of 1ts
responsipllities 1o the Audit, Remuneration,
Norminations, and Health, Safety & Environment
Committees. The Group Chief Executive,
together with the Executive Commuttee, is
rosponsible for the implemertation of the
daoisions made by the Board and for the
day-to-day conduct of the Group's operations

The Beard has ultimate accountabihity tor the
Group's nisk management process, whichis
described on pages 20w 725

The Board met formally on a regular basis,

ten times .0 2018, In addition, there were

three meetings of the Audit Committee n

2018, together with three meetings of the
Remuneration Committes and four meetings

of the Mominations Committee. A table showing
Board and Committee meeting membership
and attendance 1s showr on page 45. Other
Committees are appointed by the Board to deal
with treasury matters, disclosure martters and
specfic 1ssues such as acquisitons and disposais.

The minutes arising from all Committes
meetings are made availlable to the Board.
Pracedures are in place 1o ensure that a'l
Directors are properly briefed, so that decisions
taken by the Board are based on the fuliest,
(in-tg-date, availabie nfermation. The nore-
execdtive Directors are encouraged to visit

the Group's operations to mect the local
management teams and discuss any issues
that they may be facing. At every Board
rmeeting, there are reviews of health, safety
and enwvironmental performance, and operational,
‘irancial and administrative matters, social and
eth cal issues, the agreement of budgets anc
levels of insurance cover are revicwed
whenever approprate

There 1s a procedure by wihich all Directors can
obtain irdependent professional advice at the
Company’s expense in furtherance of ther
duties, if required.

To enable the members of the Board and its
Committees to discharge ther duties effoctively,
the Chairman ensures that accurate and clear
information is provided to alt Diectors in a timely
manner in advance of meetngs, The Group
Company Secretary supports the Board to
ensure that it has in place appropriate policies,
processes, tme and resources to enabie 1t

1o operate efficiently ard effectively



Section B: Effectiveness

The Campany's Nominatons Committee
leads the procass for Board appointments

and supervises management development
and succession planming It also makes
recommendations to the Board 01 all new Board
appoirtments and re appointrents, “Lrther
detals of wiick can be found on page 48

The Committee, which consists entirely of
non-execltive Directors, 1s chaired by lar King,
1ts composition 1s shown below, vt the
addition of Rajwv Sharma from 1 January 2019.

Dwersizy, gender, social and ethric backgrounds
and personal skit 5 and abdiues are taken nto
account during the recruitment process 1o
ensure the Board 1s well balanced and
appropnate for the Group; the Board's policy on
diversity and nclusion 1s described on page 36.
In agddition, the Nomratons Committee seeks
confirnration that candidates under consideration
would have sufficient tme to carry out their
duties as a Directar of the Board, if apponted.
Time commizment of continuing Birectors is
kept under review.

Appointraents to the Board are made following a
rigorous, formal, recruitment process supported
by professicnal consultants. In 2018, Korn Ferry
conducted an external search (o assist the
Board's recrutment process to find suitable
candidates for the role of an additional non-
executive Director. Korn Ferry has no other
connection with the Company or its Direcrors.
Having considered a number of strong
candidates, the Norminations Committee
recommended to the Board that Rapv Sharma
be appointed to the Beard on 1 January 2019,

his appaintmen: was formally approved by

the Boarc. The biographies of ab- Directors

are provided on page 39 The work of the
Narmnations Comnmittee 1s described on

page 48. All Directors recelve induction uoon
Jjoining the Board and are encouraged o update
ther krowladge and skills on a frequent bas's.
[N 2018, al Directors receved trairung on
statutory matters

Ihe Directors are cognisant of the fact that

the Board, and ts Conimittees, should

have the appropnate combinatior of skills,
expenence and knowledge to enakble them to
carry out therr duties effectvely Membership
of the Board ard its Committees is kept under
regular revievy and refreshed when appropriate,
taking irto account the Directors’ lengths of
service and their ability to devote sufficiert time
to Company matters,

The Board undertakes an annual self cvaluation
process and in 2018 this was carned out with
the support of Independent Audit Limited. The
2018 evaluation process found the composition
of the Board ard vis Committees to be
appropriate. The evaluation findings showed
that the Board operated effectively throughout
the period and made some suggestions for
additional focus. The findings will be used to
help support the development of the Board as
the Group contnues with its strategy to grow
arofitabilty, both arganicatly and by acquisition
Independent Audt Lirmited has na other
conneclion with the Company or its Directors

As in prior years, in 2018 the Chairman undertook
a review of the performance of all the Directors

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
The membership and attendance record of the full Board Meatings and its full Commuttee Meetings during 2018 are shown in the table below,

in office dunrg the year, ts process involved
individual appraisal interviewvs. The results of the
evaluation process are used to improve Board
performance ana to oetermine the training
reeds of each of the Directors Mark Vernon, i
consultation vath the cther Directors, undertook
an evaluation of the Charrman's performance,
and concluded that tan K ng provided effective
leadership of the Board. Based on the results

of the pe-formance evaluation orocess, the
Chamman considers that all members of

the Board, the Board collectively, and its
Cormmittees, cortinue 1o contribute effective v
to tne running of the Company

Details of the Directors’ externa statutory
appoiniments can be *ound in their biographes
on pages 33 ana 38 The Board believes that
the Directors’ exocrience of working with other
companies adds value to their contribution to
the Compary's Board meetings. In compliance
with the Corporate Goverrance Code,

all cortinuing Directors offered themselves

far election or re-election at the Company's
2018 AGM. All Directors who wers ir office

in 2018 will again offer themseives for
re-election at the 2019 AGM and our recently
appomted Director will offer himself for
election. The resolutions o be put t©
shareholders at the 2019 AGM can be

found in the Notce of Meeting, which

15 avalable on the Company's website

The Board confirms that in 2018 all Directors
Pad made a positive contributior to the running
of the Company and helieves they will continue
to work 1o ensure its long-term success.

Nominations

Main Board Audit Committee Committee Remuneration Committee
Charles Berry/ Charles Berry/
Chair lan King Giles Kerr lan King Celia Baxter
Total number of meetings 10 3 4 3
Charles Berry" 2/2 - /2 111
Cela Baxter 106710 33 474 3/3
Susan Brenran 9/10 2{3 4/4 3/3
Bindi Foyle 10/10 -
Giles Kerr 910 ’ 33 3/4 273
lan King™" 1010 - 4/4 _3/3
David Squires 1010 - - - “
Mark Vernon 10/10 2/3 444 3/3

110 Charles Berry retirad from the Baard on 27 40012018
121 fan Kirg becare Chairman o 27 Apel 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Section C: Accountability

The Board determ'nes the nature and extent

of the significant actions nacessary to achieve
s strategic objectives and maintains a sound
systcr of Internal control. The Company's Audit
Committea reports Lo and, for cartain matters,
advises the Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee Report on pages 49 to 52 describes
ne role and activities of the Audit Commitiee,
together with the significant 1ssues that st

cons dered in relation 1o the 2018 Financial
Staterments and its relatonsh g with the internal
and exterral auditors. Details of the Group's
approach 1o nsk management and its Risk

and Assurance Framewaork can be found on
pages 20 1o 25.

COMMURNICATING THE CODE OF CONDUCT
AND OPERATING WITH INTEGRITY

In Apnl 2018, the executive Drectors published
an updated booklet for issuc to all employees
and relevant Lhird parties, explaining the Group’s
revised Code of Conduct (the Code} and
Senior's Values; the latter are showr on page 12
The booklet includes a message from the Group
Chief Executive, explaining that 1t s his
unshakeable belief that how you do business

IS as important as what you do in business.

The booklet contains work-related scenanos,
togother with a selection of gquestions and
answors, (o help employees to unders*and the
Code and relate it to their individual rales and
warking environment. Copies of the Code are
1ssued to all new employees and reissued
periodically o ongoing employees to rerming
them of the required levet of conduct.

Senior trains ns employees on the requirements
of the Code upon induction, educating them
on what they can and cannot do, and how to
address any ethical dlemmas they may face

A compulsory 2018 Code of Conduct onl ne
Training course was rolled out across the Group
0 all employees in 2018, together with traiming
on Ant-Brbery ard Corruption. Training on

the General Data Protection Regulation

was also proviged o all UK ana relevant
Qverseas employees.
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Between them, tre Group Chief Execulive,
the Group F'nance Director and the rest of

the Execative Committee vis:t all of the
Group's operations on an annual basis and
make presentat.ons o lecal senor management,
reinforcing the Code and the importance ot
maintaining an abso ute commitmert to the
highest standards of ethics and a 7ero tolerance
towards bribery and corruption The Board
verifies compliance with the Code through

1ts internal audit programme, ersunng that
employees have received the mandatory
training and that the Group's businesses
operate with integnty at all times and in
compliance with the Code.

Operating with integnity and 1n an etkical
manner bullds trust with custermers and other
stakeholders and underping the Board's
strategic abjectives,

HUMAN RIGHTS

The Groun recognises the importance of the
Universal Beclaration of Hurnan Rights and
adheres to the core principles and values
defined within 1t. The majority of countnes in
which Senior aperates have their own laws
hanning child labour and promating human
nghts Seniar monitors the ages of its workforce
across the world to ensure compliance and
identity any potennal succession 1ssuGs

Senionis committed to preventing s'avery and
human trafficking in its corporate activites and
throughout its supply cham In 2017, in order to
raise awareness oF modern slavery 1ssues, all
employeos recewved trainng on “Supporting
Hurman Rignts Modern Slavery Act” to help
identify and prevent slavery and human
trafficking Additional work was undertaken
during 2018 with Senior’s supply chain to
further reduce the potential exposure.

Senior does not restnict any of its employees i
any of the countries In which it operates ‘rom
Jjoirming a trade union if they wish to do sa. Semor
also works closely with ts suppliers to ensure
mat they at least nreet internationatly recognised
mirimum requirements for workers’ welfase and
conditions of employmert.

REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING
CONCERNS AND WHI{STLE-BLOWING
The Company encourages its employees to
discuss any elwcal concerns that they may
have witn local management, or at Group level
if more appropriate

As part of its internal control orocedures, the
Company has a Whistle-blowing Policy that is
commuricated throughout the Graup Th's
policy provdes employees with the opporiunity
to report suspected unethical or illegal corporate
conduc confidentially and anonymousty.

All reports of suspected unethical or illegal
carporate conduct are independently
investigated and tracked from inception o
resolution and, where necessary, actions are
taken to rectiy any weakness in systems that
may have been idertified. These actions, and
the overall integrity of the reporting system,

are subject to regular scrutiny by the Audit
Committee. This process is also avalable to
third partes, such as supphors and customers.
Subject o confidenuaiity considerations, the
outcome of each Investigation is provided,
insofar as 1t 1s possible, to the complainant.

Mark Vernor is the Senior Independent Director,
this position provides emptoyees and third
partes with an alternative channel of
communication 10 resolbve issues if they have

a concern that the Chairman, Group Chief
Executive or Group Finance Director have faled
to reseive the issues, or where such contact
witl tham s hot appropriate.

MANAGING EXTERNAL SALES AGENTS
AND REPRESENTATIVES

The Board recognises the potentai bribery and
corruption risks posed by the markets in which
the Group operates and, In partcular, the use of
third-party intermediaries 1t engages All external
sales agents ard representatives working on
betalf of Senior across the world are reguired
10 operate in compliance with the Code. Local
management |15 required 1o conduct a due
diligence and risk assessment process pror g
engaging or re-appointing any sales agents and
10 155ue them with a copy of the Code. ensuring



that “hey unaerstand, acknowledge and accept
1S reqguirements

Due dilgence rmrust also be performed or new
s.pplers and customers to ensure that thay
operate te the same high standards of quality
and integrity as Senior plc and have a coce

of conduct.

MANAGING GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY

Ihe Board recognises that gifts ana hospitality
have the potental to create a conflict of Interest,
or the perception of a conflict of interest. As a
result, there 1s a Group policy restricting the
recewving and givirg of gifts and hospitality from,
and to, thire parties. This pclicy requires that all
aifts and hospita ity must be recorded annually
through a self-deciaration process. The interna’
audit function assesses adherence with tre
Group’s gifts and hospitahty policy during
nterna’ audit visits,

DATA PROTECTION
Durmg 2018, additional work was undertaken

Section D: Remuneration

The Remunerat'on Repart on pages 53 to 72
tully descrnibes the Board's approach to
remuneration matters The Directors’
Remuneration Policy was aparoved by
shareholders at the Company’'s 2018 AGM

Section E: Relations with shareholders
The Company maintains ragular contact with
s institutional sharenaclders and continued

10 consult with its major shareholders durng
2018, Twice a year, the Group Chief Executive,
Group Finance Director and Drrector of Investor
Relauons & Corporate Communications
undertake a senes of meetings with the
Compary's major shareholders, followirg

the announcement of the full-year and

interim resuits, to discuss both the Board's
strategic objectives ard the detalled
performance of the business During 2018,
the Company's non-executive Chairman

also attended the full-year and interm

results announcements made to analysts,

complason of the formal business at the 2018
AGM, anc a copy of the presentation, together
wath other nvestar relations matena:, 15 available
on the Company's website,

The otal 1ssued share capital of the Company
as at 1 March 2018 {the date of the Not'ce of
Meeaung for the 2018 AGM), was 419.4 mill'on
ordinary shares of 10p each. The total numbe-
of oroxy votes receved for the 2018 AGM
represented approximate y 82 65% {2017 -
B0 B4%) of the 'ssued share capital of the
Cormgany Al resclutions put to shareholders
at the 2018 AGM were passed on a poll.
Detals of the poll voting received by the
Company for the 2018 AGM resolut ons

are set outin the table below

Detalls of the votes to be received by the
Compary for the 2019 AGM resolutions will
be made avadable on the Company’s woebsite
following the close of the meeting

on Data Protection 1o ensure that the Company, " February ard July respectively [AN KiNG
and relevant subsidianas, were comphant with The Charrman mests periodicaly with CHAIRMAN
the General Data Protection Ragulation {GDPR} shareholders. The Senior Independent Director 1 March 201

n advance of it becomirg effective or 25 May
2018 Aninternal GDPR audit programme for
UK ard European subsidiaries was completed
by the year end and all relevant businesses have
n place a GOPR policy and breach incident
orocedure, which have been communicated

to their employees. Compliance with data
protecton regulations will continue to be
monitored on an ongoing basis.

15 also avallable to attend mectings with majo-
shareholders upon request, so providing ar
alterrative channel of communication between
the Cormpany and its shareholders

The Company makes constructive use of

its AGMs 10 communicate with 1its private
shareholders. A presentation on the Company’s
annual pertformance was given following

DETAILS OF THE POLL VOTING FOR THE 2018 AGM ARE SET QUT IN THE TABLE BELOW:

Resolution For & Against Votes total Yotes
nJarmber Resotution nameg discretiondry (volesi votes] {exciuding withheld) weithheld
1 To Adopt Annual Report and Financial Staterments 2017 344,408,052 186,700 344,582,752 2,073,309
2 To Approve Bgmung_raugnﬁeporl 2017 340,8776,77"18 4,045,991 3‘/]_/_1‘92?,709 1,743,252
3 To Approve Remuneration Policy 378,773,693 18,336,560 346,610,263 55,308
4 To Approve a 2017 Final Dividend 346,665,061 1,000 346,666,061 0
2} To Efect Bindi Foyle 345,247 303 1,412 91 346,660,244 5,817
B8 To Elect lan King _ 345,247 650 1,308,346 346,556,901 110060
7 To Re-elect Celia Baxtar 345,595,290 1,057.112 346,652,402 - 13,659
g ~ To Re-elect Susan Brennan 336,318,453 1,174,335 336,493,788 10,172,273
g To Re-elect Giles Kerr 314,330,345 26,395,936 340,726,281 5,939,730
10 To Re-elect David Squires 345274740 1,388,682 346,663,'42277 2,639
mo To Rg—elect Mark Vernon 345,563,563 1,_088,839 346.652.402 13.603
12 To Re-appoint Auditor ) 346,623,734 116,353 346,640,087 25,974
13 To Determine Auditor’s Rermuneration 346,634,204 22,479 346,656,683 9,378
14 ~ Authonty to Allot Equity Securties 316,564,_586 30,092,314 346,656,900 9161
15 Authority to Disapply Pre-Emption Rights 338,656,222 8,004,678 346,660,900 5,161
16 Authonty to Purchase the Company's Own Shares 342,819,204 3,789,003 346,608,207 57854
17 To Retain 14 Days' Nouce Period for Genera! Meetings 336,395,084 10,270,977 346,666,061 0
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

AN KING

CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

OVERVIEW

The Norminations Committee 1s chared

by myself, and comprises all non-executive
Directors. The Groun Company Secratary
acts as Secretary 10 the Commties.

Senior members of management and
advisers are invited to attend meetings
when deemed appropriate There were
1w scheduled meetings of the Commuttes
in 2018; two additional meetings were hald
to discuss nmatters relating to succession
planning and the recruitment of non-executve
Directors. Two members constitute a
guorum for the Nominations Corrmittees,
The Committee's attendance records are
shown on page 45,

The Committee is tasked with administering
the procass for appointments, considering
succession planning, reguJlarly revigwing such
processas and oversesing the composition

of the Board The Norminations Contrmitiee’s
Terms of Reference can be found on the
Campany's websriie.

The Norminations Committee enhists external
consultancy firms to assistin the appointment
of Directors to the Board. The Company
provides the appointed firm with a role
description, together with the required skiils
and personal attributes 1o he considered,

The firm filters a st of candidates down to

a number of those that it feels meet the

skills ana attributes required, then conducts
preliminary interviews with the selected
candidates The candidales are then referred
to Senior for Nterview, together with a written
analysis on each candidate, with each candidate
being interviewed by a number of members
of the Baard The final recruitment decision

1s taken by the Board as a whole.

Following the appomtment of a Director, a full
and cotnprehensive :nduction programme 1s
provided by the Company. Within the inductior
process, areas such as financial forecasts, Group
strategy. values, ethics and Code of Conduct are
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explained, together with otrer rolevant topics.
Visits to the Group's operations are also
undertaken, iInvoving the new Director meeting
local management teams and learning about the
key 1ssues faced by each operation.

The Nominations Committee and the Board
have been taking due regard of Lord Davies’
rewiew Into VWomen on Boards (February 2011,
the Hampton-Alexander Review FTSE Women
Leaders (November 2016) and the Hampton-
Alexander Reviewe. Improving Gender Balance
n FTSE Leacorship (November 2017} Lam
pleased to report that the Board is supportrve
of the am to increase diversity and the level

of female representation in Board and seniar
leadership pesitions. Three of the eight
Diractors are currently female (38%)

Following the appontment of Michelle Yorke
1o the Executive Committee in September
2018, three of the nine members of the
Executive Committee are female (33%.

The Board has been proactive m further
promoting diversiy and eqglality of af' kinds
througheut the Group, regardless of geography
of positen The Committee regularly discusses
the benefits of diversity with regard to the Board
and its Committees.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Commrittee regularly considers the 1ssue ot
succession planning for the various Board-leva:
roles. The Group has increased its focus on
maximising the potential of its employees and
mproving succassion planming The Executive
Committas, supported by the Group HR
Cirector, has conducted ar extensive review

of senior executive succession planmng

The review idenithed key ermnployees who are
considered to be, of could be developed into
becorming, cntical to the success of the Group,
50 that aporopriate plans are in place to ensure
there 1s an appropriate mix of employees within
the Group who cou d fill key roles in the short
and longer term

APPOINTMENT OF

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

irn 2018, a comprebensive recruitment process
was undertaken with the support of Korn Ferry
to se:ect a new non-executive Director Vvhen
recruiting, the Committee was keer to ensure
that the chosen candidate would have the right
personality to fit the Group's culture and the
necessary skills and experience to belp deiver
continued strong results, both financially and
cperationally, in order to develop and oversee
the fuature progression of the Group.

The Committee, after taking nto account

all relevant factors, recommended to the
Board that Rajiv Sharma be appointed as

a non-executive Director of the Company.
The Board agreed with the Committee’s
recommendations and Raiwv Sharma accented
the appointment as non executive Director,
commoneing on 1 January 2019 Rajv's
bingraphy can be found on page 39

INDEPENDENCE

The Nominatiens Comrnittee and the Board
consider all of the non-executive Directors to
be ‘ully independent and free fror conflicting
nterests which could cause difficulties whilst
carrying out ther duties. Senor considers its
non-executive Directors to be proactive In
contnbuting their respective expernences

and skills gamad trom a range of sectors.

Contlicts of interests are fully disclosed by
Directors upon appointment and arc reviewed
on & regular basis throughout each year,

| am confident that Senior has the desired
diversity of skills, people, and expererce that
will gusde the Company n detivering shareholder
value This Report was reviewed and approved
by the Nominatiors Commuittee and signed

on its behalf by

1AN KING
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATIONS

COMMITTEE
1 March 2019



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

GILES KERR
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

The Audit Comrmittee nas been estabhshed by
the Board and consists entirely of independent
non-executive Directors The pnmary role of the
Audit Commitlee 1s 1o maintain the integnty

of the financial reporting of the Group and to
ersure appropriate risk management and
internal control procedures. To enable the

Aucit Commitzec to fulfil this role, 1ts main
respons biliuas nclude

» conducting the process for selecting the
external auditor and making recommendations
o the Board, and uftimate’y skareholders for
approval, of the appointment of the exlernal
auditor, the audit fee, initiating tender
processes In accorgance with regulatory
requirements, and the resignation or
dismissal of the external aud.tor;

assessing annually the independence

and obiectmty of the external auditor,

its compiance with regulatory requirements,
the effecuveness of the external audit
process and authorising the provision,

it any, of non-audit services and the

impact this may have or independence,
monizering the integnty of the half-year Report
and annual Accounts and related formal
Company announcements, ard reviewing
significant financial reporting Judgments
contained within them, before their
submission to the Board,

reviewing the Company’s statement on

the Annua’ Report & Accounts prior to
angorsement by the Board, that taken as a
whoie the Annual Report & Accounts s far,
balanced and understandable and provides
tha information necessary to assess the
Group's pesition and performance, business
model and strategy.

discussing with the external auditor 1ssues
and reservations, If any, ansing from the
half-year review and year-end audit and any
other matters the external auditor may raise,
reviewing and approvng the terms of

the management representaucn lotrer
addressed to the external auditor;

reviewing the longer-term viability of

the Group;

reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
audit function; considering the major findings

-

-

»

of internal audit activities ard management’'s
response, ensuring ¢o-ordinat'on between
the internal audit function and the external
auditor and ensuring tnat the former s
adeguately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Greup;

reviewing the effectivenass of the Group’s
internal controls and nsk managemert
systems ensunng that the process Is active
and dynarmic,

understanding the strategy at both Group
and operational levels to ersure that business
risks and other relevant issues are effectively
identified and communicated to the Board;
ensuring the Company's corporate cthics,
anti-bribery and compliarce procedures

are up to date in terms of addressing the
potential risks of fraud and rmisconduct,

* assessing the Audit Committee’s capabiities
In relation to diversity, risk experience and
the financial expertise of its members;
understand:ng the implications of recent
and forthcoming changes to accounting
standards, including the new revenue and
financial instrument standards implemented
n 2018, and the new leasirg standard to

be impiemented no later than 2018,
assassing potential i1, cyber secunty and
social media issues In order to Manage the
Company's reputational and business
continurty nisks:

reviewing the Groun's Whistle-blowing
Policy, to ensure that aporopriate procedures
are 1n place for emoloyees to raise,
confidence, any concerns that they may
have relating to suspected malpractice,
ilegal acts, omiss’ons of other unethical
corporate gonduct, regarding firancial or
other matters; and ensunng that
arrangermerts are in p.ace for investigatior
of such matters ard follow-up actien; and
considering any other topics specifically
detegated to the Committee by the Board
from tme to nme.

The Audit Committee 1s required to report ts
findings to the Board, identifying any matters
whare it considers tnat action or Improvement
‘s needed, and to make recomriendations as
to the steps taken.

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Member Appomntment date
Giles Kerr

(Cormnrmittee Chan} 7 Sepember 2013
Cehia Bé"xter 2 September 2013

1 January 20016
22 Apnl 2016
1 January 2019

Susan Brennan
Mark Vernon
Rajiv Sharma

For the attencance record, please see page 45

Two members constitute a guorum for the Audit
Committee. The Group Company Secretary acts
as Secretary to the Audit Committes.

Collactively, the members of the Audit
Committee have significant commercial and
financiat expenence at a senlor managaement
level Giles Kerr has the recent and relevant
financial experience required by the UK
Corporate Governance Code to charr the Audit
Committee. For detals of the qualifications o*
members of the Audit Committee, please refer
to the Board of Directors” biographies shown
on pages 38 and 39.

AUDIT COMMITTEE'S TERMS

OF REFERENCE

The Board expects the Audit Commitiee 1o
have an understanding of

* the pnnciples, contents and developments
in financial reporting, including the applicable
accournting standards and statements of
recommended pracuce;

the key aspects of the Group's operations,
including corporate policies, its products and
services, Group financing, and systems of
internal control

» the matters that could influance or distort
the presentation of accounts and key figures,
the pnnaipres of, and developments in,
company law, sector-specific laws and other
relevant corporate legislation,

the roies of inernal and external auditirg and
risk management, and

the regulatory framewaork for the

Group’s businesses.

.

-

The full Terms of Reference of the Audit
Committee may be found on the
Company's website,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUEL

ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commrtice met on 21 February 2018 to consider the 2017 year-end report ard dunrg the supseguent 12 months conducted the following

businass on the meeting dates indicated below:

Meeting
date 24 July 2018 31 Qetober 2018 28 February 2019
Items * Recewved and consicered an Internal + Discussed and approved the external * Reviewed the accounting presentation

Audit Report ncluding Risk & Assurarce
and Mapping reports presentad by the
Groupr's Head of Risk & Assurance .
Reviewed the accounting presentahon
and judgmental ssaes for the half-year
ended 30 June 2018
Revicwed and agreed the basis for going
concern to be adopted for the 2018
Interim Rasults,
Reviewed and approved the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Staterments
disclosure in respact of new accounting s
standards IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and [FRS 16
Revigwed the Tax Memorandum for the
hait-year ended 30 June 2018 .
Revigwed and accepted KPMG LLP's
Reaport to the Audit Commities an the
halt-year review for the six months ended »
30 June 20718,
Reviewed and approved the terms of
the management reprasentaton letter
addressed to the external auditor.
Discussed the Group's draft
Annguncermneant of the 2018 Intenim
Results together with the draft slides
for the analysts' presemation
Discussed and approved the external
audit plan and strategy proposed by
KPMG LLP for the 2018 aurin,
including materiality, scope, significant
nsks and other areas of aud! fecus,
the audit cycle and auditor reporting.
* Held g prvate mesting wih the extarral
auditor, without executive management
being present.

.

-
-

-

auditor's confirmation of the 2018 audrt
scope and fee

Receved a technicai update from the
external auditor on accounung, reporting
and corporate gavernance developments,
Corsidered the Group's Risk & Assurance
Strateqic Pian ana 4 preliminary vigw of
the 2019 assurance actvity.

Recawad an update on the co source
reiatonship with Deloitte LLP and its
internal audit activitias,

Receved an update on the Group's Cyber
Tisk communications programimie and on
2018 Code of Conduct training.

Received reports on the Group's UK

and CU General Data Protection
Regulaton audits.

Noted the performance evaluaton of

the Aucht Committeg which was to be
assisted by Independent Audit Limitea.
Reviewed the effectiveness of the
external audit.

Reviewed the FRC's Audit Guality Review
of KPMG LLP’s 2017 audit of the Group.

.

+

-

and judgmental issues for the year
ended 31 December 2018, including
canswderation of those significant nsks
outlined on page 51.

Rewiewsd tne longer-term viabiiity of the
Group and agreed the viability statement
on page 29. )
Reviowed and agreed the going

concarn basis to be adapted for the
2018 Accounts.

Rewewsd and approved the Annval
Report & Accounts 2018 disclosure in '
respact of new accounting Standards:
IFRS 9, 'FRS 15 and IFRS 16

Reviewed the Tax Memarandum for the
year ended 31 December 2018
Reviewed and acceptaa KPMG LLP's
Report to the Audit Commitiee on the
gudn of the finarcial staterments for the
year ended 31 December 2018
Reviewed and approved the terms of

the management representation etter
addressed to the external auditor. !
Approved the Audit Committee Report
for 2018,

Reviewed the effectivencss of the
Gruws's nsk ranagamont and mtoenal
control systems ana disclosures made

in the Anrwal Report & Accounts 2018
Reviewed the draft Annual Report &
Accounts 2018

Discussed the Group's draft
Anrnouncement of the 2018 Finat

Results together with the draft shdes

lor the analysts’ preseniation

Reviowed the Notice of Mesating for the
2019 AGM and the Proxy Form for the 1
2019 AGM

Received and considered a report
presenteda by the Group Finance Director,
which ncluded the proposed 2019
internal audit plan, ard noted progress
aganst the Group's risk and assurarce
strategic objeclives

Held a private meeting with the external
auditor, without executive managameant
peing prosent,

The Audit Committes normally invites the non-executive Chairman, Group Chief Executive, Group Finance Cirector, Group Financial Controller.
the Group's Head of Tax and senior representatves of the mternal audit functior and the external audit firm to attend its meetings, aithough it
reserves the rnght to request any of these individuals to vathdraw from any meeting

The Audit Committee also holds separate discussions with the Director of Risk and Cormphance (who was former'y the Heoad ot Risk & Assurance)
and the external auditor without sxecutive management being prasent In addimen, the Chairman of the Audit Comnmitiee holds separate mecungs
with the internal and external auditor dunng the course of the year.

Pericdicatly, tne Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are revievwwed to take INto account current views on good practice and recent updates 1o the
UK Corporate Governance Code. The new UK Corporate Governarice Code ssued m July 2018 by the FRC wili be adopted by the Audit Committee

from the accounting perndad beginning on 1 JanJary 2019
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS CONSIDERED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Significant risks considered by the Committee

How the risk was addressed by the Committee

Inventory net realisable value

Inventory held covers a wide range of products in both the
Aerospace and Flexonics Divsions Tne ablity of the Groun to

sell this inventory at a value above 1ts carrying value e the future

can be adversely affected by many factors Accordingly there 1s a nisk
that inventory 1s carried at amounts that exceed net realisable value.

Other provisions

Provisions or accruais are held where managernent considers there
15 a1 obhgation, payment is probable and the amount payable can
ba relably estimated.,

Prowvisions held by the Group include but are not Imited tor

+ those held against lega' claims or product warranties; and

Tre Audit Commitiee recogrises the sk that the Group may "ot
recover the full cost of nventory via future saies, and may not nold
aporopriate provisions against oosolee and slow moving inventory.

In andion, a significant charge in preduction Costs or In the executior
to deliver planned cost savings in relation to specific work packages
could result i uravaidab e costs assecated with ore of more waork
packages to exceed the economic benefits expected o be achieved
This is a key area of judgment and as such the Audit Committee carefu'y
considers executive managerment's assumptions relating to the
achievability of these plars.

These ware further discussed with the Externa’ Auditor

The Audit Commitiee beheves there are no reportable 1ssues ansing
from this significant nsk,

Tre Audit Committee considered the pasis upon which management
had made ©s accounting judgrents to determine the level of other
provisions. The Audit Committee receves a separate report from the
Group Head of Tax that sets out the various uncertair risk exposures
and ary related provis.ors that are basaed on the best estimate of the
amounts bkely to be payable. The Audit Committee carefully considers
the assumptors appled and provides appropniate chalenge including

* tax provisions for uncertain risk exposures,

an assessment of the relaled sersitivitics 1hese were further
discussed with the External Auditor

There is a nsk that other provisions overstate or urdersiate the

associated liabiity,

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Independence of the external auditor
and policy on non-audit services.

To fulfil its respansibility regarding the
independence of the external auditor,

the ALdit Committee reviewed.

= areport from the external auditor descrnbing
the arrangements that had been made to
wdentify, report and manage any conflicts of
interest and to mantain its independence,
and

* the FRC's Audit Inspection Unit pubhc
report an KPMG LLP.

The Audt Conmmittee’s policy in respect of
services provided by the external auditor 1s
as follows.

+ the extarnal auditor s invited to provide
services which, In 118 position as auditar,
= must or 1s best placed to undertake This
mcludes formalities relating to borrowings,
shareholder and other circutars, various other
regulatory reports and certain work in
respect of larger acquisiions and disposais,

+ the auditor may provide tax compliance and
advice where 1t is best suted However,
KPMG has undersaken not to provide such
services. In all material cases, such work 15
put out to tender; and

Tre Audit Committee beheves there are no further reportable issues
arising from these significant areas.

+ pther services may not be provided where
preciuded by ethical standards or where
the Audit Commuttee believes that it
would compromise audit independence
and chjectivity

All proposed contracts for services (o ne
provided by the auaitor in excess of £25,000
require the Audit Committee’s approval.

Fees to the external auditor for audit related
services undertaken in the year were £0 06m
and for other non-audit work were £nil

In 2018, following a tender review the Audit
Committee considered that it was beneficial for
the Company to retain Deloitte LLP for non-audit
work services, because of the firm's expertise in
this area and knowledge of the Group, The Audt
Committee continues 1o closely monitor the
nature and level of such non-audit work.

Policy on tendering

In order to maintain auditor Independence and
comply with FRC and EU guidance on audit
1endering, the Group undertock a formal tender
of 1ts external audit during the first half of 2018,
led by the Audit Committee, The appointment
of KPMG LLP as the Group External Auditor for
the tinancial year commencing 1 January 2017
received approval by shareho!ders at the Annual
General Meeting held in April 2017 The
Committee reviews annually whether itis
appropnate to put the audit out to tender.

Assessment of external audit effectiveness
The Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the external aadit process

at its Cctober meeting.

Given the appointment of KPMG LLP dunng
2017 as tha new external auditor, it was not
appropriate to perform an evaiuation in the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 The
Audit Committee has subsequently returned to
the normal evaluation cycle in the financial year
ended 31 December 2018

The effectiveness of the external aud't process,
has been performed by assessing a range o° key
areas through a formal questionnaire that was
incividuaily distributed 10 all the members of the
Audit Committee and all other executive and
non-execctive Directors The framework
reguired Audit Committee members to corsider
which areas of performarce needed future
focus by the auditor, the areas where the auaitor
was meetng expectatons and those where the
auditor was corsidered to have a spec-al strength.

Senior management recewved answers and
camments fromr all questionnares and
consoldated them into a report. The Audit
Committee used this report to faciitate a debate
at its October meeting and to assist In assessing
the level of audit effectiveness. The Audit
Commuttee discussed: the calibre of the audit
firm, the quality of the process, the Audit
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Partner, the audit approach and plannirg, the
role of management, the comrmmunication by the
Auditor to the Audit Committes, the provisions
of support for the work of the Audit Committee
by the Auditor, the shanng of insights ard adding
value by the Auditor, the audit fee, the auditor's
independence and objectivity, and tne quality
of formal reporting oy the Auditor 10 the Audit
Committee, Feedback about the effectiveness
of the audit process from the lacal management
teams was also considered by the Audit
Comrnittee. The Committee concluded that
the auditor had challenged the thinking of

the Company and the Audit Committee on a
number of signiticant issues and mantained

115 Independerce

Following completion of the assessment
process, the Audit Committee concluded that it
1s satisfied with the effectiveness of the external
auditor; as a conseguence the Audit Committee
has recormmended to the Beard that KPMG LLP
be re-apponted as auditor for 2019

Dunng the financial year ended 31 December
2018, the 2017 audt of Senior plc by KPMG LLP
was reviewed by the FRC’s Audit Quality
Rewview {AQR} team. The AQR routinely
monitors the quality of audit work of certain UK
audit firms through inspections of sample audits
and related procedures at individual audit firms,
Certain matters for limited improverment were
identfied relating to how KPMG LLP cwdenced
ther conclusions over the work performed in
one area of the audit The AQR also highhghted
a good practice observation in relation to KPMG
LLP's audit oversight on the Senior ple audit,
and in particular the extent of nvolvernent m and
review of component teams procedures by the
group tearnr. The Audit Committee and KPMG
LLP have discussed the review findings and

the identified limited improvernent observations,
and are satisfied with responses o be
implemented by KPMG LLF in the 2018 audit.
Overall, the results of the review rased no
1ssues which cast doubt on the fundamental
guality of Semor’s external audit and the Audit
Committee remans satisfied with the efficiency
and effectveress of the external audit,
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Aud't Committee 1s required to assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relatrg to
tha effectiveness, resourcing and plans of the
Group internal audit function.

In 2018, as set out on pages 20 to 25, the Groun
further strengthened its risk management
procedures and these have been reviewed by
the Audit Commuttee Risk has been assessed
on a top down and bottom up basis. A risk
based programme of internal audit has been
conducted in the year This has beer delivered
ivternally with the assistance of s co-source
partner, Dolostte LLP. To suoport the
etfectveness of the nternal audit programme
a software tool was implemented which tracks
actions resulting from internal audits. The same
tool was also utilised dunng the year for the
annual control self-assessment process, which
all sites complete. Further progress has been
made ‘n 2018 against the Group Risk &
Assurance Strategic Plan

The Charman and non-executive Directors

are acltively encouraged to visit the Group's
aperating businesses unaccompanied by
executive Directars. This enables them to meet
the local managernent tearns and emplovees
and also undertake s'te tours to review matters
includhng production methods, health and safety
and the status of Internal audit findings. In 2018,
a total of 20 site visits were undertaken by the
Charrman and non-executive Directors. These
wisits by the Crarman and non-executive
Directors are viewed by the Audit Commitiee
as making a positive contribution to the internal
control framework.

CONCLUSION

As a result of its work during the year, the Audit
Committee has concluded that it has acted in
accordance with its Terms of Reference. Atits
meating held on 26 February 2019, the Audit
Committee considered each section of the
Annual Report & Accounts 2018, and the
document as a whoie, as proposed by the
Company; it reached a conclusion and advised
e Board that it considered the Annuai Report
& Accounts 2018 to be fair, balanced and
understandable and that it provided the
nformation necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's pesition and performance,
business model and strategy The Cha rman

of the Audit Committoa will be avalable at the
2019 AGM 1o answer any quesshons about the
work of the Committee

APPROVAL
This Report was reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee and signed on 1ts behalf by

GILES KERR

CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
1 March 2019



REMUNERATION REPORT:
ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR
OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CELIA BAXTER

CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear shareholder

| ar pleased to presaent the Report of the
Remuneration Comrttec for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 This statement sets
out the work of the Committee during the year
and provides the context for the decisions taken.

Senior’s performance during 2018

Senigr's wis:on 1s 1o be & trusted and
collaborative high value-added eng:necring and
manufactunng cormpany producing sJstainable
growth in aperating profit, free cash flow and
shareholder value.

Qur remureration policy and practices support
this vision witn our bonus plans incentsvising
earn'ngs growth and free cash flow and our
long-term plans rewarding both the ¢reation
of shareholder value and earnings growth

As explained In the Chairmar's Statement and
the Chief Executive's Review, Senior delivered
profitable growth and generated heathy free
cash flow dunng the year under revievw:

« Group revenue increased by 5 7% to ancther
record level,

« Adjusted operating profit inrcreased by 10 8%
112 9% on a constant currency basis) and
included higher research and development
expenditure,

= The Group's adjusted operating margin

ncreased by 40 basis points, to 8.5% for

the full year;

Adjusted earmings per share increased by

11 7%, and

The Group continuas 1o generate heaithy

cash flows

SENIGR'S REMUNERATION POLICY

{THE “POLICY"}

Following a major review of the Policy duning
2017, last year we proposed to snareholders
amendments to the Policy which included

an increase in the executives” shareholding
guidclines, the imtreduction of a two-year
post-vestng holding period to be applied to
LTIP awards, ana increase in the maximum
bonus 1o be awarded ard the Introduction of a
discret.on for the Rerruneration Committee to
adjust the outcome of the bonus * appropnate
The Committes was plagsed that these
changes to the Policy were approved by the
sharehclders with a vote of 95%. Cther than
in the event of exceptional circumstances,

the Committes does not intend to revert to
sharcholders with a new Remuneration Policy
before the end of the three-year policy period in
2021 However for your ease of refercnce, the
Policy is set out in full on pages 57 10 62.

Review of new UK codes and regulations
relating to remuneration

The Commitiee reviewed and considered the
irmpact of the new UK Corporate Governance
Code and legistation or: Senior's remuneration
practices Many areas ntroduced are already
part of Senior's practices, for example,
workforce remuneration as a whoie 1s taken into
consideration wnen setting executive directors’
pay, holding penods are in place for Senior's
LTIP, the Committee has the ability to exercise
discretion on remuneraticn plan outcomes and
the Committee’s Terms of Reference already
nclude the responsibility for determining and
setting remuneration for the senior managenent.

The Terms of Reference of the Commitiee have
boen revisea to further emphas se some of the
pomts brought out In the new legislation. Durning
2019, the Committee wil: develop a formal
palicy for post-employment shareholding
requirements and review malus and clawback
provisions that are already in place. In addition,
the Committee will be considering the most

representative methodology for reporting

the pay ratio of the CEQ to the average UK
employee. Senior pic although headguartered
Ir the UK is a7 international company with
the majority of :ts employees based outside
af the UK.

UK gender pay gap reporting April 2018
The UK gender pay gap reperting requirement
came Into effect in April 2018 for companies
erploying more than 250 pecple in the UK.
Senior 1s commitied to improving diversity
across the Group and to pravide equal

pay for equal work The results of the

gender pay reporting can be found on

the Company's websi‘e.

Incentive scheme outcomes for the year
The Committee spent timie after the end of the
financial year reviewing the extent o which tre
targets under the Arnual Bonus Plan and LTIF
had been met, taking inta account performance
during 2018

For the Annual Bonus Plan, we set Adjusted
EPS and cash flow targets at the start of the
year which wee viewed as appropriately
challenging. The targets a-e disclosed in the
Annual Report on Remuneration on page 66.
Awards for the year at 74.97% of maxirmum
reflect the progress the Company has made
dur'ng the year against the targets set.

Awards made under the LTIP in 2016 were
subject to Adjustad EPS and TSR performance
measured over three years up to the end of 2018
Unfortunately, the targets were not achieved,
and the awards therefore lapsed r full

The Commitiee Is satisfied thal the above
outcomes were a fair reflection of the
performance of the Company over the relevant
performance perods for the incentive schemes.
The Commitzee did not have to exercise any
discretion In agreeing the outcome of the
incentive nlans.
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REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Executive Directors’

remuneration 2018

As disclosed last year, the basic salaries of
the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Dirgctor wera increased by 3.1% and 4 0%
respectively with effect from 1 January 2018,
broadly in line with the increase applied to the
wider workforce. In bne wath the Rernuneration
Folicy that was anproved al the AGM in 2018,
the executive Directors were elgible for a
maximum bonus equvalent to 125% of basic
salary, payable subject o the satigfaction of
pertormance targets linked to Adjusted EPS
and cash flow targets,

LTIP awards wcre granted to both executive
Directors subjoct to the satisfaction of challenging
three-year targets finked to Adjusted EPS
growth and relative TSR, with the application

of a two-year holding period o1 vested awards.
Awvvards were granted at a level of 150% of pasic
salary, tne sarme as in previous years.
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Implementation of the Remuneration
Policy for 2019

The basic salaries of the Group Chief Executive
and Group Finance Director have been increased
by 4.0% and 3.6% respectively with effect from
1 January 2019, broadly in ling with the Increase
appliea to the wider workforce

| ast year the Committee made a number of
amendments to improve the operation of the
ncentive plans Having reviewed the outcome
of the plars the Commnuttee is not making any
changes to the plars for 2019,

There are no changes to the quantum of bonus
and LTIP awards compared with the previous
vear. The exgcutive Directars will be eligible for
a maumum bonus equivalent 1o 1259% of basic
salary. Bonusos will be payabie subject to the
satisfaciion of performance targets linked to
Adjusted EPS and cash flow targets

LTIP awards will be g-anted to both executive
Directors subject 1o the satisfaction of
challenging three-year targets hinked to Adjusted
EPS growth and relative TSR, with the application
of a two-year holding period on vested awards
Awards wil be granted at a level of 150% of
basi; salary Further detals of the targets to be
se for the 2019 L TIP awards are set out 0 the
Annual Report on Remuneration on page 72.

At the AGM in April 2019, shareholders will
be as«ed to approve the Annual Report on
Remuneration | nope tne decisions the
Cormmittee has ta<en in respect of 2018
will have your support

CELIABAXTER
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

C=Rar



2018 REMUNERATION REPORT AT A GLANCE

OVERVIEW OF OUR REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK

Element of remuneration

Key features

Salary and employment benefits

Annual bonus:
Adjusted EPS
Free cash tlow

Market competitive 1o attract and retain high quality executives including tully expensed car,
prvate medica insurance, ife insarance and defined contr t_)L_Jt_‘Q_ﬁ retirerrent benefits)

Rewards achievernert against annual performance objectives:

» Maximum bonus s 125% of salary
» 173 of any award 1s paid ir shares, deferred for three years

* Group Chief Executive ard Group Inance Drrector target 64 5% of selary

Léﬁéﬁerm Ircentrve Plan
Adjusted EPS {50%)
TSR (50%i

Shareholding requirements
Clawnack and malus provisions

Supports the Company’s lenger torm strategic aims <o create sustairable growth in

snareholder value and 1o Incentivise, nmotivate and retain senior talent.

» Maximum award 1s 200% of salary but normal awards are 150% of salary

*+ 25% vestirg at "threshola”
Equivalent to 200% of executive Directors’ salary

Unvested Deferred Benus Award subject to clawbacx

Long-Term Incenitive Plan subject to clawback and malus during the penod

of three years following the date of vesting

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS AND INCENTIVE OUTCOMES

Achievad
{% of
Annual bonus Target Actual maximum)
Performance condition
Free cash flow
Full year £32 30m £45.30m 78 54%
Adusted EPS
Full year internal target 14.93p 15.92p 73.08%

Banus award to Group Chiet Executive and Group Finance Dhrector: 74.97% of maximum

Long-Term Incentive Plan {2016 award}

Targets {threshold - stretch)

Actual

Adjusted EPS (50%)

Total Shareholder Return {50%)

No awards vesting

APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

10% — 25% growth over
three-year performance period
TSR ranking

5 9 {maxirmmum threshold)

14 0 {iminimum threshold}

-15.28% (below threshold)

22 ranking (below threshold)

The chart below shows how the corrposition of each of the executive Directors’ packages vanes at different levels of performance urder the
Remuneration Potcy. The assumgptions noted for “target” performance in the graph below are provided for ifustration purposes orly.

24g7

LUl

Thus chart 1s based on the following assumptions:

Threshold Target

Maximum

2200 1864
Fixed pay
| and
130
N 1,18
o — ’ Annual
. 3% 6 i bonus
w =
- S L T, Long-term
o0 20% 1% 8% 1% s W% share
awards

Falow Rlax  Ach s

lamyet

Targot
Tarae!
Group Chief Executive

| e

g

At S da

Al Iyger Kls

Group Finance Director
SRt

s treth

Salary 1s the 2019 basic salary

The value of Benefits and Pension 1s teken ‘rom the
sirgle total figure of remuneration for 2018

Ml 64 5% of 2018
basic salary
Ml 25% vesung

under the LTHP
{i.e. 25% of
(150% % 2019
basic salary)) and
set out at face
value, assuming
no skare price
arowth or
avidend

125% of 2018
basic salary
100% vesting
under the LTIP
{ie. 100% of
{150% x 2019
basic salary)) ana
set out at face
value, assuming
50% share price
growth and no
drividend
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2018 REMUNERATION REPORT AT A GLANCE CONTINUED

CHANGES MADE IN 2018

In 2018, a number of amendments 1o Improve the operatior of the ircentive schemes were implementead to ensure that we can pravide our Incentives
trough an up-to-date pay framework and a revised Remureraticn Policy was approved by shareholders. Detars of the Remuncration Policy and
ircentives car be found on page 53. No changes to the Remuneration Policy are proposed n 2019

About this Report

The Report on Remuneration on pages 63 to 72 is produced in accordance with the 2013 Regulations and the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules
of the Finanaial Conduct Authonty. Parts of the Annual Report on Remuneration are subect to audit, these provide details of the Directors” emeluments,
shareholdings, Lorg-Term Incentive Plan awa ds and pension benefits for the year ended 31 December 2018 ard the Committee’s intentions for 2019

We have structured the rest of the Report as follows:

+* Remuneration Polcy.

— Policy for executive Directors

-~ How shareholder views are taken into account
- Legacy arrangerments

- Discretions of the Rermuneration Committee
- Policy for non-executive Diractors

Annual Report on Remuneration
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REMUNERATION REPORT: POLICY

11 deterninirg remureration far the executive Directors and other senior managers, the Remuneration Committee seeks to maintair a competitive
programmre which enables the Company to attract ana retain the Fighest calibre of executive

Performance-related elements of remuncration form a sigrificant proportion of the total remuneration pac<age of each executive Director, detans
of which are set out below. Trese performance reiated elements, which take into accourt the Company's risk policies and systems, are desigred
to aligr tne Directors’ interests with those of sharehelders and to reward executive Directors for performance at the highest leveis.

POLICY FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tre table below summarises the Committee’s policy for the remuneration of execut.ve Directors whick was approved by snareholders at the 2018
AGM and came Into effect from 1 January 2018 No changes to the nol'cy are proposed in 2019

Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximum Performance assessment
Salary + Reflects the » Wil normally oe reviewed annually with + Other than to reflect » Indeadual performarce in the
performance of e*fect from 1 January change In the size and role and Group performance
the indvidual, s« Benchmarked periodically against complexity of the are amang the factors taken
or her skills and companies with similar charactenstics role/Cormpany, the nto corsideration when
expenence over and sector companies Committee will have awarding increases
tme and the * Normally positionea within a range regard to the basic
responsibilities around the mid-market level takirg saiary percentage
of the role Into account the expenience and Increases taking place
* Provides an performance In the role of the individual, ~ 8670ss the Company
appropniate level complexity of the role, market more ggnerallv wher
of basic fixed pay compettiveness and the impact of determining salary
avoiding excessive  salary increases on total remuneration Increases for the
risk ansing from execut ve Lirectors
over-reliance on + No maximum
variable income salary cap
Bonus ¢ Incentiviscs annual  * Up 1o 83 3% of salary pard in cash with = Overall maximum + The Committee determines
delvery of corporate up to a further 41.7% of salary paid as of 125% of salary performance conditions and
financial and a cordional awara of deferred shares weightings at the start of
non-firancial goals  » Maximum bonus only payable for sach year
* Delveryofa achieving demanding targets ¢ The finarcial metrics included

propartion of bonus «
in deferred shares
prowvides alignment
with shareholders
and assisis with
retention

Deferred shares are released three years
afwer award but are subject to forferture
by a "bhad leaver”

Executives are entitled to receive the
value of ddend paymenits that would
have otherwise been paid in respect

of vested deferred shares

All bonus payments are at the ciscretion
of the Committee

Different performance conditions

may be set wnen recruiting an
executive Director

The Committes may review the
performance conditions from time

o ume

The Committee has the discretion in
certain circumstances to grant and/or
settle an award in cash in practice,
this will only be used in exceptional
circurmstances for executive Directors
The Committee has the discretion to
adjust bonus targets or outcomes If
deemed appropriate, where the bonus
outcome feels perverse In praclice,
this wall only be used in exceptional
arcurmstances for executive Directors

-

free cash flow (full-year
performance against target} and
adjusted earnings per share
tfull-year performance compared
to target) measurad over a year
The Commuttee may include
non-financial metrics up to 25%
of <he overali award
Performance below threshold
results in zerp payment. Payment
nses from 0% to 100% of the
maximum opportunity for levels
of performance between the
threshold and maximum targets
Typically, thresheld is around
90% of target, and on-target
performance delivers
approximately 50% of the
maximum opportunity

Subject to clawback a the
Committee's discretion over
unvested deterred shares in the
event of matenal misstatermont
or gross misconduct and, if
required, over any unvested
LTIP awards
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REMUNERATION REPORT: POLICY CONTINUED

Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation Maximum Performance assessment
Long-Term  + Incertvises * Annual grants o performance shares * 150% of salary + The Committee determines
Incentive sustained which vest subject to perfarmance * 200% of salary performance conditions and

Plan (LTIP)

performance over
the 'onger term
The use of
lorger-term
perfarmance
targets and delivery
of awards in shares
rewards the
achievement of

the Company’s
strategic goals

and Increases in
shareholder value

mgasurced over three years and
continued service
Executives are entitied to reccive the
value of dividend payments that would
have otherwise been paid in respect of
vasted deferred shares
* All awards are subject to the discreticns
containea in the plan ~ules
+ The Commiliee may review the
performance conditions from time
0 time
¢ The Commuttee has the discretion 10
cettain circumstances to grant and/or
settle an award in cash. In pracuce,
this will only be used in exceptional
crreumstances for executive Directors
A lwo-year post-vesting holding penod
wi'l be apphed © LTIP awards, creaing
a five-year period petween the grant of
the awards and therr final refease. This
revised helding period policy shall apply
to LTIP awards 1o be granted in early
2018, even though this precedes the
date of approval of the new policy

-

I exceptional
circurmstarces,
such as upon
recru’tment

weightings at the start of each
year, providing that the targets
are not materialy less challenging

* The awards were basedona

mix of;

- Relauve Total Sharcho'der
Return {(50% of the award);
and

- Group adjusted earnirgs
growh targets (509% of
the award)

In respect of each performance

element, performance below

the tareshold target results in
zero vesting Vesting of each
performance element starts at
he 25% threshold and nses to

100% for maximum level of

performance

Subject to clawback at the

Committee's discretion during

the period of three years

following the date of vesting

*

All- s Enpoyees * The Sharesave Plan has standard terms  * Fmployees can e h/A
Employee including exaecutive under which participants can normafly normally elect fora
Share Directors are enter a savings covtract in return for three-year savirgs
Schemes encouraged which they are granted cptions o contract under
to become acquire 3nares at the market valug standard terms and
sharehclders of the shaves at the start of the within HMRC limits
through the performance period « The aption price for
operation of the * The rules for lis plan were first approved  Sharesave awards can
Sharesave Plan, the by shareholders at the 2008 AGM and be set at a discount
HMRC-approved the updated rules were approved at the of up 1o 20% 1o the
all-employee 2016 AGM market value of the
share plan shares at the start of
the savings contract,
although no awards
granted under the
2006 Sharesave Plan
have been sot at
a discourd
Pension * Provides * The exocutive Drrectors may participate + 20% of basic salary . NfA
competitive in the Senior ple Group Flexble either as a Company
retrement benefits Retirement Plar (Serior GFRPY, contribution to Senior
for the Group's a contract-based, money purchase GFRP or as salary .
employees pension plan and/or receve cash heu of pension
allowances
+ Bonuses are notncluded n calculating
retiremert benefits
Other * Provides a » Benefits include provision of a fully + Thevalue of benefits  « N/A
benefits cormpetitive expensed car or car allowance, private 1s based on the cost

package of benefits
that assists with
recruitrent and
retention

medical insurance, life msurance and
inGorme protection, tax eqgualisation and
relocation benefits

Any reasonable business-related
sxpenses (including tax thereon)

can be reirrbursed

-

ta the Company ard

13 not predetermined
Trere 1s no monetary
cap on ether benefits
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Purpose and link

Element to strategy Operation

Maximum Performance assessment

Shareholding * Algns executive

guidelines Directors’ intarests
with those of other
shareholders in the
Company

¢ Executive Directors to retain at least
50% of the shares that vest under the
LTIP and Deferea Bonus Award, after
allowing for tax habdities, urtl a
sharcholding equivalent in value
te 200% of base salary isbult up

« N/A « N/A

RECRUITMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Salares for newly appointed Directors wi | be set to reflect ther skills and
experience, the Company's imtended pay positioning and the market rate
for the role.

Where it 13 appropr ate to offer a below mediar salary nitially, the
Comrrittes wall have 1he discretion 10 allow phased salary increases
aver time for newly appointed Directors, oven though this may involve
Ingreases in excess of the ate for the wader werkforce and inflabion.

Benetits wilt be provided 'n ine with those offered to other employees,
with national or international relocation expenses/arrangements
le.g. scnooling, tax equalisation} provided for if necessary

The aggregate incentive offered to new recruits will be no hugher than
that outlined in the Policy report on pages 57 and 58. The Remuneration
Cornrmittee has flexibility to grant share awards of up to 200% of salary
upon recruitment. Different performance measures may be set initally
for the annual bonus and LTIP, taking into account the responsiplities

of the Indwidual, and the po'nt In the financial year that they jomed

Current entitlemants (benefits, bonus, share schemest may be bought
out on terms that are no more favourable than a like-for-hike basis fwitn
a comparable tirme horizon, fair value and subject to parformarice
conditions). Existing incentive arrangemants will be used to the fullest
extent possible, although awards may also be granted outside these
schemes If necessary and as permitted under the Listing Rules. In the
case of an internal hire, any outstanding variable pay awarded i relation
to the previous role will be allowed 10 Bay out according to its terms of
grant (adjusted as relevan: to take into account the Board appointment).

RATIONALE BEHIND PERFORMANCE METRICS AND TARGETS
The performance related elements take into account the Company's risk
policies and systems and are designed to align the Directors’ interests
with those of shareholders. Variable pay elements aim to reward
execut've Dhrectors for performance at the highest levels and, as such,
the Committee aims to set targets that are both stretching and achievable
All targets are set on a sliding scale. The Committee reviews the annual
bonus measures set for ali the Company's senior executives (not anly the
exgcutive Directors) every year in order to ensure that they are alignoed
with the Company's strategy anc anrual goals and to ensure that

bonus arrangements amongst the Company's senior executive team

are consistent.

The annual bonus may include a mix of fnancial and non-financial
measures reflecting the key annual prorites of the Group. The financial
metrics carrently include two of the Campany’s KPIs' free cash flow,
which 15 a key measure of the business’s aifity to fund future
acquisitions; and Adjusted LPS, which will reflect the Group's abiiny

to expand into new regions and product markets and increase the
profrtability of the existing operations Fronn 2018, Adjusted EPS 15
measured on a constant currency basis to reduce the impact of exchange
rate movements on bonus outcomeas It non financial measures are
selected, these may include reference to the Group's environmena'.
safety and organisational goals.

The measures currently used in the LTIP are Adjusted EPS and relative
TSR Adjusted EPS 1s a measure of the Company's overal financial

success and TSR provides an external assessment of the Company's
performance against its compettors [t alsc aligns the rewards receves
by executives with the returns received by shareholders The Commuttee
will review the choice of performance measures and the appropriateness
of the performance targets prior to each LTIP grant,

In particular, the Adjusted EPS targetis are reviewed prior o each grant
by taking account of internal and external expectations of future Adjusted
EPS growth for the business. The Comrmittee reserves the discretion

to set different targets for future awards, without consulting with
shareholders, providing that, in the opimion of the Committee, the new
~argets are no lass challenging in light of the crcumstances at the time
shan those used previously The targets for awards granted under this
Remuneration Policy are set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTGR AND
EMPLOYEE PAY

The Rermuneration Pol'cy for the executive Directors 1s designed with
regard to the policy for employees across the Group as a wnole. There
are some differences in the structure of the Remuneration Policy for the
executive Directars and other senior empioyees, which the Remunerat'on
Comm tteg believes are necessary to reflect the different levels of
responsibility of employees across the Company and reflect different
market norms for different roles. The key differonces in reruneration
policy between the executive Directors and employees across the Group
are the increased emphasis on performance- related pay and the inclusion
of a share-based long-term incentive plan for executive Directors,

Executive Directors are provided witn a competitive package of benefits
that includes {depending on role) participation in the Group's occupational
pension arrangements, prov.sion of a fully expensed car or car allowance,
private meadical Insurance, Iite insurance and income protection.

The majorty of Senior's managers are eligible to participate in annual
bonus arrangements with challenging targets tied to the performance

of their emiploying entity, Dwision and, for the most senior executives,
the Group's performance A collaboration bonus is also avalable to semor
management, who contribute 1o the Group's performance due 10
collaboration between the Group's autonomous business units

Long-term incentives are provided to the most senicr executives

angd those antcipated as having the greatast potental to influgrce
performance levels withun the Company A lower aggregate incentive
quantum operates at below executive level with levels drven by the
impact of the role and market comparatives,

in 2017 the Board adoptec a new share plan, the Restricted Share Award
Plan, a ceferred share award plan without performance conditicns Awards
under this Plan are made to selected individuals who were notin receipt
of other long-term incentives but are considered to have significant
potential or are key contributors

In order to encourage wider employee share ownership, the Company
operates a Sharesave Plan in which employees in the UK, North America
and contnental Burope, nrcluding execut've Directors, may participate,
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REMUNERATION REPORT: POLICY CONTINUED

HOW EMPLOYEES PAY IS TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT WHEN SETTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

The Committee also reviews the salares of corporate, dwisional and senior operational managers and theretore 1s fully cognisart of pay levels in the
Group when determining the nay of the executive Diractors.

In addimon, the Comrmrittes’s policy 15 that salary ‘ncreases for the executive Directors and serior executives should not nermally be greater than the
general level of increases awarded t¢ other senior managers in Europe and North Amenca, other than when an executive charges role or when it1s
necessary in order 1o ensure levels of remuneration remam market comipetitive Increases for the general workforce in Europe and North Amarica “or
2019 were approxmately 3.27% (2018 — approximately 3 7%;.

The Company did not consult with employees when drawing up the Directors’ Remuneration Policy set out in this part of the Remuneration Report.
POLICY ON GUTSIDE APPOINTMENTS

The Remuneration Comimittes believes that it is beneficia both for the individua and the Company for an executive Director ta take up one external
non-executive appointment. Fees paid for the appointment nay be retaned ny e execullve.

EXECUTIVE IMRECTORS SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND LOSS OF OFFICE PAYMENTS
The tab'e below sumnranses the key provisians of each executive Director’s contract

Provision Detailad terms

Employment contract dates David Squires — 5 January 2015
Bindl Foyle — 3 May 2017

Notice period 12 morts from both the Company and the excoutive Director

Termination payment Contracts may be terninated without notice by the payment of a sum equal 1o the sum of salary due for
the unexpired notice penod, and the value of pension contributions and other benehts such as use of
company car, Ife cover and private healthcare
There are no provisions in the agreements, or otherwise, for additional termination payments
Payments may be made in monthly mnstalments and, in these circumstances, there s a requirernent for the
Director to mitigate loss

Change of control There are no enhanced provisions in relation to a change of control

Copies of the executive Directors’ service contracts are available from the Group Comboany Secretary at the Company's Registered Office during
normal business hours The Committea's policy in the event of early terminaton of emiployment is set out on the following page
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POLICY ON PAYMENT FOR BDEPARTURE FROM OFFICE

On terminat’on of an executive Director's service contracs, the Committee wil take 1Mo account the depart'ng executive Directar’s duty 10 m tgate
his or her loss when deterrrining the amaunt of compensation. The Cammittee’s policy :n respect of the treatment of exacutive Directors ‘eaving
the Group 1s described below and 15 des.gned 1o support a smooth transition from the Company, taking nto account the interests of shareholders:

Component
of pay

Voluntary resignation

or termination for cause excluding redundancy

Death, ill health, disability, retirement

Departure on
agreed terms

Base salary,
pension and
benefits

Paid for the proportion of
the notice pencd workea

Paid up to tne gate of death or leaving. includ ng any untaken
heolidays prorated to such date In the case of ll health, a payment in
lleu of notice may be maae and, according to circumstances, may be

subject to mit gation In such cireumstances. some berefits such as
company car or madical insurance may be retained unui the end of

the notice period

Annua! bonus Cessaton of employment Cessation of ernployment during a bonus year or a*ter the year-end
but onor to the norma: bonus payment date will result in cash and
norma ly result in no cash deferred banus baing paid and prorated for the relevant portion of
the financial year worked and performance achieved L
In the case of the death of an executive Director, all deferred shares
will be transferred to the estate as soon as pessibie atter death. In

all other cases, sunect 1 the discretion of the Comrmities, unvested |
deferred snares will be transferred “o the individual on a date

cash durng a borus year will

S bonus being paid
Annual bonus Unvested deferred

deferred share awards will lapse
shares
i ) determined by the Commitiee
LTIP share Unvested LTIP share
awards awards will lapse

Treatment wll normally
fall between the two
lreatments descrbed n
- the previous columns,
subject to the discretion
of the Commuittee
and the terms of any
. termination agreement

Subject to the discretion of the Comm'\’ttce,runvésted LTIP share awards
will remam subject to the relevant performance conditions and normally

be measured at the onginal vesting date. The awards will normally be
prorated for the relevant proportion of the performance period worked.
Heowvever, ir the case of the death of an executive Director, the Committee
will determine the extent of vesting within 12 months of the date of death '

Options under As per HMRC As per HRARC regulations

Sharesave regulations ) ) . .
Other None Statutory payments and disbursements such as any legal costs
and outplacement fees
MNotes

at Tne Comrnittes will have the authonty to sette any legal clamis against the Company e o for unfair disrussal etc that m.ght anse on ternunation

bt There are no anhanced pravisions 10 ralalion ta a change of control

HOW SHAREHOLDER VIEWS ARE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT

The Rermuneratian Committee considers shareholder feedback

recewed in relation to the AGM each year and gudance from sharehclder
representative bodies more generally. Shareholders were consulted

in 2013 when formulating the Remuneration Pelicy, and in 2016 and
2017 when updating the Policy. Consuliation with shareholders has
always been constructive.

The Comrmittae consults proactively with its major shareholdors ang
intends to continue working closely with shareholders in future

LEGACY ARRANGEMENTS

For the avoidance of doubt, having received shareholder approval at the
2018 AGM of this Policy Report, authority was given to the Company to
contimue to honour any commitrments entered into wath curren’ or former
Directors {such as the payment of a persion or the unwinding of legacy
share schemes! that have been disclosed to shareholders 'n previous
reMunNeration reports

DISCRETIONS OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee operates the Group's various incontive plans according to
their respective rules ard in accordance with HMRC rules where relevant
To ensure the efficient administration of these plans, the Committee may
apply certain operational discretions These include the following.

» salecting the participants for the annual bonus plan and LTIP awards,
» deterrmining the tirming of grants and/or payments,

» determining the quantam of grants and/or payments (withbin the
Iinnts set out in the polcy taole commencing or paga 57},
adjusting the corstituents of the TSR comparator group,
determining the extent of vesting based on the assessment
of performance,

determining “good leaver” status and the extent of vesting
n the case of the LTIP and deferred shares,

determining the extent of vesting in the case of the LTIP

in the evert of a change of control;

making the appropriate adjustments required In certain
circumstances {e.g nghts 1ssues, corporate restructuring
events, vanation of capital and speaciat dividerds); and
urdertaking the annual review of weighting of performance
measures, and setting targets for the annual bonus plan and
LTIP from year to year,

*

The Commuttee may vary the performance conditions to apply @ LTIP
awards If an event occurs which causes the Comrrittee to consider that
it would be appropriate to amend the performance conditions, provided
the Committee considers the varied conditions are fair and reasonable
and not materially less challenging than the origiral conditions would
have been but for the eventin question,

From 2018, the Committee has explicit discretion 1o adjus: bonus target
outcomes if deemed appropriate, for examp'e 1o take account of matenal
M&A activity or other exceptional circumstances when they arse
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REMUNERATION REPCRT. POLICY CONTINUED

POLICY FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Purpose and link
1t strategy

» Takes account of
recognised practice
and set at a level that
's sufficient 1o attract
and retain high calibre
nor-execJtve Directors

Operation

* The Chavman s pad 8 single fee for all hus responsibiitiss
as determined by the Remuneration Committee. The
non-executive Directors are paid a basic fee, The Senior
Independent Director and the Chairs of the Audit and

Element
Non-executive
Directors and
Chairman fees

therr extra responsibilites
Whien ravieveing fee levels, account is taken of market

movements in non-executive Director fees, Board Comirmttee
responsibiities, engoing time comritments and the general

BCONOMIC environment
Fee increases, f applicable, are normally effective from
1 .January

In any persior, donus, share incentive or other share
option plans

The remuneration of the non-executive Directors s
determined by the Board of Directors. The non-exacutive
Directors de not participate in any discussion or decisions
relating to their owwn remuneraton

Any reasonable business-related expenses

tincluding tax thereon! can be reimbursed

Remuneratan Comrmittees receive additional fees to reflect

The Charman and ron-exocutive Disectors do not participate

Performance
Maximum assessment
» Other than when  » N/A

a non-executive
Director changes
rale or where
benchmarking
ndicates fees
require realignment,
fee increases

will not normally
excesd the general
level of increases
for the Group's
employees

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' LETTERS GF APPOINTMENT

The Chairman and non-executive Directors do not have service agreements but the terms of their appointment, including the tme commitment
expectad, are recarded inietters of aspontmant The Charman's appemntment miay be terminated on providing 17 months’ notce by cther party.
The appointments of the other non-executive Directors may be terminated by the Company or non-executive Director on providing one month's
notice Copies of the Charman’s and non-executive Drectors’ ietters of appomtmen: are avalable from the Company Secretary at the Company’s

Registered Office dunng normal business hours.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

Date original

Name term commenced

Date Expected
current term expiry date of
ctommenced current term

Joined the Board November 2017
and becare Chawrman in Apr) 2008
Sepromber 2013

Jdariuary 2016

Sentember 2013

January 2019

April 2011

lan King

Celia Baxter
Susan Brennan
Gres Kerr
Rajiv Sharma ~
Mark Vernon

September 2016 September 2022 °
Decempar 20217

September 2016

September 20727
- December 2021
April 20197 April 2020

* The second three-year terms of appontment of Celia Baxter and Gres kerr were due to expre n Septernber 2019 In February 209, the Nomimations Comimittee agreed 1o

oxtend ther respective appontmenis for further periods of 3 years, expinng i September 2022

Tre first three year term »f appointment of Susan Brennan was due to exprre in Dacernber 2018 In Fabruary 2018, the Norminations Committes agread 1o extend ner
i

appointment for a further tnree-year torm expring in Decermber 2021

' The sacond three year tarm of appontment of Mark Vermon expred ir Apni 20° 7 -5 appaimiment was extended for further penods of 12 morths in 2017 and in 2018, with
the atest penad of h 5 appairtment exprag n Aprd 2079 in February 2013, the Nominarans Compittae agraed [0 exend fis appointment 07 a further 12 manths, expring

ir Apnl 2020

rospectvely
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REMUNERATION REPORT:

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

SUMMARY OF THE COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Terms of Refarence of the Remuneration Comruttee, available in full
on the Company's website, are summar sed below

determine and agree with the Board the framework or broad nolicy
for tne remunerat'on of the Cnharmar of the Board, the executive
Directors ang other rmembers of the executve management as it

is designated to consider,

witnin the termis of the agreed po'icy and in consultat:on with the
Charman and/or Group Chief Executive, as appropriate, determine the
to7al individual remuneration package of the Charman, each executive
Director, and other des gnated senior executives including bonuses,
INCENTIVE payments and saare options or other share awards,

approve the design of, and determine targets for, any performance-
related pay plans operated by the Company and approve the total
arnua payments made under such plans,

review the design of all sharg incertive plans for approval by the Board
ard shareholders. For ary such plans, determine each year whether
awards will be made and, If so, the overall amount of such awards,
the individual awards 10 executive Directors, and other designated
senior executives and the performance targets 1o be used,

+ determine tha policy for, and scope of, pension arrangements for
each executive irector and other designated senior exoecut ves;
ensure that contractual terms on termination, and any payments
made, are fair to the individual and the Company, that fallure 1s not
raewarded and that the duty 1o mitigate loss 1s recagnised; and
cversee any major changes in employee benefits structures
throughout the Group.

.

MEMBERS
The Remuncration Committee consists entirely of
non-executive Directors.

Numiber of Muimber ot

meetings mestings

Member durihg term atzended
Ceha Baxter — Chair! 3 3
Charles Berry*' 3 1
Susan Brennan 3 3
Giles Kerr 3 2
lan King 3 3
3

Mark Vernon 3

The ful Commiiies met three ttes in 2019 I addition, aathonty was de egated 10
two mermbers of the Comittee, Ceha Baxter and Charles Berry, 16 hald gne
addizenal meeting o confirm the grant and ves ing o' share awarz.

Charles Berry retired “rom the Board cn 27 Aprit 2018 and attended the only

Comm ttee Meeting that was neld n 2013 prior to his retrerment

OTHER ATTENDEES AT REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Groun Chef Executive ang Group HB Director attend meetings by
invitation and the Group Company Secretary acts as secretaty to the
Comm ttee but no executive Director or other employee :s present
duning discussions relatng to his or her own remuneration

ADVISERS

Before recommending proposals for Board approval, e Remureration
Committee may seek advice from external remuneration consultants 1o
ensure that its fully aware of comparative external remunaration pracnee
as well as shareholdor, legislative and regulatory developments. The
Committee also considers publicly avalab-e sources of information
relaung 1o executive remuJneration

All advisers 1o the Remuneration Committee are appointed and instructed
by the Commuttee. Dunng the year, the Committee was advised by New
Bridge Street (part of Aon ple) in relation to ad hoc remuneration matters,
Withs Towers Watson in relation to advice on executive remunerat on, anG
by Korn Ferry in relation to the revision of the Remuneration Policy During
2018, the Company ncurred fees of £12,970 from New Bridge Street,

of £23.410 from Korn Ferry and of £12,400 from Willis Towers Watseon,
and thesc costs were based on a combinasion of hourly rates and fixed
tees for specfic iterns of work. New Bridge Steet has no other connection
with the Company. In addition to Korn Ferry’s work on the revision of the
Remuneration Policy, 1t assisted the Compary in the recruitment of
non-executive directors. In addition to Willis Towers Watson's advice

on executive remuneration, one of its other divisions provided insurance
broking services to the Group's US operations.

The Committee does not have a formal policy of subjecting its
remuneration consultants to a regular fiixed-term rotation, although the
Commuittee remains cognisant of the need to achieve objective advice
and good value whilst also benehiting from the consultants’ knowledge
of the Company The Commuttee is satisfied that the advice it has
received durng 2018 has been objective and independent.
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REMUNERATION REPORT:
ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND MATTERS ADDRESSED DURING 2018

The Commities Fas a calendar of standard items within ns remit and i~ addit.on it held :n-depth discussions on specific topics during tne year

The Committee typically meets three times each year. or more as required |n addition, authonty was delegated to two members of the Committee,
Cella Baxter and Charles Bearry, to hold aone addtional meeting to confirm the grant and vesting of share awards. 1he tab'e below shows the standard
jtems considered at each meeting, leading up to tne meeting in February where tha key decisions regarding performance, outcomes ana grants for
the comng year are determined

Standard agenda items Ad hoc items

February Review of performance and outcomes under the Annual Bonus
and Deferred Bonus Award.
Review of performance and vesting under long-term incentives.
Determing incentive structure for the next financial year ncluding
finahsation of targets,
Roview of Remuneration Report and Reruneration Policy.
Confirmation of LTIP, Deferred Bonus Awards and Restnicted
... Share Awarus. -
December Review and approval of Directors’ and senior managers’ salary
{2 meetngs)  and total remuneration packages for the following financial year.
Performance update on outstanding ncentive and bonus awards
Detarmine remunsration of Chairman.
Review of Commitiee’s Terms of Reference.

STATEMENT OF VOTING AT GENERAL MEETING

At the AGM held on 27 Apnl 2018, vates on the Directors’ Remunaration Report and Remuneration Policy were cast as follows:

Reason for
oo agamil, ACHOD 1aken
voting For Agamnst Total Withreld - 1f know oy Commitree
Remuneration Report Votes 340,676,718 4,045891 344922709 1,743 352 RA NS
%o 98.83% 117% 100 0% N/A
Remuneratian Pclicy 328 273,693 18,336,560 346,610,253 55,808 N/A N/A
94.71% 5.29% 100% N/A

© Avote watrheld 15 Gt @ vote n law and 15 not counted ir the calculahon of the progostian of vates cast "For” and “Aganst™ aresolution
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SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION {AUDITED INFORMATION)

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration in respect of qualfying services for the 2018 financia year tor each executive
Diractor, together with comparative figuras for 2017, Aggregate D rectors’ emoluments are shown at the end of the Single Total Figure of
Remuneration secton

Salanes Taxable berefis Sansoan benghts
ang and MeRlite {1} includ ng cash n
feos 2’ oWANCEs Borus® INCEeNT /85 lieu of pension Orer” Toral
fCods 00 £000s £000s £000s £000s £008s
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2ms 2017

Executives
David Squires 505 483" 28 26 473 400 - 101 g7 - 3 1107 1,009
B'ndi Foyle B 338 214 21 13 317 178 - - _ 68 a3 - - 744 443
Total
remuneration 843 597 49 39 790 578 - - 169 140 - 3 1,851 1457
Non-executives
lan King
{Chairman) 137 [ [} 0 - - - - - - - - 137 6
Charles Berry 51 155* 0 1 - - - - - - - - 51 156
Celia Baxter 59 52 ] 0 - - - - - - - 59 52
Susan Brennan 50 43 1 1 - - - - - - - - 51 44
Giles Kert 59 52 0 0 - - - - - - - - 59 52
Mark Vernor 59 50 0 0 - - - - - - - 59 50
Total T ) o
rermuneraton 415 368 1 2 - - - - - - - 416 260

Dovid Suures sawry was mereased from £3/5,000 pa to £480.000 p a with effect from 1 July 2017

B ndi Foy'e's figures reflect her boirg appointed 1o the Board on 3 May 2017

lan K ng was apponted to the Board on 13 Novermber 2017

' Charles Berry's 2018 figures ret:iect him retiring from the Board on 27 April 2018

" Taxable benefits include tre provisicon of a fully expensed company car or car allowance and private medical INSLrance:

* Awards urdor the doferred bonus avward, the Enhanred SIS, in mesprc: of 2018 perfarmance weil be granted 1in March 7012 The defered bonas elemaent that s 1o be grarted
n the forrm of shares to Dawid Squres and Bind. Toyle i March 207915 included in the Bonus figure and will be equiva ert i value to 31 23% of 2018 base salary, namely
f157 618 and £1056,557 respectva'y

' The performance corditions attached to David Squires’ and Binal Foy'e's 2016 LTIP Awards were not achigved and ro shares will vest under this award m March 2019 Further

aetals on the performance condinions can be found on nages 67 ann 68

Gavid Squires recerved a re-locatcn sllowance of £2.507 0 201/

= The aggregate amount of "emLnarato” gaa to of racevatle by Drectors in respect of gualfyng services as per paragraph 9 of 51 2008/40 Schedule 5 was £2,092,666
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REMUNERATION REPORT:
ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

FEES RECEIVED FOR OUTSIDE APPOINTMENTS

Meither David Squrres nor Bindi Foyle hold autside appomtments For wh'ch they are remunsrated.

ANNUAL FEES OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Direclors do not participate in any pension, bonus, sharg incentive or other share opticn plans. Their remuneraton reflects both

the tme given and the contnbution made by them to the Company's affars during the year, including memuership or charmanship of the Board or 18
Committees The remuneration of the non-executive Directors 1s determined by the Board of Directors. The non-executive Directors do not participate
In any discussion or decisions reiating to their own remuneration.

2018 2007 Parcentage
Fees £ f change
Chairman'’! 180,000 155,000 16.1%
Non-exgcutive Diractor# 50,000 413,250 15 6%
Cnair of Audit Cormmittee 9,000 9.000 0%
Chair of Remuncration Committee 9,000 3,000 0%
Semor Independent Dhirecter 8,000 9,600 G4

Charles Berry's Chairman fee of £155 000 p a reancd unchanged uitl he retired ‘ror the Board at the canglusier of the 2018 AGM held on 27 Apr | 2016 Upo~ beng
apponted Chairrran folioweng Charles Berry's retirement, lan King s foe was £180,000 p a The fee for the new Chairman was sct tasing due consideraton of the neea to

attiact a hugh calibre ndduat into the role, preferably with Aerospace experience |0 addition, the reguirements of the role [Fad iIncreased since his predecesser was appamten
The fees for non-oxecutive Directors were nereased 1o £50.000 p a0 7018 following a benchrrarking reviaw that had foune the iees 1o bo below jewer guartile, there had been
no fee increase 'n 2017 Following the increase, the faes paid ta the non-executive Directors were around iower auarile

SENIOR MANAGERS' EMOLUMENTS
In addition to setung the remuneration of the executive Directors, the Remuneration Comimittee oversaes the remuneration of other seniar managers.

The table below shews the cumulat've benefits of the three Divisional CECs, the three Divisional CFOs and the four most senior corporate managers

2018 2017

Total Towal

£000s £0G0s

Short-term employee benefits 3,424 3,293
Post-employment berefits 84 109
Share-basec payments 1,213 630
Total 4,721 4,082

PERFORMANCE AGAINST PERFORMANCE TARGETS FOR ANNUAL BONUS (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Ronlses are earned by refererce to the financial year and pad in March following the end of the financial year Cons.stent with racent years, the
boruses accrumg to the executive Direciors in respect of 2018 have been determined by adjusted CPS and free cash flow oorformance as set outin
the table below.

A summary of the measures, weightings and performance achieved is provided in the table below:

B ) 2018 7 _ 2017
h Bonus Banus
Maximum  Percentage payable Maximum Percentage payahle
Actual bonus  of maximum % af 2018 bonus of maximum (% of 2017
Threshold Target Maxitnum achieved achievable achieved salary}l®  achievable achieved salary)™
Free cash flow targets
Full year £29.07m £32.30m £50.00m £45.30m 35.00% 7854% 2749% 3000% 100 00% 30.00%
Adjusted EPS targets'™
Fult year
internal target 13.80p 14.93p 17.01p 15.92p 90.00% 73.58% 66.22% 51.00% 79.45% 40 52%
Year-on-year growth - - - - - - - 24.00% 52.00% 12 48%
Tatals 125.00% 74.97% 93.71% 10500% 79.05% 83.00%

When borus is payaile, this s oaid two-thirds ' cash and ore-mird -n deferred shares The geferred share elemert of the 2017 bonus was awarded on 29 February 2018
vased ar a share price of £2 BEE and shall ordirar Iy vest on the thrd anniversary of toe award 01 28 [ ebraay 2023 The deferred e cmiert of t~e 2018 bonus shall be awarded
:n March 2019 and the deta s disclosed n the 2019 Remuneraton feport

From 2018, the bonus will ne calouated with regard so full year cash dow and intesnal ad).sten < PS targets or a constant currency bas:s

For the free cash flow targets, borus becomes pavable at 90% of the Target, for tne mtornal Adjusted EPS target, bonus becomes payable at
92% of Target.
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TOTAL PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (AUDITED INFORMATION]
Executve Directors are able o participate in the Semior plc Group Flexible Retrernent Plan {Se~ior GFRP, a contract-based Group persona pension
arrangerrent with Standard Lie, or “eceive a pension allowance of up 10 20% of unrestricted sa ary

David Squires” single figure rerunerat or for pensior benehis in 2018 consisted of a cash allowance of £100,940 {2017 - £96,500), this being 20%
of h's salary recaivec. Bindi Foyle's single figure rerunerat'on for pensior benefits n 2018 consisted of a cash allowance of £67.600 {2017 - £42,862),
this being 20% of her salary received following her appointment 16 the Board.

No salary cap 15 applied in the calculation of Serior GFRP contnibution rates for executive Directors; there ‘s a choice of gontribution rates for executive
Dirzctors, name y 3% executive, 16%; employer; ar b3 executive, 20% employer

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED INFORMATION!

There were no payments made n the year for loss of office

PERFORMANCE AGAINST PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR LTIP VESTING
The performarce conditions and constituents of the 1SR comparator group are set out below

By reference to performance in the financial year {audited information)

2016 Award, vesting March 2019

[ferceniage

Target Maxirrium of total award

Performance condition {254 vesung) {100% vosung Actual achieved

Total sharehoide~ return ranking {50% of Award) 14.0 59 22 0.0%

Growth n adjusted earnings per share over performance penod (50% of Award) 10% 25% -15.28% 0.0%
Nerther performance conaitior for the 2018 Awards was achieved and sc none of the following awards shall vest in 2019

Walue

Number Nurmizer of shargs

ot shares PerLentage of shargs vesting

awarded vesting vesing £000s

Dav'd Sguires 334,507 0% 0 0

Bindi Fayle 65,727 0% 0 0

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (AUDITED INFORMATION}
Percentage

vsting at Ferformnance

Basis of Face value threshold Number penod end

Direcors Schierne avvard E000s performance of shares date

David Squires LTHP Annual award 757 25% 263,964 31 December 2020

Bind Foyle'" L TIP Annual award 50/ ?5% 176,778 31 December 2020

The face value of the swards was calculated using the clusing share price on 27 February 2018 of 786 8p, being the trading day immediately pror to tne date of 1he award
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REMUNERATION REPCRT:
ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

CURRENT POSITION ON QGUTSTANDING LTIP AWARDS INON-AUDITED INFORMATION)
The following tables show the current position against performance targets for LTIF awards cutstanding fram 2017 and 2018

Conditional share awards in 2018 Conditona' sharp awaasn 201/
Target Maximum ’ ’ arget Masirr um
Parformance condition (25% vesting) {100% vesting} Actual to date 125 vestrgl 1100 vesting! Actual to date
44.7th
Total shareholder return ranking  50th percentile 75th percentile percentile 14 7.3 7
Grow:h in adjusted earrings per
share over performance pariod 15% 30% 11.7%" 10% 25% 11 9%

Actual to date ‘gurc of 117 % represems the growth in the Aufusted LPS durng the frsiyear of the three-year serfoimance penod for the 2018 LT'F award
Aclial to daie hgure o) 17 9Y% ~eproscats the growth in the Adwsied FPS durmg the frst 1ae yoars of the three year pertormance penoid for the 2017 L TP awarg

For LTIP awards up to and including the 2017 awards, the Company's TSR performance has baen measured relative 1o a broadly simiar comparator
groun compnsing FTSE All Share manufactuning compames withiny selectad busingss sectors; the comparator graug used for the 2017 awards (s set
out below. This group has, over tme, reduced i size because of M&A activity To ensure a sutably broad peer group, the TSR comparator group
applicable 10 the 2018 LTIP awards adoptad a wider index, the FTSE 350 excluding scators with limited direct relevance to Senior and thoso exhibiting
Righ volatiity.

TSR is averaged over three months prior to the start and end of the performance period

SHAREHOLDER DILUTION

Percentage of 1ssued shares

Discrerianary o M Shares awarded as % ot 1ssued snares
e 3.22% Headroom
IMAXITILmM 5'm)
All schemes 6.43%
Imawimurm 1075) 437

The Company complies with the dilution guidelines contained within The Investrment Association Prnciples of Executive Remuneration

At 31 December 2018, awards outstanding and shares issued n the previous 10 years under all share plans (the Senior ple 2005 Long-Term Incentive
Plan {the 2006 LTIP), the Senior pic 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan {the 2014 LTIP), the Restricted Share Award Plan and the 2006 Savings-Related
Share Option Plan {the Sharesave Planl arnounted to 6.43% of the 1ssued orainary share capital of the Company At 31 December 2018, awards
outstanding and shares 1ssued i the previous 10 years under exacutive idiscretionaryl plans {tha LTIF and Nestncted Share Aveard Plan) armounted

10 3.224% of the 1ssued ord'nary share caprtal of the Company.

During 2018, all share awards were satisfien using market-purchased shares, The Remuneration Committee moritors the “lowy rates of the Company's
share plans, in particular before new share awards are made, to ensure the flow rates reman within the Investmert Association dilution guidelines.
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STATEMENT OF BIRECTORS SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED INFORMATION}

The Remuneration Committee encourages Directors to own snares in the Corpany and, i1 support of this pal'cy, 't expects executive Directors to

retain at east 50% of the shares that vest unaer the LTIP, atter allowing for tax labilities, untl a sharsholding equivalent in value 10 200% of pase saiary
s bult up David Squires’ halding of 71,410 shares consists of 80,000 shares that he purchased and 11,410 vestad snares. Based or the executive

Directors’ base salanes at 31 Decermber 2018, David Squires bad a holding of 13,44 of base salary and Bindi Foyle hac a holding of 18 2% of base
salary i1 the Company’s snares,

Deferred share awards are not waken into account for these purposes Shares are va ued using the Company's closing share price on 31 December
2018 of 189.40 (31 December 2017 — 260.7p) No opuens under the Sharesave Plar were exercised by the executive Directors durng the year

The table oelow shaows how each Director comphes with this requirerert

MNurrber of shares Number of shares Adeignal shates 16t counting towafds srarenolding guids nes
“fq”‘req to be owned outright Lrvested awards, Urwested gwards,
Ic:gl(jo‘iq;‘fyﬂslaz:g J;T-:::;:g subject 1o performande cond.tors not subject to perfornance conditions
salary at 37 persons} at Share ownersnip Dofered
Exacutie Directors December 26151 31 December 2018 reQuIre Nents et LTP award ! Sharesave share avsard
David Squires 537,946 71.410 No -13 4% 1,003,767 8,397 83.055
Bindi Toyle 358,917 64,931 No-18.2% 483,504 7,978 43,274
Number of
Mamber ot shares shares owned
awned autnght outright {including
{incluaing cennected Shares retained conhected
persgns) at Shares vested from 2018 persons) at
} 1 January 2618 durirg 2018 vested shares 31 December 2018
Executive Directors
David Squires 71,10 0 MN/A 71410
Bindi Foyle 61,3809 6,636 3,587 64,971
Non-executive Directors
lan King 0 - - 33,700
Charles Berry 10,000 - 10,000
Celia Baxter 10,000 - - 10,000
Susan Brennan 0 - - 5,900
Gilas Kerr 10,000 - - 10,000
Mark Yernon 18,200 - - 18,200

" Nenner performarce condit on attachea to [avd Squires’ or Bindi Foyle's 2016 LTIP award aver 234,507 shares, and 65 72/ shares respectvely (inciuded with n therr respectve
LTIP award figures abover were acheved; 1mose avsards (that were due to vest in March 2019 sral iapse m full
' Charles Berry's shareheloing when he ~etred from the Board on 27 Apri 2018 was 10,000
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REMUNERATION REPORT.
ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Share price performance

' 185 4p 10 334 4p

Senior plc total shareholder return

The closing middle market prce of the shares at 31 December 2018 was 189 4p {2017 - 260 7pl. During 2018, the sharces traded in the range of

The followang TSR graph compares the total shareholder return of the Company's shares against the FTSE All-Share, Aercspace & Defence mdex,

and the FTSE 250 Index over a ten-year period {where dividends are included gross of tax). This graph allows a comparison to be made aganst

organisations facing broadly simifar economic and market conditions as the Company.

i - Serar FTSEZ50 - F"SE All-Share A&D
1200 |
1.000 ),f%f\ N‘A VL’W\ |
, :
Ay p Wy nwf\vj 4 E
; 800 P LAY ‘ ) '
I iy ? By S i i '
, /IW Wh {‘(m ¥y ‘ W 1\,
' 600 A 210 L 'l
et f
o
400 - LYV AR
dﬂwr ( — PR
200 | A T T S e T g T Tt T e,
k. T e e
g !
Dec 08 Cec 09 Dec 10 Dec 1! Dec 12 Dec 13 Lec 12 Dec 15 Dec 17 Lec '3
REMUNERATION OF GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
CEQ single hgure of total
remuneraticn (EQQ0s) 578 8393 1,805 1,528 1,726 1,315 1,020 780 1,009 1,107
Annual variable element
award rates against
FHéAlMum opportunity (%) 38" 100 100 G2 65 54 14 21 79 75
Long-term incentive vesting
rates sgainst maxurum
opportunity (%) 100 82 100 100 100 91.8 21 0 0 ]

' Grven the difficult teae ‘aced oy many of the Group's ermoluyees in 2009, Mark 3ollims Lhose to warve, i full, lns ertitlement to bis 2008 performance bonws
" The single total figure of rerruneration i feial on 1w 20' 5 has been reslated from the Tgure shown e the 2015 Arnual Repart & Accoumts to reflec: 1he ditference in the valus

of the second tranche of David Sguires” Ore-off Award on the actual date of vesting as detaled in Note 34e on page 110 of thase Accounts
" Dunng 2015, Mark Rollins retired frore the Board on 31 Mav 2015 and David Saurres was appointed a Director on 1 May 201% The CED sing e figure of total remuneration

e udes the corbired 2015 valves for Mark Roltrs and David Squires
' The annual vanable maximum opport.nity increased 1o 1254 .0 2018 (2017 - 105%)

-
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PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF THE GROUP CHICF EXECUTIVE

The table boow shows how the percentage change in David Squires’ salary, benefits and bonus between 2017 and 2018 compares with the
percentage change in the average of eacn of nose comoonents of pay for a group of employeas. The Committee has selected the Group's senior
managers Ir Europe and North America, as the operat ons In these terntanes deliver approximately 90% of the Group's revenue, and these senior
rmanagers have broadly simifar structured remureration packages Bus nesses acquired by Senior dunirg tne year and eavers and joiners in @iiaer year

have been excluded to prevent distortion

Taxacie
Salary aeneh? Bunus
Percentage Percentage Perce~age
change crange crange
Group Chief Executive’’ 3.0% 76% 18.1%
Pay of senicr managers in Europe anc North America 3.7% 236%7 -1.8%

2017 saary of £480 000 was receved throughout 207/

Tre oasic salaty of Dawid Saures ngroased rorn £1/5 00010 2016 1o £490 060 wath offect from 1 July 7017 The salary percentage change s caculaicd or 1nc 0ass thal 1ne

For the purposes of making a more valia cGmpanson, tne comparator groap for the Tasazle berafit figure cons sted of UK-based serior managers who had a broadly smlar
bene’its structure as Davd Squites that ircluged the Jse 6f a vorpany car and rece pt of onvate healtrcare The decrease in the Taxab e Senefit ‘ur serior ianagers reflects

a gradual move away from usicg a company carin favour of taking a car allwarce

Relative importance of spend on pay

The following table sets out the percentage change in profit, dividends and overall spend on pay in the financial year ended 31 December 2018

compared with the financial year ended 31 December 2017

2018 20'7 Pargentage

£fm £m change

Employee reruneration costs {excludng social secunity) ™ 269.7 2555 56%
Adjusted profit before tax 83.0 731 13.5%
Dividends paid 29.6 278 6.1%

© Semor Atlas Comiposites was sold in Septeinber 2017

2019 REMUNERATION (NON-AUDITED INFORMATION)

An amended Remuneration Policy was appraved oy shareho.ders at the 2018 AGM. Mo amendments to the Remuneration Policy are to be proposed

to shareholders at the AGM in Apni 2019,

Salaries and fees for 2019

2013 2018 Percentaye
f £ change
Executives
David Squires 525,000 505,000 4.0%
Bindi Foyle 350,000 338,000 3.6%
Non-executives!™
Chairman” 185,000 180,000 2.8%
Non-executive Directors 51,500 50,000 3.0%
Chair of Audit Committee 9,000 9,000 0.0%
Chair of Remuneration Committee 9,000 9,000 0.0%
Serior Independent Director 9,000 9,000 0.0%
No additoral ‘ees are payable for Committer membership
* Upon being apoointed Charman at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM held an 27 Apnl 2018, lan King s feg was £ 180,000 p a Duing 2018, lan Kirg receved £137.183
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REMUNERATION REPORT:
ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Weighting of annual bonus KPIs for 2019
The individual weightings af the KPIs for the exacutive Direciors for the annual barws are anchanged from 2018 as set out m the following table

2013 2018
Enhanced Enhanced
Maximurm SMIS - Maximum SMIS -
possible XML possible maximum
cash awdrd  share award cash award  share award
Free cash flow target.
Ful year ?3.3% 11 /% 23.3% 1M1.7%
Adusted EPS target
l'ull year internal target 60 0% 30.0% 60.0% 30.0%
Totals 33.3% A1.7% 83.3% a41.7%

The actual targess are currently considered commercially sensitve becaase of the mformation that this prov des to the Company’s competitors.
Full disclosure of the 2019 targets will be disclosed in the 2019 Annual Report,

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS FOR 2019 AWARDS

Conditenal share awards to be grarted in 2019.

The perfarmance conditions for awards which will be made in 2019 will again be based on growth in Adjusted EPS (50% weighting and relatve TSR
measured aganst a peer group 1b0% weighting) The Adjusted EPS performarce thresholds for 2019 remain the same as those applied for 2018
awards, as set in the table below:

Weghting Target {25 % vestirg) Maemurm 100% vestingt
Total Sharenalder Return ranking 50% Median or higher Upper quartils or higher
Adjusted earnings per share 50% 16% growth over 3-yvear performance perod 30% growth over 3-year parformance penod

The TSR comparatar group applicable to the 2019 LTIP awards will ne the same as the comparator group apphcable to the 2018 LTIP awards, namaly,
*he FTSE 350 excluding sectors with linuted direct relevance to Sen.or and those exhibiting igh volatllity

APPROVAL Of THE DIRECTORS  REMUNERATION REPGRT
The Directors” Remuneration Report was aporoved by the Board on 1 March 2019

Sigred on behalf of the Board

CELIA BAXTER

CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
1 March 2019
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tre Drectors are respensible for prenaring the Annual Report and the
Group and Parent Compary F nancial Statermerts ir accordarce with
apphcable law and regulatiens

Company .aw regures the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company Financiat Staterments for gach firancial year, Under that law,
the Dhrectors are required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in
accordance with internatenal Financia: Reporung Standaras (IFRSY as
adopted by the Europear Unmion ana Arucle 4 of the |AS Regulation and
have ¢ ected to prepare the Parent Company Financial Statements in
accordance with United K ngdom Accourting Stardaras, includ ng FRS
101 Reduced Disc osure Framework.

Under cornpany law, the Directors must not approve the accounts unless
they are satisfied that they give a true anc fair view of the state of atfars
af the Group and Parent Company anc of the'r profit or loss for that
period {n praparing each o the Group and Parent Company Financial
Statements, the Drectors are reguired 1o

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistent'y;
make judgments and accounting est'mates that are reasonable,
relevant, reliable and prudent;

for the Group Financial Statements, state wnether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the ELU,

for the Parent Company Financial S:atements, state whether
applicable United Kingdom Accounting Stardards have been followed
subject 1o any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
Parent Company Financial Statemrents,

assess the Group and Parent Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to goirg
concern; and

use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend
to hguidate the Group or the Parent Company ¢f to cease operat ons,
or have na realistic alternative but to do so

Tre Directors are responsible for:

keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent
Company and enab'e them to ensure that the Parent Company
Financiat Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006;

such internal cortrol as they determing 1s recessary to enable the
preparat:on of Group ard Parent Company Financial Statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS IN RESPECT
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We confirm that to the best of our know edge”

.

the Finanicial Statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
set of accounting standards, give a true and farr view of the assets,
labilities, fmancial positen and profit or loss of the Group and tne
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a wholg;

the Strateg.c Reportincludes a far revievy of the development and
nerformance of the business and the positor of the Group and the
undertakings imc.udea in the consolidator taken as a whole, together
with a descript on of the principal ns«s ana uncertainties that tney
face, and

the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable and proviae the information
necessary for sharenclders to assess the Group’s position and
pertormance, business model and strategy.

By Order of the Board

DAVID SQUIRES
GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
1 March 2019 1 March 2019

N L N e Lk

BINDI FOYLE

and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reascnably
open o them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and

detect fraud ana ather rregularties; and
the maintenance and integnty of the corporate ana financial
information included on the Group and Parent Company’s website.

Under applicable law and reg.lations, the Directors are also responsible
for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Repaort, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Staterment that
comphes with that iaw and those regulations Legslation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparatior and disseminaton of Financial
Statements may differ from legislation in other jursdictions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SENIOR PLC

1. QUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

We nave audited the financial statements of Senior ple {(“the Company™)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, Consolidatoa Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet, Conso idatea and Company
Statement of changes in Fquity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
and the related notgs, including the accounting policies in Note 2

In our opinion:

The Financial Statements give a trug and farr view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Company's a‘tairs as at 31 December 2018
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

The Group Finangial Statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with international Financial Reporung Stardards as
adopted by tne European Union;

The Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, inciuding

FRS 107 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as rega-ds the Group
Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

-

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)"} and applicable law OQur responsibilities are
descrnbed below We heleve that the audit evidence we Fave obtainad
s a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Qur audit opinion 1s
consistent with our report to tne Audit Cormmittee,

We were first appointed as auditor by the shareholders at the Annual
Genera! Meeting on 21 Apnl 2017

The period of total uninterrupred engagement s for the two finarcial years
ended 31 December 2018,

We have tultiled our ethical responsibilities under, aad we remain
ndependent of the Group in accordance wath, UK ethical requirements
neluding the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to sted public interest
enlites. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

RISKS OF MATERIAL
MISSTATEMENT

£17.6m {2017: £17.6m) Subjective estimate

Refer to the Audit
Committee Report in
the Governance section
on pages 19 to b2,
Note 2 {significant
accountng policies)
and Note 21 {tax
balance sheet).

The tax risk provisicns held in connection with transfer
pricing, mcluding Inter-company royalty charges, is a key
nsk due to its size and the subjective nature of the arm’s
length basis to wh'ch the pricing should adhere to.

There is a risk thal the provisions for tax uncertainties

recorded are over or Jnder stated

The Group operates in a number of differert tax
Jrisdictions and Judgment is reguired 1o determine
tax provisions across the Group principally in the US

Determiration of provis ons for tax unceriamnnes is
subject to judgment In assessing the probable cutflow
of taxes that will be borne by the entity relating to
rratters whare the relovant tax authonty's final
assessment of the tax treatment 's uncertan

OVERVIEW

Materiality: Group financial statements as a whole

£3.2m (2017 £2.6m)

5% of Group profit before tax from continuing operations

(2017: 5% of Group profit befare tax from continu'ng operations)

Coverage

* 83% of Group revenue {2017, 84%;

* 37% of Group profit before tax (2017, 92%)
» 90% of Group total assets (2017: 91%;)
Key audit matters

Recurring risks * Provisions for uncemtan

for the Group tax positions
Our nsk « Carrying value of waork-in-
assessment progress and fimished goods
, i 15 the same .
Recurring risks as 201/ * Racoverability of the

for the Parent |
company

Parent Company's
investmient in subsidianes

2. KEY AUDITMATTERS: OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS

OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key authit matters are those matters that, n eur professionat judgment,
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements and
nclude the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which
Pad the greatest effect on the overall authi suategy; the atlocation of
resources In the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
Wa summarise below the key audit matters funchanged from 2017},

in decreasing order of audit signif.cance, 1n arriving at our audit opinion
above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters
and, o regured for public intcrest entines, our results from thase
procedures These matters were addressed, and our results are based
on procedures undestaken, in the comtext of, and solely for the purpose
of, our audit of the Financial Statements as a who'e, ard in forming our
oprion thereon, and consequently are Incidental to that opinon, ana
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

DUR RESPONSE

Our pracedures included:

* Qur tax expertise: Use of our own tax spacialists
16 assess the Group's tax postions, the Company's
correspondence with the relevant tax authorities, and 1o
analyse and challenge the assurmnptions used to determine
provisions for tax uncertainties This is based on our
knowledge and experiences of the application of the '
tax legislation, and cur understanding of the production
activities at the sites where royalty charges are applied
YWe also assessed the impact of changes in US tax
leg slation on the Group We challenged management on
the adequacy of the Group's provision for Transfer Pricing
nsks particularly ansing in the US.

* Assessing transparency: Assess the adequacy of
the Group's disclosures in respect of tax and ancertain
tax positions

Qur results

The effect of these matters s that, as part of our risk i

assessment, we determined that the provision for
uncertain tax positions has a high degree of estimation

* We found the level of provisions for tax uncertanties
10 be acceptable

uncertanty, with a potential range of reasonable
outcomes greator than our materiality for the Financgial

Statements as a whole
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£116 9m {2017, £105 8m}

Refer to the Audit
Committee Report in<he
Governance section on
nages 4910 b2, Note 2
{significant accounting
ol ces) and Note 17
{inventories),

£259.9m (2017: £259.9m)
Refer to Note 38
{accounting policies}

and Note 40 linvestments

n subsidianes) and
Company Balance Sheet.

Subjective estimate

The Group 15 engaged to manufacture goods that are
specific 1o customers’ requirements, and most items
a'e built to order. The marke:s that the Group serves
are price compeltive, and new produc:s attract
praductan learming curves that impact manufacturing
costs during the early stages of a product’s fe cycle.
As a consequence, there 1s a rsk that proddcts may
cost more than expectad to produce compared to the
projected cost whon the oniginal sales prices were set.
There 1s a n1sk therefore that the carrying vaiue of certain
‘terms of invertory (hoth work in progress and finisned
goods; are carned at in excess of net realisable value,

R : PURRTRIICRY

Low risk, high value

The carrying amcurt of the Parent Company’s
nvestment in 'ts subsialaries represents 64% of s
total assets. [ts recoverability is not at a hugh nsk of
significant misstatement or subject to significant
wdgrent However, due toits matenality in the context
of the Parent Company Financial Statements, this is
considerad to be the area that had the greatest effoct
on our overall Parent Company audit.

Our procedures incluced

Test of detail: F or a samp e of work-m-progress and
finished goods we assesscd whetner the projected cost
of \nventones {including cost to complets for work-m-
progress nersi were in excess of their net realisable
value and whether an approprate write down to net
real’sable value had been recogrised. Ve soecifica ly
assessed the forecast cost scheaules associated witn
new programmes to challenge the key assumptions
assoc’ated with the production fearnirg curves

From identified inventories with negative gross margins,
we selected a samiple and assessed the appropnateness
of the level of provision.

Assessing transparency: Assess the adequacy o the
Group's disclosures m respect of inventores

Our results

We found the carrying value of wark-in-proyress and
finished goods to be acceptable.

Our procedures included.

-

Carrying value: We compared the carrying amount of
the investment with the relevant subsidiary’s draft
statutory balance sheet to identify whether its nat assets,
being an approximation of its minimum recoverable
amount, was in excess of its carrying amount and
assessed whether the subsidiary has historically been
profit-making

Qur results

We found the Parent Campany's assessment of
the recoverability of the investment in subsidianes
1o be acceptable.

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN OVERVIEW
OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

The matenality for the Group Financial Statements as a whole was set
at £3.2m {2017: £2.6m} determined with reference to a benchmark

ot Group profit before tax from continuing operations of which 1t

We agreed to report to the Audit Committec any corrected or uncorrected
identfied misstatements exceeding £162,000 (2017 £130.000] in
addition to other dentified rmusstatements that warranted reperting

on qualtative grounds.

Of the Group's 34 (2017: 34} reporting compenen:s fexcluding the

represents b% (2017 b%;)

Materiality for the Parent Company Financial Statements as a whole

was capped at £2.9m {2017
to a benchmark of company

Parent Company), we subjected 23 components to full scope audits

£2 3m), determined with reference
total assets, and then capped at 90%

{2017 80%) of the overa’l Group matenality.

GROUP REVENUE

Group

revenue

2B

Group profit
before tax

LU D7

W - =saps for Graup i Lp apoees 2008

Besut . terpyents

SAcipog tram tval and s e tasn ke

BTN AR R R VA 1)

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX*

(2017: 23} for group purposes

The components within the scope of our work, including the Parert
Company, accounted for the percentages illustrated beow.

GROUP TOTAL ASSETS

Group

total assets

AR |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SENIOR PLC CONTINUED

The remaining 17% of total group revenue, 13% of group profit before
tax and 10% of tota group assets is represented by 11 reporting
companents, none of which indnadually represented more shan 5%
of any of total group reverue, group profit before tax or wotal groun
assets For these residual companants, we performed analysis at an
aggregated group level 1o re-examine our assessment that there were
no significant risks of matenal misstatemrent within these.

The Group Audit Team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas to be covered, including the relevant risks detailed
above and the information to be reported back. The Group team
approved the comoanent matenialities, which ranged from £0.1m to
£1.0m (2017 £0.2m - £1.0m} {excluding the component materiality for
Parent Company, wh.ch was set at £2.9m {2017: £2 3m)), having regard
1o the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across the compongnts
The work on 14 of the 23 components {2017, 14) was performed by
component auditors and the rest, ncluding the audit of the Parent
Company, was performed by the Group Audit Team

The Groun Audit Team visited six component locations {2017 seven)

in the US and the UK 10 assess the audit nisk and strategy Telephone
confarence meetings weare also held with these component auditors and
all others that were not physically visited At these visits and meatings,
the findings reparted to the Group Audit Team were discussed in more
detail, and any further work required by the Group Audit Team was then
parformed by the companent auditor.

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£3.2m (2017 £2 6m}
Moo firaniig
SUAOMONEE Y ATEr Ny
£0.1m -£1.0m

[2017: £0.2m ~ £1.0m}
Aanje of ~atecah v al
23 e pOCETE

£0.16m (2017: £0,13m)
Missraments repstad
ot e AultLonwtes

[Z7acien
2007 R Ir

B

Croup matgaa 1y

4. WE HAVE NOTHING O REPORT ON GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the Financial Statements on the going
concern basis as they do not intend to hquidate the Company or the
Group of to cease ther aperations, and as they have concluded that the
Company's and the Group's financial position means that this 1s realistic.
They have also concluded that there are no matenal uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over ther ability to conbinue 85 3 going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the Financial
Statements (" the going concern penod”},

Qur responsibility 1s to conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’
conclusions and. had there been a matenal uncertainty relaed 1o going
concern, to make reference o that » this audit report However, as we
cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events
may result in cutcemes that are Inconsisient wath |udgments that were
reasonable at the time thoy were made, the absence of refererce to a
material uncertainty 1n this auditor's report 15 not @ guarantee that the
Group and the Company will continue in operation.

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent
risks to the Company’s business model, including the impact of Broxit,
and analysed haw those risks might affect the Convpany’s financial
resources of abiiity to continue operations over the going concern pernod
We evaluated those risks and concluded that they ware rot sigrihicant
cnough to require us to perform aaditional audit procedures
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Based on tis work, we arc required to report ta you il

* We have anything material to add or draw attention to in “elation 10
the Drectors’ Statement in Note 1 to the Firancia: Statements on
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no material
uncertaintes that may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company's use of that basis for a pericd of at least twelve montns
from the date of approval of the Financial Statements; or

The related staterrent under the Listing Rules set out on page 29
is raterially inconsistent with our audit knowledge

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did not identify going
corcernas a key audit matter

5. WE HAVE NOTHING TG REPORT ON THE OTHER INFORMATION
N THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are responsibie for the other informartion presented i

the Annual Report together with the Financial Statements Cur opinion
on the Financial Statements does not cover the other Informatior and,
accorcingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thareon.

Our responsibility s to read the other information and. n doing so,
consider whether, based on our Financial Statements audit work, the
information therein 1s matenally rrusstated or inconsistent with the
Financial Staterients or our audit knowledge. Based sole y on that work
we have not identfied material misstaternents in the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information-

* We have not identified matenal misstatements in the strategic report
and the Directors’ report;

*« In our opinion the inforration given in those reports for the financial
year is consistent with the Financial Staternents; and

* |n ou- oninion those reports have been prepared in accordance with
the Comparnies Act 20Uk,

Directors’ remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remunerat.on Report 1o be audited

ras been properly prepared n accordance with the Companies Act 2008.

Disclosures of principal risks and longer-term viability
Basad or the knowledge we acquired during our Financial Statements
audit, we have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to i1 relation to!

» The Directors” confirmation within the Viability Statement on page 29
that they have cared out a robust assessment of the prmcipal risks
facing the Group, including those that wouid threaten i1s business
model, future performance, solvency and liguidity;

The Principal Risks disclosures describing these nsks and explaiming
how they are being managed and mitigated, and

The Directors” explanation in the viability statement of how tney have
assessed the prospects of the Group, over what penod they have
done so and why they considered that penod to he appropriate, and
their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that
the Group will be able to contunue in operation and meet its labihtes
as they fall due over the penod of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications
or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Viahility Statement,
e have nothing to report in this respect.

Our work is imited to assessing these matiers in the context of only the
knowtedge acquired during our Financial Statements audit. As we cannot
predict all future avents or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with jJudgments that were
reasonable at the tme they were made, the absence of anything to report
on these statements 1S not a gdarantee as to the Group’s and Company's
lorgear-term viability.



Corporate governance disclosures
We are required to report to you if

* We have dentified matenial nconsistencies between the knowledge
we acquired dunng our Financial Statements audit and the Directors’
Statement that they consider that the annual report and Finaricial
Statements takan as a whole 1s far, balanced and uncerstandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Groun's positien and performance, business model and strategy; or

* The section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audit
Comrittee does not appropriately address matters com municated
by us 0 the Audit Committee,

We are required to report to you if the Corporate Governance Staternent
does not properly disclose a departure from tne eleven provisions of

the UK Corporate Goverrance Code speaified by the Listing Rules for
QUr FEVIEW,

WWe have nothing to report in these respects.

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER MATTERS ON
WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPQRT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if,

N our opINion:

+ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» The Parent Company Financial Statements and the par: of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

* Certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

» We have not received all the iInformation and explanations we require
for qur audit

We have nothing to report in these respects.

7. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully In their statement set oul on page 73, the
Directors are responsible for' the preparatior: of the Firancial Statements
including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, such internal
control as they determine is necessary 1o enable the preparation of
Fnancial Statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether
due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and Parent Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
10 going concern; and using the going concern bas's of accounting unless
they either intend to iquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistc alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurarce about whether the
Financial Statements as a whole are free from matenal misstaterment,
whether due to fraud or other regularities (see below), or arror, and to
issue our opinion in an auditor's report, Reasonable assurance 1s a high
level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance witn [SAs (UK will always detect a material misstatement
when It exists. Misstaternents can arse from fraud, other irregulanties or
arror and are considered matenal if, Indwadually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the Financial Statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities 15 provided on the FRC’s website
at www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities

Irregularities — ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be
expected to have a matenal effcct on the Financial Staterments from our
general commercial and seciar expenence, and through discussion vith

e directors and other management {as reguired by audiing standards),
and from inspection of the group’s regulatory and legal cor-espondence
and discussed with the directors and other management the policies
and procedures regardirg compliance with laws and regulations. We
comrnunicated identfied laws and regulaticns troughout our team and
remained alert to any indicatiors of non-compliance troughout the audt.

Tne potential effect of these laws and regulations on the Financial
Statements vanes corsiderably,

Firstly, the group 1s subject to laws and regulations that directly affect

‘he Financial Statements including financial reporting legislation dincluding
related companies leqislation), distnbutable profits legisiation, and taxation
legislation ana we assessed the extent of compliance with these taws
and regulations as part of our procedures on the related Financial
Statemert items.

Secondly, the group is subject to many cther laws ana regulations where
the consequences of non comphance could have a matenal effect on
amounts or disclosures in the Financial Statements, for instance through
the imposition of fings or litigation We identified the following areas as
those most likely to have such an effect health and safety, anti-bnbery
and corruption, employment law and export laws and regulations.
Auditing standards imit the required audit procedadres to identify
non-cormphance with these laws ana regulations to enguiry of the
directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any. These limited procedures did not identify actual
or sLspected non-comphance.

Owing o the inherent limatations of an aJdit, there is an unavoidable

nsk that we may not have detected sorme material misstatements in

the Fimancial Statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit Ir accordance with auditng standards. For exanple,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
liregulartties) is from the events and transactions reflected m the Financial
Statemarts, the less likely the inherently imited procedures required by
auditing standards would identify it. In addition, as with any audit, there
remained a higher risk of non-detection of irregularitics, as these may
mvalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, Misrepresertations, or
the overnde of internal controls. We are not responsible for preventing
non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with
all laws and regulations.

8. THE PURPOSE OF QUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE
OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,

In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compan es Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we nught state 1o the
Company's members those matters we are required tc state to them
In an auditor’'s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accepppr assume responsibility to anyone
other thepthe Company and the pany's members, as a body, for
our audﬁ&:.«f}ms raport, Binions we have formed
Robert Bren (Senichr Statutory Auditor]

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 6GL

1 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 Deceber 2018

Year ended Year ended
2018 2007
Noies £m fm
Revenue 3 1,082.1 1,023.4
Trading profit 69.3 B4 8
Share of joint venture orofit 15 0.8 0.7
Operating profit " ) £69.9 655
nvestment incorme 7 0.6 02
Finance costs 3 (9.2} Q7
Loss on disposal 31 - 3.8
Profit before tax'” 61.3 522
Tax {chargel/crednt 10 (11.2 8.1
Profit for the period 50.1 60.3
Attributable to:
Equity holaers of the parent 50.1 60.3
Earnings per share
Basic? 12 11.99p 14.39p
Diluted” 12 11.83p 14,30p
' Adjusted operating profit 9 916 826
™ Adjusted profit before tax 9 83.0 731
" Adjusted earnings per share 12 16.08p 14.39p
|+ Adjusted and diluted earnings per share 12 15.87p 14.30p
CONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
Year ended Year erded
2018 2017
totes £m £
Frofit far the period 50.1 80.3
Other comprehensive income:
ltems tnat may be reclassified subsequently to profit or [oss:
{Lossesigams on foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges during the penod 8.0) 129
Reclassification adjustments for losses/iprofits) inciuded in profit 13 (1.4
| osses¥gains on fareign exchange contracts  c¢ash flow hedges 28 16.7) 15
Exchange differences on transtation of overseas operations 28 20.3 (18.2}
Tax relating to rterns that may be reclassified 10 13 2.3)
14.9 9.0
lterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gains on defined benetit pension schemes 35 5.8 5.2
Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 10 {0.8) 0.7
5.0 59
Cther comprehensive income/(expense] for the period, net of tax 19.9 3n
Total comprehensive income for the period 70.0 572
Attributable to:
Equity hoiders of the parcnt 70.0 57.2
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 Decermrber 2018

Year ended Year cnded

2018 2007
HNotes £ fm

Non-current assets
Goodw Il 13 3129 3024
COherintangible assets 14 26.7 1.6
Ipvestment In jairt veriure 1% 3.0 2.4
Property, plant and equipment 16 285.6 2561
Deferred tax assets 21 2.4 16
Loan to joint venture 15 - 03
Retrement benghits 35 309 154
Trade and other receivables 18 05 05
Total non-current assets 662.0 i 6243
Current assets - ' ) 7
Inventories 1/ 177.8 1545
Loan to joint venture 15 - 0.2
Current tax raceivables 21 27 1.0
Trade and cther recevables 18 165.0 164.3
Cash and bank balances 32¢ 17.2 286
Asserts classified as held for sale 2 o T 29
Total current assets T - 7 3627 3265
Total assets 10247 350.8
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 196.0 1730
Current tax labilities 21 218 2172
Obligations under finance leases 22 02 0.3
Bank overdrafts and loans 19 2.7 6805
Provisions o - 24 1.3 5bh
Total current ligbities T 7 2317 280.5
MNon-current liabilities
Bank and other loans 19 1672.3 106.7
Retirement benefits 35 124 14.7
Deferred tax hablities 21 42.2 343
Obligations under tinance leases 22 - 02
Provisions 24 0.2 02
Others o o 27 26
Total non-current liabilities T N 2248 1587
Total liabilities 456.5 419.2
MNet assets 568.2 5218
Equity
Issued share capital 25 419 419
Share premium account 26 14.8 48
Equity reserve 27 5.7 39
Hedging and translation rasoerve 28 48.2 333
Retained earnings 29 465.6 4388
Own shares 30 (8.0} nn
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 568.2 531.6
Total equity 568.2 53186

The Financial Statements of Senior ple (registered number 282772} were approved by the Board of Directors and autnonsed for issue on 1 March
2019, They were signed on its behalf by:

DAVID SQUIRES BIND! FOYLE
DIRECTOR . DIRECTOR

R S . Yl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year erded 31 December 2018

All enquity 1s attributabe © equry hodders of the parenr

Hedging

Issued Srare ang
share premiam Fguty  translation Retaned Chaur Tanal
rapta Account r=erve esaree aarmngs shAares equuly
Notes i fal i fim £ra £m fm
Balance at 1 January 2017 4.9 148 3.0 42.3 4000 {1.51 500.5
Profit tor the year 2017 - - - - 60.3 - 50.3
Gains on foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 28 - - - 1.5 - - 115
Exchange differances on translation of overseas operatons 28 - - - 118.2) - - 118 2}
Actuanal gains on defined benelit ponsion schemes 35 - - - b7 - 52
Tax relatirg to components ot othcr comprehensive income 10 - - - (23 0.7 - {161
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - (9.0} B6.2 - 5772
Share-based payment charge 34 - - 19 - - - 19
Furchase of shares held by employee benefrt trust 3 - - - - - {C.1) {0.1)
Use of shargs held by employee bencfit trust 3 - - - - {Q b} Q.5 -
Transfer 1o retained earnings 29 - - 1.0} - 1.0 - -
Dwidends paid 1 - - - — (279} - (27.9)
Balance at 31 December 2017 41.9 148 39 33.3 41388 {11) 531.6
Profit for the year 2018 - - - - 501 - 501
Losses on foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges 28 - - - 6.7} - - 6.7)
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations 28 - - - 203 - - 20.3
Actuanal gains on defined benef pension schemes 35 - - - - 5.8 - 58
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 10 - - - 13 {0.8) - 05
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - 14.9 55.1 - 70.0
Share based payment charge 34 - - 34 - - - 34
Purchase of shares held by employee benefit trust 30 - - - - - (7.2) (7.2)
Use of shares held by employece banefit trust 30 - - - - 0.3) 0.3 -
Transfer 1o retaned earnings 29 - - {1.6) - 1.6 - -
Dwidends paid " - - - - {29.6} - (29.6)
Balance at 31 December 2018 41.9 14.8 5.7 48,2 465.6 {8.0) 568.2
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year enced 31 December 2018

Year ended Year enged
2018 2077
MNites £m fm
Net cash from operating activities B 32a 100.7 11089
iﬁi}ésting activities -
Interest received 0.4 0.4
Proceeds on disposal of property, plart and equinment 05 18
Purchases of property, plant and ecuipment 16 {54.6) {57 3}
Purchases of intangible assets 14 1.7 {2.5}
Proceeds on disposal 31 - 04
Loan repaymens by joint venture 15 05 03
Net cash used in investing activities i {54.9} 1519)
Financing activities
Dividends paid 11 {29.6) {27 9)
New loans 11.9 78.7
Repaymet of borrowings {114.3} {115 8)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases {0.3) 05
Purchase of shares held by employee berefit rust (7.2) e
Net cash used in financing activities . ) (39.5) {65.6]
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 63 (66
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 97 16.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1.0 0.5}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 32¢ 17.0 97
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Senior plc 1s a company incorporated in England and Wales under the
Companies Act 2006, The address of the registered office 1S givan on the
Irside back cover The natute of the Group's operations and its princinal
activihies are set oul In Note 4 and on pages 1 10 37

ftems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary econamic environment
in which the ertity operates (the functionat currency). These Financial
Statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

7. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

These Financial Staterments have been prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the
European Union and they therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulation They have been preparcd on the historical cost basis, except
for the revatuation of certan financial instruments and retremaent benefa
costs measurcd in accordance with 1AS 19. They have aiso been prepared
on the going concern basis as $et out in the Fimancial Review on pages
2610 29 The Directors have, at the nme of approving these Fnancial
Statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company
have adequate resources to continue in operational existerce for the
foreseeable future. Therefore they continue to adopt the going concarn
basis of accounting in preparing these Financial Statements.

Changes in accounting policies

At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statemnents, @ number of
new standards and amendments to existing standards have been 1ssued,
ail of which are effective, apart from IFRS 18, which 1s effecuve on

1 January 2019 and has not beer adopted early. A summary of the
impact review performed on each standard 1s given below. None of
these changes will have an effect on cash generated by Operations

nor on free cash flow, apart from IFRS 18, which is explaned below.

Ths stardard covers the classification, measurement, imparnent ard
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilties together with a
new hedge accounting model. It replaced IAS 39 Financial Instruments
from 1 January 2018 The standard reguires financial assets and financial
lisbilities to be held at amortised cost or 10 be fair valued through either
the profit and loss account (FVTPL} or other comprehensive income
(FVTOCH. All non-derivative financial assets and hiabllities are held at
amortised cost. All denvative assets and liabilities are farr valued and held
for trading (FYTPL) or are cash flow hedges (FVTOCI). In accordance with
the transtional provisions m IFRS 9, comparauve figures have not been
restated with the exception of certain aspects of hedge accounting.

There 1s no material impact for the Group on transition to the
new standard.

VUi s T e e T L L

Th's standard, which has replaced existing revenue standards, requiras
the separation of performance obligations within cantracts with
customers and the contractual value to be allocated to each of the
performance obligations. Revenue is then recognised as cach

perfarmance obigauon is satisfied.

The Group has adopted this standard using the cumulative effect methed,
therefore the information presented for 2017 has rot been restated This
involved calculating the relevant adjustiments required for contracts not
completed as al the ransition date of 1 January 2018.

The impact of the transition on the Financial Statements for 2018 is not
matcnal Market practice and industry merpretations of IFRS 15 are
contnuing 1o evolve. The Group will continue to monitor these
developrrents and will re-evaluate the ransitional adjustments as
necessary, but we do not antiCipate any matenal aqustments being
required given the Group's operating model
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Effective for annual perods beginning 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 Leases
will replace 185 17 Leases and requires lessecs to recognise right of use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (he they operating or financing in
classification urder |AS 17), unless the lease termis 12 montns or less or
the underlying asset 1s low value As at 31 December 2018, the Group
holds a significant rumber of operating leases whicn under IAS 17 were
expensed on a straight-ine basis over the lease term {see Note 33).

The Group has undertaken a comprehensive review across alt lease
cornmiments and performed the reguired assessment of its cumulative
adiastment on transition to 1FRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and applied the
standa‘d from the transit:onal date using the modified retrospective
approach and net restating comparatives As at 1 January 2018, the
Group's audited nght of use assets were £96.7m, finance lease habiities
were £98.3m and working camtal and non current liabilities decreased
by £0.4rmin total.

The estmated annua financial iImpact has also been updated from prier
guidance in order to reflect the lease portfolio and fmancial conditions
at the date of transition; actual financial impacts will differ as these
conditions change. From the financal year ending 31 December 2018,
deprecianion (£10.2m annually as determined at the date of transition)
on the nght of use assets will be charged ta the Consclidated Income
Staterment while Interest (f 3 6 annually as determined at the date of
transition) will be accrued against the lease habilites. These charges to
the Consolidated Income Statement will be partly o‘fset by operating
lease rentals that will no lorger be expensed to the Consolidated Income
Statement (£11.3m anrually as determined at the date of transition).

As a result of thus accounting change and the related classification of
cortain items in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, in the financial
year ending 31 December 2012, cash generated by Operations and free
cash flow (as defined in Note 32) are expected toincrease by £11.3m and
£7 7m rospoctrvaly, Capital rapayments of lease labilities will be classifiod
o net cash used In financing activities, resulting 10 a neutral effect on the
movernent in cash and cash equivalents

The adoption of IFRS 16 does not impact the Group's lending covenants,
as these are based currently on frozen GAAP.

The following practical expedients for IFRS 16 are expected to be taken
on the transition date:

+ the Group will not reassess whether exising contracts are, or contain,
a lease and will apply IFRS 16 only to existing contracts that were
previously identified as leases under IAS 17,

= the Group wilt apply a single discount rate 1o a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics, and

s tor leases which have a remaming term of less than 12 menths from
the transition date, the Group will treat these leases in the same way
as short-term leases

| T L PR R L T T T e [ R P TR
There are no other material neww standards, amendments to standards or
interpretations which are effective for the year ended 31 December 2018,
IFRIC 23, which clanfies accounting for uncertamties in income taxes,

15 effective on 1 January 2019 and 1s not expected to have a sigrificant

impact on the Consohdated Financial Statements of the Group.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial
Statements of Senior ple and the entities controlled by it (its subsidianes)
made up te 31 December 2018. Control 1s achieved when Senior plc has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an mvested
entity 5o as to obtain henelts from its activities.

Acquisitions of subs'diaries and bus nesses are accounted for using
the acqusition method The consideration transferred for eacn acquisition
s the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES .07 ", - .

transferred, habiities incurred or assumed, and equity Irterests ssued
by the Group The considerasion transferred ircludes the fair value of any
asset or iability resulting from a contingent corsideration arrargement

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. lgentifianie assets
acquired and liabi iies ard contingent liabilities assumed are measured
nitially at ther far va.ues at the acquisition date. On an acguisition-by-
acquisition pasis, the Group recogruses ary non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at farr value or at the non-controling interest's
proporiionate snare oF the acquiree’s net assets

The rasults of subsichares acquired or disposea of during the year are
ncluded in the Consoldated Income Staterment from the effective dato
of acqursiion or Jp to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate

The results of jort ventures are accounted for using the eguity
accounting method.

Whera necessary, adjustments are made to the finangial staternents of
subsidianes to bring the accounting policies used in line with those used
by the Group

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
elirinated on consoldation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation 1s measured as the excess of the
cansidaration transferred, the amount of any non-controlhing interest in
the acquirce and the acquisition date fair value of any previcus equity
interest in the acquirae over the fair value of the Group's share of the
dentfiable net assets acquired L s recognised as an asset and reviewed
for impairment at least annually and will be reviewed for indicators of
impairment at the Balance Sheet date. Any impairment 1s recognised
immaediately through the Consclidated Income Statement and is not
subsequently reversed.

If the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acqurree and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interast in the acquiree 1s less than the fair value of the net assets
acquired (e bargan purchase), the difference 1s credited to the
Consolidated Income Statement in the penod of acquisition.

Goodwill acguired i a business combination 1s allocated, at aquisition,

to tre group of cash-generatirg units {CGU groups) that are expected to
benefit from that business combination. CGU groups to which goodwil!
has been allocated are tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there 1s an indication that the CGU group may be impared. The
recoverable amount of the CGU group is determined by applying a pre-tax
discount rate 1o 1ts pre-tax future cash flows. if the recoverable amount
of the CGU group 1s less than its carrying amourt, the impairment loss

15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU group and then to the other assets of the CGU group pro rata
on the basis of the carrying amaunt of each asset in the CGU group.

An rmparment loss recogmsed for goodwill1s not reversedin a
subseqguent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or part thereof, the attributable amount of
goodwill s mcluded in the determinatior of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill anising on acquisitions prior to the date of trarsition to IFRS has
been retamned at the previous UK GAAP amount subject to bemg tested
for ‘mpairment at that date. Goodwill written off to reserves under UK
GAAP prior to 1998 has not been rainstated and 1s not included in
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Revenue recognition

The Group predomirantly has one revenue strearm relating 10 engineered
compenents of systems {products), which are customer specific, with

a secondary revenue stream of funded development revenue Both
streams have dentifizble customer contracts and pricing spec fic
performance obligations

The transaction price 1s the amount of consideration to wiich an entity
expects ta be erutled in exchange for transferring promisea goods or
services ta a customer. Revenue Is recogrusad net of discounts, VAT
and other sales related taxes. The determination of the transaction pree is
based upon pricing snecified ir the customer contract e a price per uiit

Ravenue is recognisea as the wentfied performance obugat ons
are satisfied.

The pe-formance obigation for goods s a specific paint ir trre when
the cLstcmer obtains control, whicn 1s upon defivery or when available
*or collection. Allocaton of transaction price to performance obligations
15 given in the contract 1.e. a unit de ivered or avalable for collection.

The performance obligation for deve.opment revenue s a specific point
In time when the customer obtains control of the output, for example &
frstartcle good, which 1s the acceptance milestone specified in the
customer contract.

Drvidend incerme from irvestments is recognised when the shareholders’
legal nights to receive payment have been estaghshed,

Interest
Interest receivable/payable 1s credited/charged to the Income Statement
using the effective interest method

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
substantially transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the

Group at therr far value or, if ower, at the present value of the minimum
lease paynmients, each dotermined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding habiity to the lessor 1s included in the Balance Sheet as

a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and a recuction of the lease obligation in order 1o achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaning balance of the hability. Finance
charges are charged directly to the Income Staternent.

Rentals payable under aperating leases are expensed on a straight-ling
basis over the sorm of the relevant lease.

Benefits receved and receivable as incentives to enter into an operating
lease are alse spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded
at the rates of excharge prevalling on the date of the transaction At each
Balance Sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in foreagn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaling on the Balance
Snest date Mon-monetary items carned at fair value that are denonrinated
in foregign currencies are translared at the rates prevailing at the date when
tne far value was determined. Non-monetary iteims that are measured at
histor'cal cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Gains and losses
ansing an retranslation are included in profit or loss for the perod, except
for excharge differences arsing on non-monetary assets and habilives
where the changes in fair value are recogrised directly in equity, subjsct
o mrestng the requirements under 1AS 21

In order to hedge ts exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group
enters into forward exchange contracts {see section below on derivative
‘nancial nstruments and hedging for detal's of the Group's accounting
policies in respect of such denvative financial instruments),

On consoldation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's overseas
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the Balance
Sheet date Income and expense itoms are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange rate differerces arising, f any.
are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's translation reserve
Such translation differences arc recognised as income or expense n the
period in which the operaton 1s disposed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES L T

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and labilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate on the relevant Balance Sheet date,

The exchange rates for the major currencies applied in the translation of
results were as follows.

Average Average Year-end Year ena

rates rates rates rates

2018 2017 2018 2017

US Dellar 1.34 129 1.28 135

Government grants

Government grants recelvea for items of a revenue nature are recognised
as Income over the pernod necessary 1 match them with the ~¢lated
costs and are deducted in reporting the related expense

Government grants relating to investment in property, plait and
equipment are deducted from the initial carrying value of the related
capital asset

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contnbution retirement plans are charged as an
expense as they fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit plans are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans
where the Group's obligations under the plans are equivalent 1o those
ansing in a defired contribution retirement plan.

For defined benefit retirement plars, the cost of praviding beneits s
deterrmined using the Projected Unit Method, with full actuarial valuations
being carned out an a triennial basis, and updated at each Baance Sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in
which they cceur. They are recognised outside the Consclidated Income
Staternent and are prosented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense at the earlier of a plan
amendment, curtallment, or restructuring

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Consoliaated Balance
Sneet represents the present value of the defired benefit obligation, and
as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any net asset resulting
from this calculaton s limited to the past service cost plus the present
value of avallable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The discount rate and inflation rate used to measure the UK retirement
benefit scheme have been updated in 2018 in line with developing market
practice following actuarial advice, which do not have a significant impact
on the Financial Staternents.

Taxation

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit
differs from profit before tax as reported in the Income Statement
hecause 1t excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in ather years ard 1L further excludes nems that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's labHity for current tax s calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date.

Provisions for tax uncertainties are included within current tax habihties on
the Consolidatad Balance Skheet Thera are transactions and activities that
the Group engages In where the ultimate tax determination s uncertain
and a provision may be made agamnst the tax bernefit For example, the
Group seeks to pnce transactions between Group corpanies as f

they were unrelated parties in comphance with OECD transfer pricing
principles and the laws of the relevant jurisdictions and this involves a
degree of uncertainty. Provisions against uncertainties are established
based on management judgment of the range of likely tax outcomes in
open years and in consideration of the strength of technical arguments
and are based on amounts that the company expect 1o pay following this
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assessment. When making this assessment, the Group utilises specialist
in-house tax knowledge and expenence and takes into consideration
specialist tax advice from third party advisers on specific tems

Deferrod tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labiities in

the Financial Statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the Balance
Sheet llabiity method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogrised ‘or
all taxab'e temporary differences ard deferred tax assets are recogrised
10 the extent it1s probable that taxable profits will be available aganst
which deductible temporary differences can be utlised Such assects
and labilities are not recognised T the temporary difference anscs

trom goodwill or from the initial recogrition {other than i a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
rigither the Group's taxable profit nor its accounung prof 't

Deferred tax liabiltes are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arsing on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary ditference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse Ir the foresegable future.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated st the 1ax rates that are expected to aoply in
the perod when the liability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised based on
tax laws and rates tha: have been enacted at tho Balance Sheet date
Deferred tax s charged or credited in the Corsolidated Incaome
Staternent, except when it relates to items charged or credited to Other
Comprehensive Income or directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax s also deall with in Other Comprehensive Income or equrty,

Property, plant and equipment

Land and bulldings held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpeses, are stated in the Balance Sheet
at their histoncal cost, or at medified historical cost, beirg a revaluation
urdertaken i 1988 which has been takon as the etfoctive cost on
transition to IFRS. Land and buildings were revalued to farr value at

the date of revaluation.

The Group does not intend fo conduct annual revaluations,

Fixtures, plant and equiprment are stated at cost less accumutated
depraciazion ard any recognised impairment loss.

Depraciation 1s charged to write off the cost of an asset on a straight-ine
basis over the estimated useful Iife of the assel, and is charged from the
me an asset becomes avallable for its mtended use. Annual rates are as
follows:

Freehold land INil

Freehold buildings 2%

Leasehold buildings over their expected useful ves on the same
basis as owned assets or. where shorter, over
the lease term

Plant and equipment D% - 33%

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s
determined as the d'fference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset al dispesal and 1s recogmsed in the Consolidated
Income Statement.



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES .0 - .

Internally generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Ansmangible asset ansng frorm unfunoed development work shall be
recogrised if the folowing can be demonstrated:

1. the asset can oe separately ident fied.

11, 1S probable that the asset created will generate futl.re economic
benehits

il the development cost of the asset can he measured reliably duning its
tdeveloprmart

o tis technically feasible to corplete the asse! so that it will be avarable
‘or use or sale.

v. there s intertion to complete the asset and use or sell it

W

the Group has ability 10 use or sell the asset

vl

the Groug has avalability of adeguate techrucal, financial and cther
resources to complete the development work and to use or sell
the asset.

Internally generated intangibie assets are amortised or: a straight-line
basis over therr useful lives,

Caosts incurred in relation: to funded development work are accumulated
I inventory and are recognised when the related billings are made

Ary amounts held n inventory are subject to normal inventory
valuation princinles.

(Other expenditure on research and developrrent activities, that do not
meet the capitaisanon criteria above, 1s recogrised as an expense in the
period in which s meurred.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets nclude computer software and intang:ble assets
acquired as part of a business combination

The cost of acquinng computer software {including associated
implementation and develocpment costs where applicable) 1s classified as
an intangible asset Costs associated with mamtaining computer software
programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Capitalised computer
software is amortised over its estimated useful life of between three and
five yoars on a straight-line bas s, and 1s stated at cost less accurmnulated
amortisation and imparrment losses

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination princioaily
comuorise customer relationships, contracts and trade names. They are
shown at far value at the date of acquisition less accurulated amortisation
at the rates of betweer: three and five years on a straight-line basis.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
At each Balance Sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts

of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any
incication that those assets have suffered an imparment loss If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amourt of the asset s estimated
n orcder to determine the extent of the iImpairment loss (if any} Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are indenendent fron- other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount 15 the nigher of the far value less the costs to sell
and the value Ir use In assessing the value In use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverabie arrourt of an asset is estimated *o be less than its
carry ng amount, the carrying arrourt of tne asset 1s reduces 10115
recoverable amounrt. An imparment l0ss 1s recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset1s carmnec at a revalued amaount,
rowhich case the impa reient 10ss 15 treated as a revalaation decrease.

YWhare an impairmert loss sabsequently reverses, ine carrynrg amaurt
of the asset s iIncreased o the revised esumate of its recoverable
amount. 50 that the iIncreased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that wiould have been deterrmined had no impairmert
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment [0ss Is recognised as income immediate'y, uniess the reievant
asset is carned at a revalued amount, in wnich case tra reversal of the
impatrment 1oss Is treated as a reval.aton increase

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
comprise direct matenals and, where aoplicable, direct labour cos's and
an appropriate allocation of producton overheads, Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out method MNet realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the costs to be
ireurred it marketing, selling and aisinibution.

Finanecial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recagnised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant nstrument and
derecognised when it ceases to be a varty to such provisions,

Firancial Instruments are classified as cash and cash equivalents, bank
overdrafts and loars, obligations under finance leases, trade receivables,
trade payabes, deferred considerat'on receivable, other receivables and
other payables, as appropriate

Non dernvative finarcial assets are categornsed as “Financial assets at
amortised cost” and non-derivative financial iabilities are categorised as
“Financial habilites at amortised cost”. Dervative financial assets ard
liabilities that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments
are categonsed as “financial assets at “ar value through profit or loss”
and "financial latulities at fair value through profit or loss”, respectively
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the tinancial
assets and liablities and is determined at the time of initial recognit'on

Trade rece vables do not carry any interesl and are stated at their nominal
value as reduced by loss allowance. The Group has elected to measurs
Ioss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime
expectad credit losses (ECLs), which are based on quantitative and
gualitative credit risk assessments, using histoncal and forward looking
irformation. Changes n the carry'ng amounts of the loss allowance are
recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Trade receivables in default are consideraed urcellectble and are written
off against the oss allowance The Group considers a trade recewvable

o be in default when the customer is expenencirg significant finarncial
difficulties, bankruptey, financial reorganisation or is in default or delinquert
0 paying Its credit abhgations to the Group in full Subsequent recovenes
of amounts previously written off are crechted against the loss allowance.

Trade receivables are derecognised when factored, without recourse,
through therd party financial institutions {the Factors)

b .

Cash and cash sguivalents comprise cash at bank and otber short terny
hughly liguid nvestments that are readly convertible 1o a known aniount
of cash ard are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . iy
A T T 1 v : h
Non-dervative finanaal habilites are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest mathod [ he effective interest method 1s a method of
caiculanng the amortised financial liability and of alklocating nterest over
the relevant perod The effectve interest rate 1s the rate that exactly
chscounts estimated future cash payments through the expected iife of
e firancial liaoility, or, where appropriate, a shorier period, to the ne’
carrying amount on inittal recognition. For borrowings, therr carryimg value
includes accrued nterest payable, as well as uramortised 155ue Costs.

ST et e

Equity instruments issued by the Cornpany are recorded at the value of
e proceeds reccived, net of direct rarsaction costs

The Group's activities expese it primanly o the financial risks of changes
w1 foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group uses
foreign exchange contracts and, on occasion, Interest rate swap contracts
10 hedge these exposuras. The use of financial denvatives is governed

by the Group's Treasury Policies as approved by the Board of Directors,
which prov des written principles on the use of dervatives The Group

does not use denvatve financial nstruments for speculative purposes.

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting
These are categonsed as at “fair value through profit or loss” and are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the
Income Statement.

The Group designates certain hedging ihstruments In respect of foreign
currency risk as cash flow hecges At the inception of the hedge
refationship, the Group docaments the reiat anship between the Redging
instrument and the hedged tem, alorg with its risk managoment
objectves and strategy for undertatung various hedging transactions.
The Group alsc documents, both at hedge nception and on an ongaing
basis. whether the hedging instrument that is used in 3 hedging
relationship is highty effective in offsetting charges in fair values or
cash flows of the heaged item.

For the Group's cashk flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions
in foreign currencies, the hedged risk 1S always considered to be 111 1f the
underlying exposure changes gver time, either dug to commercial factors
or timing differences, the hedging instruments will be rebalanced to
ensure that the hedge ratic of 1118 maintained.

Changes in the far value of derivative financial instruments that are
designated and are effective as a cash flow hedge are recognised directly
in equity and the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Ircome Statement. If the cash flow hedge of a firm
commitment or forecasted transacTion results in the recogrition of an
asset or a hability, then, at the time the asset or liability rs recognised,
1he associated gains or losses on the denvative that had previously beer
recognised in equity are includod in the inmal measuremert of the asset
or hability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset
or a liability, amncunts deferred in eguity are recognised in the Income
Statement In the same period in which the hedged item affects profit
or loss,

For an etfective hedge of an exposure to changes in fair value, the hedged
item 1s adjusted for changes in farr value attrigutable to the nsk being
hedgad with the corresponding ontry n the Consolidated Income
Statement Gains or .esses from remeasunng the dorvative are also
recegnised in the Consolidated Income Statement i the hedge s
etfective, these entries will offset in the Consolidated Income Statement
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Changes n the fair vatue of dervative financial instruments that do not
gualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the Consolidated Income
Statement as they arise

Hedge accounting 15 discontirued when the hedging nstrument expires
oris sold, torminated, exercsed, or no longer qualties for hedge
accounting At that ime, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised n eguity 1s retained N equity untl the forecasted
transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer exoected Lo oceur,
the net cumulative gam or 'oss recagrised i equity 1s transferred to the
Conselidated Income Statement for the period.

Gains and tosses accumulated in equity are recognised in the X
Consclidated Income Statement on cisposal of the overseas operation

Assets and disposal groups held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if treir canying anrount will be
recovered by sale rather than Dy continuing use n the business. Where g
group of assets and their directly assaciated liabilities are to be aisposed
of 1n a single transaction, such disposal groups are also classfied as held
for sale. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be
avaiable for immediate sale in its present conditon, and management
must be commutted to and have initiated a plan to sell the asset or
disposal groun woich, when inmated, was expected to resultin a
cormpleted sale within 17 months Assets that are classified as held tor
sale are not depreciated. Assets or disposal groups that are classified as
held for sale are measured a7 the laower of their carrying amoant ard far
valug less costs to sell.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a presert obligation (legal
or constructive; as a result of a past event, it 15 probabie that the Group
will be requirca to settle that opligatior and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date, taking into aceount the risks and
urcertainties {such as timing or amount) surrounding the obligation.
They are no: discounted to present value if the effect s not matenal.

Provisions for restructunng costs are recognised when the Group
has a detalled formal plan for the restructuring and the plan has been
communicated to the affected parties. Provisions for the expasted
cost for warranty obligations urnder local sale of goods leqisianon are
recegmised at the date of sale of the relevant products.

Share-based payments
The Group appies the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based payments.

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments 1o certain
emplovees. The tair value {excludng the effect of non-market-related
conditions), as determined at the grant date, 15 exversed on a straight-ine
basis over the vesting pernod, basaed an the Group’s estimate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect

ot non market-reflated conditions

Farr value is measured by use of a Black-Scholes mradel for the share
option plans, and a binormial model for the share awards under the 2005
Long-Term Incentive Plan

The hability in respect of equity-settled amounts is Included in equity.



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES i 07 0

Critical accounting judgments

IAS requrres disclosure of the judgnents Management makas when
apolying ts significant accounting pol cies and that have the most
significant effect on amounts that are recogrised in the Group's Financial
Statements In the course of preparmng the Financial Statemrents, no
significant or tica! judgments Fave been made 10 the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies, other than those involving estimations,
which are dealt with separate v below. Management makes other
Judgments in the normal course of conducting business, such as

those i relation to contractual matters and lega costs isee Note 24

for turther details)

Key sources of estimation and uncertainty

When applying the Groun's accounting nolicies, Management must make
assumptions ard estimates concerning the future thar affect the carryirg
amounts of assets and habilities ai the Balance Sheet date ard the
amounts of revenue and expenses recognised durng the period Such
assumptions are based upon factors ncluding histonca expenence, the
observance of trends in the industnias in which the Group operates, and
information available from the Group's customers and other external
sources The key sources of estimation and uncertainty at the Balarce
Sheet date that have a sigrificant nisk of causing a material adjustment

o the carrying amounts of assets and labilires within the next financial
year and beyond include

In determining the Group provisions for income tax and deferred tax,

1tis necessary to consider transactions in a small number of key tax
jur'sdictions for which the ultimate tax deterrmination 1s uncertain. To the
extent that the final outcome differs from the tax that has been orovided,
adjustments will be made to income tax and deferred tax provisions held
in the penod the determination 1s made. The carrying amount of net
current tax lability and deferred tax babity at 31 December 2018 was
£18.8m (2017 - £20.2m} and £39.8m (201/ ~ £32.7m), respectively
Further details on these estimates are set out in Notes 10 and 21

Rt LA [T ASTHE I

Management makes assumptions and estmates, for the next firancial
year and beyonrd, which affect the value of the carrying amount of the

UK Plan retirement benefit obligation at 31 December 2018, Management
follows actuarial advice from a thira party when determining assumptions
and estimatas on discount rate, Inflation and demaography (see Note 35}

In 2018, the past service charge required for the equahsation of historical
UK Guaranteed Minimum Pensions has been estimated ‘o increase the
UK Plari izbilives by £2.4m {see Note 9 and Note 35).

The carrying amount of the UK Plan's retremert berefits at 31 December
2018 was a surplus of £30.9m (2017 — surplus of £19.4m), being the
presert value of the defined benefit obligations of £278.7m (2017 -
£301.8m) and farr value of plan assets of £309.6m (2017 - £321.2m).
Further details and sensitivities from changes in estimates are set out

In Note 35g

The Board has considered the estimation applied to inventary and
concluded that there is not a significant nsk of a material adjustnent
ansing over the next financial year. Management assesses the carrying
value of iInventory to ensure that itis held at lower of cost and net realisable
value. Where necessary, management makes an estimate to write down
inventory 1o 1ts net realisable value. The Group held a net mventory
palarce at the year and of £177 8m (2017 - £164.5m} In determirung an
estimate of net realisable value, management has made agsumptions in
respect of the durability, quality, specificity and order cover, which provide
s0Mme protecton against adverse market conditions, and competitor
product development and pricing actnaty. Inventory held 's typically

built on a dermand basis and is customer specific,

3 REVENUE
Tozal revenue is disaggregated by market sectors as follovss
Year ended Year erdea
2018 207
£m fre
Cril Agrospace 563.6 5334
Milizary Acrospace 125.6 1238
Other 712 B8B83
Aerospace - 7604 7253
Land Vehicles 167.0 157.8
Power & Fnergy 1478 133.3
Other 8.1 77
Flexomues ' ’ 3229 2988
Fliminations (1.2) 107)
Total revenue 1,082.1 1,023 4

Other Aerospace comprises Space and Non-Military Helicopters and
other markeats, principally mcluding semiconductor, medical, and
industral applications.

The Group applies the oractical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15
and does not disclose nformation about remaining performance
obligations that have orig:nal expected durations of one year or less.

Appiying the practcal expadient in paragraph 94 of [FRS 15, the Group
recognises the ncremental cosls of obtaining contracts as an experse
when incurred If the amortisation perniod of the assets that the Group
atherwise would have recognised 1s ore year or less

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Grouo reports its segment information as two operating Divisions
according to the marke: segments they serve, Aerospace and Flexonics,
which 1s consistent with the oversight employed by the Executive
Committee. The chief operating decision maker, as defined by IFRS 8,
is the Executive Committee For management purposes, the Aerospace
Division 1s managed as two sub-divisions, Aerostructures and Fluid
Systems; however, these are aggregated as one reperting segment in
accordance with IFRS 8 as they serve similar markets and customers
The Flexanics Division 1s managed as a single division

The accounting policies of the ~eportable segrents are the same as the
Group's accounting policies descrnbed in Note 2 and the sales between
segments are carried out at arm's length Adjusted operat.ng profit, as
descnibed in Note 9, 's the key measure reported to the Group's Executive
Committes for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance. Investrment income, finance costs and tax are not
allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the central tax
and treasury function,

Segment assets include directly atirbutable computer software assets,
property, plant and equipment, wor<ng capital assets, goodwill and
intangible assets from acquisiions Cash, deferred ard currert tax and
ather financial assets lexcept for working capitah are rot aliccated to
segments for the purposes of reporting finarcial performance tw the
Group's Executive Committes.
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4 SEGMENT INFORMATION . .0." "

Segment liabtlities mclude directly attributable working capital labit es Delnt, finance leases, retiremeant benefits, deterred and current 1ax and ather
financial liabilities {except far working capital) are not allccated to scgments for the purposes of reporting financial performnance to the Group's

Excoutive Committee.

Central costs, assets and hablities are corporate items rot allocated 1 segments, which1s consistent with the format used by the chief operating

decision rmaker.

Segment information for revenue, operating profit and a reconciliation to entity and profit after tax is presented below:

Eliminations/ Fhinanons
central centtd
Aerospace Flexonics costs Total Acrospdace Flexarics costs Total
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Yeear ended Yeat ended Yedr ended Year endeo
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017 2007 20/ 2017

Notes £m £m £m £m fm e Em Em
External revenue 759.4 3227 - 1,082.1 7247 2087 - 1,023.4
Inter segment revenue 1.0 0.2 (1.2} ) - _us o1 0.7} -
Total revenue 7604 3229 (1.2 1,082.1 7753 2988 0./} 1,023 4
Adjusted trading profit 804 261 {15.5) 910 76.6 200 (14 7) 819
Share of joint venture
profit ) 0.6 - 0.6 07 - 0./
Adjusted operating profit B 80.4 267 {15.5) 916 766 20.7 4.7 826
UK Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions 9 - (2.4} {2.4) - - - -
US class action lawsuits 9 - (3.9} 3.9 E - - -
Amortisation of intangiblc
assets from acquisitions {8.3) 71) - {15.4) 3.5} 188 - (171
Operat ng profit 721 19.6 {21.8} 69.9 68.1 121 (14 7} 65.5
Investment income 4.6 az
Finance costs (2.2} 97}
Loss on dispasal - 3.8
Profit before tax 613 52.2
Tax {11.2) 81
Profit after tax 501 60.3

Trading profit and adjusted trading profit is opersting profit and adjusted operaling profit respectively before share of joint venture profit. See Note 9 for

the derivation of adjusted operating profit,

Segment information *or assets, labiities, additons 10 non-current assets and depreciation and amertisation 1s presented below:

Year ended Yeal ended
2018 2017
Agsels Em £m
Aerospace 7231 667.8
Flexonics 2441 2442
Segrment assets for roportable segments 967.2 912.0
Unallocated
Central 4.0 37
Cash 17.2 1286
Deaferred and current tax 5.1 26
Retirement bene‘its 30.9 194
Others ) - 0.3 a5
Total assets per Consal dated Balance Sheet 1,024.7 950.8
Year anded Year ended
2018 2017
Liaoil t.es £m Ern
Aerospace 134.7 120.3
Flexonics 58.3 48.7
Segment lHabilities “or reporiable segments 193.0 168 4
Unallocated
Central 141 1.0
Debt 170.0 167.2
Finance leases 0.2 05
Deferred and current tax 63.8 55.5
Retirerment benefits 12.4 147
Oters __ _ EL 19
Total hiabilities per Consoldated Balance Sheet 456.5 419 2
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION " °% 7 7. -

Additions 1o Aadrors ', Depreciation Doprecator

non-current nor-currert and ard

assets assets  amortisation amer: satior

Year ended Year erdea Year ended Year ended

2018 2017 wng 2007

£m F £fm £m

Aerospace 433 1.0 373 36.2

Fraxonics i12.8 134 19.4 215

Sub-total 56.1 ha 4 56.7 577

Cantral - 0.2 04 0.2 02

Total 56.3 54.8 56.9 579
The Group's revenues from its major products 1s presented below:

Year ended Year erded

2018 2017

£fm frm

Aerospace — Structures 424.6 416.9

Aerospace - Fluid Systems 3348 3078

Aerpspace total ?159.4 724.7

Land vehicles 167.0 1578

Power & Energy and others 165.7 140 9

Flexonics total 3227 2987

Group total 1,0821 71,0234

Revenue of approximately £118 9m (2017 £102.6m) arose from sales to the Group's largest custemer, revenue of approximately £113.8m (2017
—£112.6m)} arose from sales to the Group's second largest customier and revenue of approximately £108.8m {2017 - £97.2m) arose from sales to

the Group's third largest customer,

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located principally in North America and Europe.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by geograpnical market, Irespectve of the ongin of the goods The carrying values of
segment nor-cufrent assets are analysced by the geographica! area in which the assets are located

Segment Segment
Sales Sales non-gurrent nor-cureent
revenue revenue assets assels
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year endod
2018 2017 2018 2017
£im £m £fm fim
USA 513.7 478 2 3434 3188
UK 178.7 161.0 154.5 1471
Rest of the Worla . L 3897 3847 161.7 166.8
Sub-total 1,0821 10234 659.6 6227
Unaliocated amounts - - 2.4 1.6
Tatal 1,0821 10234 662.0 624.3
The unallocated amounts on nor-current assets relate to deferred tax assots.
5. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating prott can be analysed as follows:
Year ended Year erded
2018 2017
£m £
Revenue 1.0821 1,023.4
Cost o’ sales 857.3) 1805.2)
Gross profit 2248 2182
Distribution costs (8.8} {7.6)
Administrative expenses {146.3) {146.0)
{Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets {0.4) 02
Share of joint venture profit B 0.6 07
Operating profit 69.9 655
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5. GPERATING PROFIT .75 iibji o
Operating profit far the period has been arnived at after charging:

Year ended ‘esr ended

2018 2017

£m £m

Net foreign exchange losses 09 16
Net foreign exchange losses on mneffective cash flow hedges - -
Net foreign exchange losses on denvatives held for trading - 02
Research and development costs 29.7 25.6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39.5 388
Amaortisation of intangible assots ncluded in administranon éxperses 174 121
Cost of iInventories recognised as expense ' 857.3 805.2
Provision for impairment of doubtfu: recetvables 0.3 1.3

Staff costs are disclosed in Note 6

The majority of research and development costs incurred durng the year have been expensed in ine with Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies

The analysis of the Avditor's remuneration 1s as follows:

Year ended Vear enced

2018 2017

£m m

Foes payable to the Company's Auditor and ther associates for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 02 02z
Fees payable 1© the Company's Auditor and therr associates for other services to the Group

- The audit of the Company’'s subsidianes 0.8 0.8

Total audit fees 1.0 1.0

Fees payab'e to Company's Auditor and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are nol required 1o be disclosed because the

Consolidated Financial Staterrents are required to disclose such fees on a consohdated pasis

The Group paid £0 06m (2017 - £0.04m} 1o the Company's Auditor for audit related services. There were ro other advisory sarvices provided 1o the

Group during 2018 and 2017.

Details of the Company's policy on the use of auditors for noa-audit services, the reasons why the Auditor was used rather than another supplier and
how the Auditor's indeperdence and objectivty were safeguarded are set out in the Audit Comrittee Report on pages 49 1o 52. No services were

pravided pursuant to contngent fee arrangerments

6. STAFFCOSTS

The average monthly number of empioyees including Directors) was:

Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
Number Number
Productior 7.019 65,634
Dhstribation 75 69
Sales 327 314
Administration a o - - 647 641
Total 8,068 7,658
Yaar anded Year crded
2018 2017
MNotes £m Em
Their aggreqate remuneration compnsed.
Wages and salares 269.7 25h.5
Social secunty costs 33 300
Other pension costs — def ned contribution (see Note 35a) 10.8 103
Other oensipn costs — dehined banafit (see Nate 3he) 05 0.9
Share-based payments (see Note 34) 35 21
UK Guaranteed Mimimum Pansions 9 24 -
Aggregate remuneration 318.2 798.8
The Group also Incurred meckcal ard other employee berefit expenses durning the year of £26.3m (2017 - £256 Om)
7 INVESTMENT INCOME
Year ended Year coded
2018 201/
fm frn
Interest on bank deposits 01 01
Net fimance Income of retrerent benehits (Note 350} 0.2
Other irterest ingome 0.3 0.1
Total ncome 0.6 0.2

Crer interest ncorme meludes £0 3m (2017 - £nil) refating to foreign exchanye contracts - Feld for Tading.
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8 FINANCE COSTS

Year ended Year gnon

2018 2077

£m £

Interest an bank overdrafis and ioans 09 12
Interest on other icans and other finance costs 8.3 83
Net tinance cost of retirement benefits (Note 350 i - 02z
Totat finance costs 92 97

9. ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT AND ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The presentation of adjusten operating profit and adjusted profit before tax measures, der'ved in accordance with tne table below, have been
included to 1igentify the performance of the Group prior 1o the impact ot amortisation of intangible assets from acguisitions, the UK Guaranteed
Minirure Pensions charge, the costs associated with the US class action lawsuaits and loss on disposal of the BWT ilkeston facility (see Note 31)
Tne Board has adopted a po'icy to separately disclose those items that it considers are outside the operating resdlts for the particuiar year under
review and agamst which the Board measures and assesses the performance of the busnesses.

Tne agustments are made on a consistent basis and alsa reflect Fow the business 1s managed on a day-to-day basis,

ihe amortisation charge refates to prior years” acquisitions. Itis charged on a straight ine basis ard refiects a non-cash item for the reported year
The UK Guaranteed Mimimum Pensions charge 1s 1solated and one-off in mature, The US ¢ ass action lavwsuits relates to an histonic legal matter.
Nong of these charges, Including the ioss on the sale of BWT likeston facil'ty v the pr.or vear, are reflective of n-year performance. They are
therefore excluded by the Board when measunng the operating perfarmance of the busingsscs

Year ended Year ended

2018 2017

Notes £m £m

Operating profit 69.9 655
Amortisation of intangible assets from acquisitions 15.4 17.1
UK Guaranteed Minimum Pensions 24 -
US class action lawsuits 39 -
Adjusted operating profit 91.6 8286
Profit before lax o 61.3 522
Adjustments to profit before tax as above 217 171
Loss on disposal - 3 - 38
Adjusted profit before tax 83.0 731

UK Guaranteed Minimum Pensions

In October 2018 the High Court ruled on tha Guaranteed Minirmum Pensions {(GMPs) which requires an equalisation payment to be mace to remedy
histerical discrimination and inequality between male and female members. GMP has widety been interpreted as the High Court instructing trustees
to make amendments to pension schemes with any associated payrments teated as past service costs (being a plan amendment, 1 e. change 1o
benefits entitlemert). Accordingly the resuiting £2.4m charge has been taxen through the Consolidated Incorne Staterant and presentad as an
adjusted itern, as itis one-off in nature, relates to past service costs and s therefore not reflective of in-year performance.

US class action lawsuits

As previously reported, in Marcrk 2018 a wage and hour class action lawsuit was tiled against Steico Industries, Inc and Senicor Aerospace S5 in
Califarnia, USA. This alleged breaches of regulations concerning meal and rest breaks, urpaid wages and related penalties covenng the period 2014

to 2016 Mediatons took place in the second nal ot 2018, resulting in a Company agreed settlement and related costs of £3 9m, charged to the
Conschdated Income Statement, of which £0 27 was paid in 2018 At 31 December 2018 the carrying amount was a provision of £3.9m which ingluded
an adverse exchange eftect of £0 2m. The charge has been reported as an adjusted item given its nature and matenality and the fact that itis related
to prior years and not reflective of in year performance Court approval of the settlernerts for both lawsuits is expected in the second haif of 2018

10. TAXATION
Year ended Year ended
2018 2007
fm £

Current tax
Current year 1n7 IR

Adjustments in respect of prior periods (6.3} 6.7}
- o - o 7 s4a 61
Deferred tax {(Note 21}
Current year 45 {15 B)
Adjustments in respect of prior penods 13 13
_ - S T T 538 )
Total tax charge/{credit) ' 1n.2 81
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10. TAXATION & -7 g

The Finarce (No.2) Act 2015 and Finance Act 2016 provide for reductions in the main rate of Corporation Tax from 20% ta 19% for the financial year
beginning 1 Aprl 2017 and 10 17 % for the financial year beginning 1 Apni 2020 UK deferred tax at the Balance Sheet date has been calculated at
enacted tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when assets are reahsed or [labilities are settled.

UK Carporation Tax 1s calculated at an effective rate of 19.0% (2017 — 19.25%} of Lhe estimated assessable profit for the year. Included within the total
tax charge 15 £0.8m {2017 — £2 Oml in respect of current year UK Corporation Tax Taxation for other junisdictions 1s calculated at the rates prevailing in
e respective junsdictions

Prior year adjustments totalling £5 Om anse primarily from adjustrments to amounts provided following the filing of tax returns and as a result of the
expiration of statutes of imitations and closure of tax authonity audits.

The total charge for the year ca- be reconcied to the profit oefore tax per the Congolidatad Income Statement as follows

Year ended Year ended Year ended Yoal erdaed

2618 2018 2017 2017
£€m % £m
Profit before tax 613 522
Expected tax at the UK standard corporation tax rate 19 00%/19.25% 11.6 00
Amounts recognised in the period arising from US tax reform - {(16.0)
Effect of different statutory rates of oversecas jurisdictons 05 32
Tax incentives and credits {2.2) {1.6)
Nen-tax deductible expenses including acquisition costs 1.0 14
Deferred tax impact of unrecognised timing differcaces including losses 35 12
Impact of share options 0.8 05
Eftect of difference i treatment of financing activities between junsdictions (0.8} 13.5)
Other permanent differences 17 1.0
Non-tax deductible goodwill - 0.3
Withholding taxes 0.2 02
Efiect of taxation of associates and joint ventures reported within operating profit 0.3} 0.0
Adjustments In respect of prior pencds - (5.0} 4.4
Tax charge/fieredit) and effective tax rate for the year mn.2 18.3% 8.1 (15 5%)

In addition 10 the amount charged to the Consolidated Incorre Statement, the following amounts relaung to tax have been recognised directly in other
comprehensive incorme;

Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
£m Em
Deferred tax:
Ilterms that will not be reclassified subsequently to protit arnd loss
Tax on actuarial items {0.8) 0/
ltems that may be reclassihied subsequently to profit or loss
Tax on foreign excnange contracts — cash flow hedges ) 1.3 2.3
Total tax credit/icharge) recognised directly in other comprehensive income 0.5 11.6)
Defaerred tax {Note 21) 05 11.8)
During the year, there were no tax items recognised directly in the Equity reserve (2017 - £nil)
11 DIVIDENDS
Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
£m £rn
Amounts recognised as distrbulions to equity holaers in the perod:
Firial dividend for t1e year ended 31 Decembear 2017 of 4.30p (2016 - 4.62p} per share 20.5 1G4
Internm dividend for the year endad 31 December 2018 of 2.19p {2017 - 2 05p) per share 9.1 85
29.6 27.8
Proposed hinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of 5 23p {2017 - 4.80p) per share 218 20.5

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by sharenolders at the Annual General Meeting for 2018 on 26 April 2019 and has not been included
as a liability in these Financial Staternents.

92 SEMICRPLC ANNUAL RFPCRT & AZCOUMNTS 2018



12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calcJlatior of the basic and dilutec earmirgs per skare ‘s based on the following data.

Year ended Year eraed
2018 2017
Number of shares Million Ml
Weignted average numper of ordinary snares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 417.8 4189
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary snares
Share options - - 587 79
Weignted ave-age number of ordinary snares for the purposes of diluted earn'ngs per share 4235 4218
Year ended 2018 Year eroed 2017
Earnings EPS Farurgs EPS
Earnings ard earnings per share Notes £m pence fm perice
Profit for the pernod 501 11.99 80.3 14.39
Adjust:
Amorusation of intangble assets from acguisitions net of tax of £3 2m
(2017 f£45m) 12.2 2.93 126 30
UK Guaranteed Mimmum Persions net of tax of £0.4m {2017 -~ £ni) 9 2.0 0.47 - -
US class action lawsuits net of tax of £1.0m {2017 ~ Eni 3 29 0.69 - -
Loss on disposal net of tax of £mi {2017 - £0.4m) - - 34 0.8
Excepticnal ron-cash tax credit of £ni (2017 — £16 Om) 10 - - {16 0 13.82)
Adjusted earmings after tax 67.2 16.08 60.3 14.39
Farnings per share
- basic 11.99p 14 39p
—diluted 11.83p 14.30p
— adjusted 16.08p 14,390
adjusted and d.luted 19.87p 14 30p

The effect of diutive shares on the earnings for the purposes of diuted earnings per share is Enil {2017 — £nl}.
The denominators used for all basic, diluted and adjusted earnings per share are as detailea In the table above.

The presentation of adjusted earnings per share, denved in accordance with the table above, has been included to identify the performance of the
Group prior to the impact of amortisation of intangible assets from acquisitions, the UK Guaranteed Minmurm Pensions charge, the costs associated
with the US class action lawsuits, loss on disposal of the BWT llkeston facility and exceptional non-cash tax credit, The Board has adopted a policy to
separately disclose those items that it considers are outside the earnings for the particutar year under raview and against which the Board measures
and assesses the performance of the businesses.

The adjustments are made on a consistent basis and also reflect how the business is managed on a day-to-day basis.

The amartisation charge relates to prior years’ acguisitions. It1s charged on 2 straight line basis and reflects & non-cash nerr for the reported year.
The UK Guaranteed Minmmune Pensiors charge is isolated and one-off in nature. The US class action lawsuits relates 1o an histonc legal matter.
None of these charges, including the loss on the sale of BWT Ilkeston facility ana except'onal non-cash tax credit in the prior year, are reflective
of in-year performance. They are therefore excluded by the Board wher measuring the earnings of the businesses.

13. GOODWILL

Year ended Year endea
2018 2017
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January 3579 3784
Exchange differerces 13.0 188
Disposal 7 - (1.7
At 31 December o N 370.9 3579
Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January 55.5 586
Exchange differences 25 @l
At 31 Decembear 58.0 hh5
Carrying amount at 31 December 312.9 3024

Goodwill 1s allocated to the group of CGUs (CGU greups) within the two Acrospace sub-divisions tAecostructures and Fluid Systerns) and Flexonics,
reflecting the lowest level at wrich management exercises oversight and monitors the Group's performance The table below highlights the carrying
armount of goodwill allocated to these CGU groups, all of which are cons'dered significant in camnanson with the total carrying amount of goadwill.
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13.60GDWILL 0+ -

Year ended Year anaed

2018 2017

£m £rn

Aerostructares 161.3 151 6
Fluid Systems 735 721
Flexonics 781 757
Total 312.9 302 4

The Group tosts goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently 't there are indications that goodwib might be impared The 2018 goodwill
impairment review was undertaken as at 30 September 2018 to coincide with the board review of the most recent tinancial strategy The recoverable
amaounts are determined from value in use caiculations. The key assumptions on which the valug in use calculatiors are based relate to business
performance over the next five years, long-term growth rates beyond 2023 ard me discount ratles applied. The key estimates are the lovel of revenue
and operating margns anticipated and the proportion of eperating profit converted into cash flow in each year The forecast cormpound annual growth
raie In revonue to 2023 are in the range from 4% 1o 7% (2017 5% 10 8%)

Forecasts used in the cash flow are based on the most recert financ’al strategy, as approved by Managerrent for the next five years to 2023 These
estimates up to 2023, where appropriate, take account of the current economic environment as set aut in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 37,

Cash flows after 2023 have been extrapolated based on estimated long-term growth rates into perpetusty, which has been determined by the lower of
the long-term market growth rates and the historical torecast compound annual growth ir revenue to 2023 For Aerostructures and Fiuid Systems, the
long-term market growth rates are 3.1% per annum {2017 —3 19}, which do not excesd the long-term average growth rate forecasts for the asrospace
market as Inc'uded in market outlooks from Boeing, Arrbus and Bombardier For Flexonics, the long-term market growth rates are 1 5% per arnur
(2017 -1 7%, which are based on world long-term forgcas: GDP growth for advanced economies

The pre-tax discourt rates applied to discount the pre-tax cash flows for Aerostructures, Fluid Systems and Flexonics are 10.8%, 10.3% and 12 0%
respectively (2017 - 10.4%, 92.8% and 11.5%; these discount rates include CGU group specific risk adjustments) which are the measurements used
by management in assessing investment appraisals specific to each CGU group.

Sensitivities have also been considerad for each CGU groupin relatior to the value in use caloulations' the long-term growth rate assumption was
reduced to 7 percantage pont and the d'scount rate was increased by a 7 percentage pont. This did not result n the carrying amount of the CGU
groups exceeding thorr recoverable amopunt.

14. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible Intangible
assets Computer assets Compuzer
from software from software
acquisitions and cthers Total ACAUISINONS and others Total
Year ended Year ended Year anded Year ended Year ended Year erdec
2018 2018 2018 2017 207 2077
£m £m £m fm £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 130.3 19.3 149.6 136.1 173 1534
Additions - 1.7 17 - 25 2.5
Disposals - (0.3) 0.3) - 0.2} 0.2}
Exchange differences 4.4 0.7 5.1 (5.8 0.3 6.1}
At 31 December 134.7 214 156.1 1303 19.3 149.6
Amortisation
A1 January 947 13.3 108.0 814 Mms 929
Charge for the year 15.4 2.0 17.4 121 2.0 191
Disposals - (0.3) {0.3) - (0.2} 0.2}
Exchange differences 37 0.6 43 28 - 1381
At 31 December 13.8 15.6 129.4 94.7 133 1080
Carrying amount at 31 December 20.9 5.8 26.7 3586 6.0 1.6

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of intangible assets from acquistions consists of £11 1m for customer relationships 12017 — £18.5m),
£6.7m for customer contracts (2017 - £11 4mi ard £3 1m tor trade names (2017 — £4 7m)
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15. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
The Group has a 49% interast in Senior Flexonics Technologies iWuhan} Limited, a jointly controlled entity incorporated in China, wh'ch was set
up In 2012. Senior Flexonics Technologies {Wuhanl Limited 1s a precision rmarutacturer of automotive componants

The results of the joint venture are accounted for using eguity accounting
The Group's investment of £3.0m (2017 — £2.4m} represents the Group's share of the joutt venture's net assets as at 31 Decerrber 20718

The folowing amounts represen: the aggregate amounts relating to the revenue and expenses and assets and lanilites of Senior Flexonics
Technologies (Wuhant Limited “or the years ended 31 December 2018 and December 2017,

2018 2007

£m £

Revenue 7.5 109
Expenses ) . (6.2) 9.5
Profit 13 14
Total assets 85 94
Total habiities ) ) (g,a) 144
Net assets 6.2 50
Group's share of profit 0.6 07
Group's share of net assets 3.0 24

At the year end the Group had provided loans of £rul {2017 — £0.5m) to the joint venture, frul {2017 — £0.2m) 15 reported as a current asset and £nil
(2017 - £0.3m) as a non-current asset. In accordance with the Group's accounting policy, these ron-denvatve assets are stated at amortised cost.

During the year, £0 5m of the loans were repaid {2017 — £0.2m repaid), with £nil of foreign exchange losses.

Since the joint venture has a strong capacity to maer: its contractual obligations in the near term, the credit risk on these loans are cons'dered o be
low and no impairment provision 1s deemed necessary.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold Plant Freenold Plant
land and Leasehold and landand Leasehola and
buildings  buildings equipment Total bunld ngs buldings  eguipment Total
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended “earendcd Yearerded Yearended Yearerded
2018 2018 2018 2018 2007 2017 2017 2017
£fm £m £fm £ £ frm £m m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 95.7 4.0 469.0 568.7 96.9 4.3 453 3 554.5
Additions 21 01 52.4 54.6 43 01 479 523
Exchange differences 4.3 0.2 14.3 18.8 (3.6} 0.3) (201} {24.0)
Disposals (0.1} - (6.8) (6.9} 11 9) Q.1 112 1 41
Reclassitied ‘rom held for sale ) 8.1 - - 8.1 B - - -
At 31 Docember 1101 4.3 528.9 643.3 957 4.0 4680 5687
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 25.0 27 2849 3126 24.7 2.7 2729 3003
Charge for the year 25 04 366 39.5 1.8 0.3 367 38.8
Exchange differences 1.2 0.1 57 70 0.7 02} 13.8) (14.7)
Eliminated on disposals - - (6.0 (6.0) 10 8} 0.1 10 9) [11.8)
Reclassified from held for sale 4.6 - - 4.6 - - - -
At 31 December 33.3 3.2 321.2 3577 250 2.7 284.9 3126
Carrying amount at 31 December 76.8 1.1 207.7 285.6 707 1.3 184.1 2561

The carrying amount of the Group’s land and nuildings and plant and equipment includes an amount of £1.3m {2017 - £1.6miin respect of assets held
under finance leases.

At 31 Decernber 2018, the Group had entered intc contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting 1o
£16 6m (2017 - £6 9m).

17. INVENTORIES

Year ended ‘Year ended

2018 2017

£m £m

Raw maternals 60.9 487
Work 1n progress 781 727
Finished goods 7 ) 388 332
Total 1778 154.5

Inventory wrie-downs recognised as an expense m 2018 were £2.5m {2017 - £2 3m). There was no mater'al reversal of any wrire down to net
realisable value dunng this year or the prior year
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade and other receivables at 31 December comprise the following:

Year ended Year erded

2018 2017
£m rm

Non-current gssets
Other receivables 05 05
0.5 0.5

Current assets

Trade receablos 149.2 1378
Value added tax 32 3.1
Foreign exchange contracts 11 27
Prepaymeris 101 8.1
Other receivables 1.4 16
165.0 154.3
Totat trade and other recevables ) 165.5 154 8

Credit risk
The Group's principa! financial assets are bank balances and cash and t-ade receivables. The credit nsk on liguid funds and derivative financial
mstruments |s limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigred by international crecit rating agencies.

The Group's credit risk 15 primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet are net of
allowances for doubtful recevables There are no other credit or impairment losses for other c.asses of financial assets.

Further disc.osures on cred't nsk are included in Note 20

The average credit period taken on sales of goods 15 54 days {2017 - 55 days). An allowance has been rrade for estmated irrecoverable amounts
from the sale o goods of £1.5m {2017 — £2 Omy). in determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date Of the trade recevables balence at the end of the
year, £4 6m (2017 - £3 8m) s due from the Group's largest custemer, £20.7m (2017 - £1% Bm} is due from the Group's second largest customer
and £18.0m {2017 - £14.8m} 15 due from the Groun's third largest customer. The Group 1@s re other significant concentration of credit nsk, with
oxposure spread over a large number of counterparties and custorners Accordingly, the Directors believe that there is no further credit provision rsk
in cxcess of the allowance for doubtful recaivables.

Expected credit loss

Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
£m £m
Movements in allowarce for doubtful receivables
At January 2.0 2.2
Pravison for impairment 0.3 1.3
Amounts written off as uncollectible - .4
Amounts recoverad (0.7} 0 2)
Exchange difterences ) e _ G.1
At 31 December 15 20
Ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade recewvables,
Up to 30 days past due 131 13.9
31 10 80 days past due 4.9 28
61 1o 90 days past due 1.9 11
21 10 180 days past due o . 12 14
Total past due but not impaired o - 20.2 19.0
Not past due - i 129.0 118.8
Total current trade receivables 149.2 137.8

There are ne iterms past due in any other class of financial assets except for trade recevables

The Dircctors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximatas therr far value The maximam exposure to credit fisk at
the reporting date is the far value of each class of recevahle above. The Group does not hold ary collateral as security.
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19. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS

‘fear ended Year erded
2018 2017
£m for
Bank overdratts 0.2 29
Bank loans 16.4 2.1
(ther foans B N 153.4 156 2
170.0 167 2
The borrowings are repayable as folows:
On demand or within one year 2.7 605
In the second year 15.6 87
In the third to fifth years inclusive 295 290
After fn.ig years B 122.2 69.0
170.0 16772
Less: amount dus for settlement witun 12 months
{shown under current habihities) (2.7} (0.5}
Amount dug for settlement after 12 months 167.3 1067
Analysis of borrowings by currency
31 December 7018
Pourd us
Total Stering Euras Lollars Cters
fm £Em £rn fm fm
Bank overdrafts 0.2 - - - 0.2
Bank lcans 16.4 21 - 14.3 -
Qther loans o 153.4 26.9 25.2 101.3 -
170.0 29.0 25.2 115.6 0.2
31 December 2017
Pound s
Tota Sterlirg Furos Coilars Omers
i £m £m £m fm
Bank overdrafts 2.9 4.8 0.7 2.1 09
Bank loans 81 4.4 - 37 -
Other loans 156.2 - 26.8 125.4 -
167.2 9.2 26.1 131.0 0.9
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows
Year ended Yrar enrded
2018 20°7
o
Bank loans and overdrafts 2.47 167
Other loans 3.49 478

Bank overdrafts include credit batances (Euros and US dollars) that have a legaliy enforceaole nght of offset with debit balances.

Bank loans and overdrafts ot £16.6m (2017 — £11.0m) are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group 1 cash flow interest rate nisk
Qther borrawings are mainly arranged at fxed interest rates and expose the Group to farr value interest rate nsk No interest rale swaps were taken
oulin 2017 or 2018,

The Drectors estmate the far valae of the Group's borrowings o be as follows:

Year ended Year enced

2018 207

£fm Em

Bark loans and overdrafts 16.6 11.0
Other loans ) ) 1655 1591
1721 1701

The farr value of Other loans has been determined by applying a make-whoie calculation using the prevalling treasury bill vields plus the applicable
credit spread for the Group llevel 2 of the fair value hierarchy as defined in Note 20}
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19. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS bty 7

The other prinaipa: features of the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

Bank overdrafts ars repayable on demand The effective interest rates on bank overdrafis are determined based on appropnate LIBOR rates plus
applicable margin.

The Group's main ioars are unsecured guaranteed loan rotes in the US private placement market and revolving credit facilizies

ab Loan notes of $85m, (2017 — £70 4m) were taken out in October 2008 and were outstandirg at 31 December 2017 Notes of £7bm carmed interest
at the rate of 6 84% and were repaid in Qctober 2018 Notes of $20m, 2018 £15.6m carry interest at the rate of 6 94% and are due for repayment
n Gctober 2020

b} Loan notes of €28m, 2018 £26 2m (?017 - £24 8rmi weare taken outin January 2017 carry interest at the rate of 1 51% and mature or.
1 February 2027

o) Loan notes of $20m, 2018 £15.8m {2017 = £14 8m) were taken out in October 2015 and are due for repayment in Cctober 2022. The oan notes
carry interest at the rate of 3.42% per annum.

d) Loan notes of $60m, 2018 £47.0rm (2017 ~ £44 3m) were taken out in October 2015 and are due for repayment in October 2028, The loan notes
carry interest at the rate of 3.75% per annum.

a) L oan notes of £27m were drawn down i January 2018, carry interest at a rate of 2 256% and are due for repayment in January 2025.

f)  Loan notes of $30m, 2018 £23.4m were taken out in September 2018, carry interest at the rate of 4.18% and are due for repayment in
September 2028

Transaction costs of £0.4m, diractly attributable to the GBP notes (£0 1m) and the US dollar notes {£0 3mi, nave been deducted from their
carrying value

The Group also has three revolving credit facilites.

A committed £60m five-year syndicated mult-currency facility was entered into in November 2014, and amended arc¢ extended in October 2016 for
five years. Therg were no amounts drawn under this facility at 31 December 2017 and at 31 Decembper 2018

A committed £20m two year syndicatod sterling faciiity was enterod into in March 2615, This facility was amended and extended in Gclober 2016
As at 31 Decemper 2018, £2 5mi (2017 - £5.0m} was drawn under this facility.

In February 2018, the Group refinanced its main UK revolving credit facilities of £80.0m by increasing the committed facilities to £120 Om and
extended the maturity to February 2024, Allowing for this transaction and the related cancellation of £80.0m committed revolving credit facilities
(£20.0m that had been due to mature in March 2019 and £60.0m that had been due tc mature in November 2021), the we ghted average maturity
of the Group's committed facilities i1s currently 5.3 years.

A committed $50m single bank (£33.1m} loans and letter of credit facility was amended m June 2018 and matures in June 2021, There were $18 2m
{£14 3rm) loans drawr under the facility on 31 December 20718 and $5 Om (£3 7mi 'oans drawn on 31 December 2017 and there werce lotters of
outstanding credit of $2 4m {£1 9m) (2017 - £1.9n7)

Transaction costs of €0 4m, drectly attributable 1o the £60m revolving credit facility, nave been deducted f-omits carrying value.

As at 31 Decembper 2018, the Group had avalable £100.4m {2017 - £133 4m) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all
conditions precedent had been met.
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20. FINANCEAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group manages ts capital structure 1o safeguard -ts ability to continue as a going corcern wnilst maximis ng the return to stakerolders through
the optimisation of the balance between debt and equity. In considering the appropnate level of nat debt, the Group pays ciose attertion to 1s level

as compared to the cash generation potential of the Group (EBITDA 1s defined on page 1). The Group also monitors capital on the: bass of a geanng
ratio. This rat.o 15 calculatea as net debt diweded by total capital MNet aebt s ca'culated as the total o bank and other loars and obugatiors under finarce
leases, less cash and cash egu'vatents (see Note 32¢). Total capital 1s the eguity shown ir tne Consolidated Balance Sheet.

All of the Group's external borrowing faciities at 31 December 2018 have a requirement for the ratio of net debt to EBITDA to be less than 3 Ox.
Internally the Group aims for this ratio to be between 0 5x and 1.5x At 31 Dacermbe- 2018, net debt was 1.1x the Group's ievel of EBITDA

131 December 2017 — 1.3x] Inaddtion, all borrowing faciities contain the requirerrent for EBITDA interest cover (the nurrber of times net ‘nterest
1s covared by the Groun's EBITDA) to be in excess of 3.6x £t 31 December 2018 EBITDA was 15 2 x the leve of netinterest (31 December 2017
-12.3x%). Therefare, the Group currently has considerabie funding headroom

The Group's stategy In respect of gearirg 1s to target a long-term geanng ratio within the range of 30% to 680%. The gearing ratio for the Group at the
end of 2018 was Z7% (2017 - 29%])

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose 1t to a vanety of inarcial nsks including foreign exchange nsk, interest -ate risk, credit r'sk and figuidity risk. The Group's
overall treasary nsk management programme foguses on the unpredictability of financial markets, and sceks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance

The Group uses dervative fimancial mstrumerts to hadge certain nsk exposures The use of ‘nancial denvatives 1s governed by the Group's policies
approved by the Board, which arovide written principles on foraigr exchange risk, interest rate nsk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and
non-derivative finarcial nstrurrients, and the investrment of excess liquidity. Compiiance with policies and exposures hmits is reviewed by the Grouap's
Treasury Comimittee on a regular basis. The Group does not enter into or trade financial nstruments including denvative financial instruments for
specuative purposes.

Foreign exchange risk management

The Group enters into forward foreigr exchange contracts to hadge the exchange risk arising on the operations’ trading actnaties in foreign currencies.
Where commented or below, the sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency nsk at the reporting date has been determined based
on the change taking place at the beginning of the financia. year and left uncharged throughout the reportuing pariod, with all other variables held
constant {such as nterest rates) The sensitivity assumptions arg based on analysis reviewed by the Group's Ireasury Committee

The Group denved 84% of its reverue from businesses cutside the United Kingdom, with 58% relating to operations in North Amenca. Fluctuations
in the value of the US dollar and other currencies in relation to Pound Sterling have had, and may continue to have, a signif cant impact on the results
of the Group’s operations when reported in Pound Sterling The Group decided nat to hedge this translation risk Ir additon, the majority of assets are
denoninated in foreign currency, particularly in US dollars. In order to provide a hadge against volatility in the value of these assets compared to the
Group's earnings, and herce provide a natural hedge against the Group's principal lending covenant (the rato of net debt to EBITDAL the Group aims
to borrow in foreign currencies in similar proportions o 1its generation of foreign currency EB1TDA, where practica’ and economic. A 10% appreaiation
lor depreciation) of al' other currencies against the Pouna Sterling would have increased (or decroased) 2018 Group operating profit by £9 0m (£8 Om
of which would have becn due to the US dolar movermert) and would have increased (or decreased) equity by £43.6m (£25.17m of which would have
been due to tne US dollar movernent).

The Group has a number of transaction-related foreign currency exposures, particularly between the US dollar ard the Pound Sterling, Thai Baht and
Malaysian Ringgit. The Group seeks to hedge between 0% to 100% of transaction-related exposures mainly on a rolling 16 to 18-month forward basis,
butir somae cases for periads of up to 60 months and applies hedge accounting where the forwards can be designated 1 a qualifying cash flow hedge
relatonship. Based on the net of the annual sales and purchase-related exposures, all transaction-related foreign currercy exposures to Group profit
after hedging in existence at 31 December 2018 are immaterial. The impact on equity 1s determined by the unrecognised portion of apen farward
contracts at the year-end A 10% appreciation {or depreciation) of the US dollar against the Pound Sterling, Thai Baht and the Maiaysian Ringgit would
have decreased {or increased) equity by £13.5m, £1.8n and £0 7m, respectively

Interest rate risk management

The Group has & pohey of maintaining approximately 60% of its borowing costs at fed interest rates. The Group generally borrows long-term in fixea
rates but at times may barrow at floating rates and swap into fixed depending on credi market conditions, Occasiorally & portion of fixed debt interest
15 swapped into fioating rates. The combiration of maintaining an acceptable balance of fixed and floating rate debt, and the Group's policy of
barrowing in foreign currency In proportion to its generation of foreign currercy earnings, provides an effective heage against the impact ot interest
rate and fereign currency volatiity on total ‘nterest costs. As at year end 2018, the percentage of debt at fixed interest was 90% (2017 -~ 92%).

The following sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to interest rate nsk in 2018 has been retrospoctively determined based on the exposure

to applicable nterest rates on financial assets ana labilues held throughout the finanaial year, with all other variables hela constant (such as foreign
exchange rates). The sensitivity assumptions are based on analysis reviewed by the Group's Treasury Committee f variable nterest rates haa been
0.5% lower {or higher), the Group's profit before tax would have increased {or decreased) by £0.1m. Any fixed interest debt 1 held to matunty and not
far value adjusted through the Consolidated Income Statement. An ingrease {or decrease} of 0.5% in the market interest rate for the fixed rate debt
held up te matunty would have decreased (or ircreased) the farr vaiue o the Group's borrowings by £4.4m. The Group’s sensitivily to nerest rates has
remaired broadly consistent with prior period due to the high proportion of fixed debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED HINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 707

Credit risk management

The Group's credit ris< 1s prmantly attributable 1o its trade recevables The credit quality of customers 1s assessed taking into accourt ther finarcial
pos tion, past expenence and other factors Further details on determining the recoverability of trade receivables 1s provided in Note 18 The Group s

guaranter under fve leases in the UK, three of which arose on the disposal of a former Group owned subsidiary.

Credit 1isk on liquid funds and denwvative financial Insruments is imited because the counterpailies are financial mstitutions with high credit ratings

assigned by international credit rating agencies. The carryirg amourt of financal assets recorded in the Financial Statements, which 1s net of

imparmént losses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group derecognises trace recevables through non-recourse

facroring arrangements, which were £18.5m at 31 December 2018 {31 December 2017 - £23.1m)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity nisk reflects the risk that the Group will have insufficient resourses to meet 1ts financial habil ties as they fall due, The Group manages liquidity
risk by mairtaining adequate reserves, banking faciitics and revolving credit faciliies, by continuousiy menitoring forecast and actual cash flows and

matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and habilities Cash flow forecas:s are produced monthly, together with appropriate capacity planning
and seenario analysis, to ensure that bank covenant and liquidity targets will be met. The Directors also regular y assess the balance of capital and debt

funding of the Group, as part of a process to satisfy the Group's long-terrr stra‘egic funding requirements

As noted in the Financial Review on pages 26 to 29, the Group 1s currently in a weil-funded position, with signficant headroom under its committed

borrowing facilities It is considered un'ikeldy that the Group will face any significant funding 1ssues in the foreseeable future.

Categaories of financial instruments

Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
£m £m
Carrying value of financial assets’
Cash and cash equivalents 17.2 12.6
Trade receivables 149.2 137.8
Other recevables 19 2.1
Financial assets at amortised cost N 168.3 1525
Foreign exchange cortracts - cash flow hedges 1.1 37
Total financial assets 169.4 156.2
Carrying value of financial labilines:
Bank overdrafts and loans 170.0 167.2
Qbligations under finance leases 0.2 0.5
Trade payables 109.0 101.9
Other payables £3.0 56 6
Financial habilities at amortised cost 342.2 326.2
Foreigr exchange cantracts — cash flow hedges 104 49
Forewgn exchange contracts — held for trading - 0.2
Total financial hakilities 3526 3313
Undiscounted contractual matunty of financ al llabilities at amortised cost
Amounts payable;
On demand or w'th n one year 1781 2265
In the second to fifth years inclusive 63.6 501
After five years 135.6 759
3773 3525
Less. future finance charges {35.1) 26.3)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 342.2 326.2

The carrying amount 15 a reasonable approximation of fair value for the financial assets and habilities noted above excent [or bank overdrafts and loans,

disclosure of which are included within Note 19

An ageing analysis of trade recenvables 1s disclosed within Nate 18
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20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS © 7.7 & o0

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group entars into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange risk ansing on the operation’s trading activities in foraigr currercies
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy as set ol.tin Note 2 At the Balance Sheet date, total notional amodints and farr vaiues of putstanding

forward foreign excrange contracts that the Group Fave committed are given below:

Year ended Year enced
2018 2017
£m fr
Notioral amounts
Foraign exchange contracts -- cash flow hedges 1884 1548
Foreign exchange contracts — held for trading at FVPL - o222
Taotal 189.4 177.0
Less: amounts rraturing within 12 months [109.7) 176 41
Amounts matunng after 12 months 79.7 1006
Contractual matunty:
Cash flow hedges balances due within one year
Cutilow 113.5 924
Inflow {109.9) 93 4)
(Cash flow hedges balances due between one and two yoars
Outflow 300 233
Infiow {27.0) 219
Cash flow hedges balances due between two ard five years:
Outflow 58.3 420
Inflow (62.7) {39.5}
Held for trading balances due within one year:
Outflow - 222
Inflow - {222
Fair values.
Foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges {9.3) (1.2
Foreign exchange contracts — held for trading at FVPI - {02y
Total hability {9.3) (1.4)

These far values are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the Balance Sheet date, comprising £3 1m {2017 - £3 7m) assets included in
trade and other recevables and £10.4m (2017 - £5.1m) included 1n trade and other payables. The far value of currency dervatives that are designated
and effective as cash llow hedges amounting 1o £8 Om loss {2017 - £1.3m loss) has been deferred - equily
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS "o fefiied

Fair values

The following table presents an analys s of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to nitial recognition at far value, grouped into Levels
1-3 based on the degree to which the farr value 1s ohservable

Level 1 those fair values derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 those fair values de-ived from inputs other than quoted prices inciuded witnin Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {L.e. as prices} ar indirectly {1.e. denved from prices); ana

Level 3 those fair values derived frorr valuation techniques that inciude inputs for the asset or liaoility that are not based on observable market
data funobservable inputs).

There has not been any trans’er of assets or labrities between evels, Trere are no non-recurrng fam value measuremerits. Level 2 fair values ae
derived from future cash flows, of open forward contracts at 31 December, translated by the difference between contractual rates and observable
forward exchange rates.

Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2018 Em £m £m £m
Assets
Foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges - 11 - 11
Total assets o ’ ) ’ o ’ Lo e ___...__ LT _ K - ) 1.1
Liabilities
Foreign excharge contracts — cash flow hedges - 10.4 - 10.4
Foreign excharge contracts — held for trading at FVPL - - - -
Total liabilities - 10.4 - 10.4
tevel 1 Leve 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2017 £m £m £m £m
Assets
Foreign exchange cortracts — cash flow hedges - 37 - 37
Total assets - 37 - 37
Liabiiities
Forewgn exchange contracts — cash flow hedges - 49 - 49
Foreign exchange cortracts — he d for trading at FVPL - 0.2 - 0.2
Total labiities - 51 51

Anamount of £1 3m loss (2017 - £1 4m gain} has been transferred to the Consalidated Income Statement, and 1s included with.n operating profit
There was no ineffectiveness to be recorded from foreign exchange cash flow hedges A ioss of £nil (2017 - £0 2m) has been recogniscd in the
Consolidated Ircome Staterment in respect of foreign excharge contracts held for trading

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure
that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrurnent. The Group enters mtc hedge relationships where the cntical
terrms of the hedgimg instrument match exactly with the torms of the hedged itom, and s¢ a qualitative assessment of effectiverass s performed

If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hodged tem such that the critical terms no longer match exactly with <hc critical tormrs of the
hedging instrument, the Group uses the hypothetical denvative method to assoss effoctiveness

Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hodge where the cumudative change in the designated compongnt value of the hodging instrament
exceeds on an absolute basis the change in value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. In hedges of the above foreign exchange
contracts this may anse if the timing of the transaction changes from what was originally estimated.

The hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to accur at varous dates during the next 60 months, Amounts
deferred in equity are recogrised in the Consohdated tncome Statement in the same penod in which the hedged items aftect profit or ioss, which
15 genarally within 12 months from the Balance Sheet date,
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21. TAX BALANCE SHEET

Current tax

The current tax receivable of £2 7m {2017 - £1 0m} ncludes excess tax paid to tax authonties that is exoected to be recovered within 12 months by
way of offset aganst future tax labilites or refund as we 1 as research and ceveloprrent tax credits receivable

The majority of the GrouLp's taxable profits anse in countres, ncludirg the US, where the estmated tax lanilities are paid n an-account instalments
durng the year to which ey relate and are largely paid at the Balance Sheet date. The current tax liabi ity of £21.5m 12017 —£21 2m| represents
£3.9m (2017 - £3.6m} tax due on prefits of the current and prior years as well as £17 8m {2017 — £17.6m! provisions for tax uncertainties that represent
amounts expected to be paid but by ther nature, there 15 uncertainty over trming and eventual settlement, The Group recognises provisions in respect
of tax for items which are corsidered to have a range of possible tax outcomes. The outcomes considered by the Board ircluae a -ange of estimates
that could ncrease those labiliues by £14.1m These urcertainties exist due to a number of factors including differing interpretations of local tax laws
and the deternination of appropriate arm’s 'ergth oricing i accordance with OQECD transter pricing principles on internal sransactions and financing
arrangements 11 caiculating the carrying armount of provisions, managemert estimates the tax which could reasonably be expectaed to become
payable as a result of differing interpretations and decisions by tax authonties in espect of transact'ons and events whose treatment for tax purposes
15 uncertan and establish provisiors based on an assessment of the expected outcorne

Deferred tax liabilities and assets

The following are the major deferred tax Fabilities and {assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior
reperting penod:

Acce erated Urirea 1sed Goodwll and Other
tan X miang bile Satirement Empordry Tax
deprecation gamns amortisation benefits diffecences losses Toral
frn fn £m Erm Ern fm fin
At 1 January 2017 24.0 18) 43.9 (3 8 137 - 486
{Crediti/charge to Consclidated Income
Statement en omn {13.3) 38 4.2 2.8) 14 2}
Charge/{credit) to other comprehensive income - 2.3 - 107} - - 1.6
Exchange differences 3.6 {2 4) oy 24 02 13.3)
At 1 January 2018 14.3 0.4 28.2 (0.5} {7.1) {2.6) 327
Charge/lcreditt to Consohdated Income
Statemant 2.1 {0.2) - 17 {0.4) 26 58
{Creditl/charge to other comprehensive iIncome - (1.3) - 1.0 0.2) - [0.5)
Exchange differerces a4 {0.1) 05 0.2 0.8 - 18
As at 31 December 2018 16.8 1.2) 287 2.4 (6.9) - 39.8

Other temporary differences include halances ansing from temporary differerces in relation to prowisions, accruals, deferred compensation and
share-based paymsnts

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset. The followirg 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances lafter offset} for financial
reporing pJrposes.

Year ended Year ended

2018 2017

Deferred tax liabilites 422 343
Deferred tax assets ) ) ) ) - (24} 1.6}
398 327

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of £29.6m (2017 - £33.5m} available for offse: aga'nst tuture profits and a defarred
tax asset has beer recognised in respact of £nil (2017 - £6 5m} of such losses. Due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams in the
companies In which such losses arose, deferred tax on tax losses of £29.5m {2017 - £27.8m} have not been recognised. Included n unrecognised tax
losses are losses of £4.1rm (2017 - £4 3m} that will expire over a penod of one to ning years Other losses may be carned forward indefinitely.

In addition, at the Balance Sheet date, the Group has deductible temporary differences in respect of interest expense of £13.5m (2017 — £nil}
for which o deferred tax asset has been recogrused. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these differerces due 1o the
uncertanty as to therr future use.

At the Balance Sneet date, a deforred tax liability of £0 2 {2017 — £0 1m} has been recogrised in “espect of the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistnbuted 2amings of subsidaries expected to roverse in the foresesable future. No tempaorary dfterence has
beer recogrised In respect of £43 1m (2017 - £34.4m} of undistributed earnings, which may be subject 10 a withholding tax, as the Group 151
a position to cortrol the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s not probable that such differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future.

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group had £5.0m (2017 - £5.0m!} of surplus Advanced Corporation Tax ("ACT"), previously written off, for which
no deferred tax asset has been recognised as 't is unlkely 1o be recovered in the foreseeable future due to the UK earnings profile The Group also
has £18.0m {2017 - £16.6m) of unused capital losses, as reduced by gains rolied over, available for offset agairst future capital gains for which no
deferred tax asset has been recognised as no such capital gains are anticipated to arise in tre foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minamum lease paynients

Peesent value of rrmmiem
lease payments

Year ended Yedl @nided Year ended Yuar #ndea
2018 017 2018 2017
£fm £m £fm £m

Amounts payabie under tinance loases:
Whthin one year 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3
In the second o fifth years inclusive - 0.2 - 02
After fve years _ _ =T
o - 0.2 05 0.2 06
| ess: Future finance charges L - ) - -
Prasent value of lease obligations 0.2 05 0.2 a5
Less: amount dug for settlement within 12 rnonths tshown under current hiabilities) 0.2) (0.3
Amount due for seitlement after 12 months - 0.2

Approximately 95% {2017 ~ §2%) of the outstanding obligations represent leases which were acquired as part of the acquisition of Lyrrington in 2015,
which expire between 2019 and 2020. The most significant lease, representing approximately 70% (2017 — 49%) of the Group's obligations, exprres in
2020 For the year ended 31 December 2018, the average effective borrowing rate was 1 3% {2017 - 3. 6%, Imerest rates are fixed at the contract

date Allleases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arangements have been entered 1nto for contingent rental payments

The far value of the Group’s ease cbhigations approximates thair carrying amount.
The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' charges over e leased asserts.
All lease obligation currencies are in Pound Ster'ing (2017 - Pound Sterling)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables at 31 December compnise the following

Year ended Year enaed
2018 2017
£m e

Current labwities
Trade payables 109.0 101.9
Sociai secunty and PAYE 4.9 4.3
Value added tax 18 20
Foreign exchanae contracts 104 5.1
Accrued expenses 69.9 0oz
Total trade and other payables 196.0 173.0

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables aoproximates to their far value

I he average credit perod taken for trade purchases 1s 59 days {201/ - 57 days).
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25. PROVISIONS

Warranties Other Toral

frr £~ im

At 1 January 2017 25 1.1 36
Addit'onal prov'sion In the year 35 3.0 65
Utihisation of provision {1.8) 0.7 25
Release of unused amounts - 1.6 N6
Exchange differences 03 - 03
At 1 January 2018 39 1.8 57
Additional provision in tne yoar 28 57 85
Utilisation of prowvision (1.4) {0.7) [2.1)
Release of unused amounts {0.1) {0.9) {1.0)
Exchange differerces 0.3 0.1 04
At 31 December 2018 55 6.0 11.5
Included in current liabilities 5.3 6.0 mn3

Warranty costs

Praov'sions for warranty costs are based on an assessment of future clams with reference 1o pas: expensnee

Claims and legal costs

Other provisians include £1 8m (2017 - £1 3mi for expected legal costs and for contractua: matters that have ar'ser in the ordinary course of business
and £3.9m (2017 - £nill for costs associated with the US class action lawsuits (see Note 9). Management exercises Judagment 1o determing the
estimated hiabiity and amounts are recorded for known issues based on past experience of similar items and other known factors and circumstances.
The provisions reflect the best estimate of the most likely outcome, naving considered each provision separately ard the possible range of outcomes.
The settlement of provisions for expected legal costs and contractual matters that have arisen In the ordinary course of business 1s subject 1o ongoirg
discussion and are Hkely to toke a number of reporting percds 1o complete. As with any judgment there 1s a ligh degree of inherent uncertainty,
particularly with legal proceedings and clams, and the actual amounts of the settlement could differ from the amount provided.

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Year ended Year enced
2018 2017
£m fre
Issued and fully paid
419.4 milion ordinary shares of 10p each 41.9 41.9
At 31 December 2018, the 1ssued and fully pa d up share capitai was 419.4 millon ordinary shares of 10p each
No shares were issued duning 2018 {2017 — 1,832 shares)
The Company has one class of ordina-y shares which carry no right to fixed Income,
26. SHARE PREMIUM ACCOYUNT
Year ended Year endee
2018 201/
£m fm
Balance at 1 January 14.8 14.8
Moverment in year - -
Balance at 31 December 14.8 18
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27 EQUITY RESERVE

Year ended Year anred
2018 2617
£m fm
Balance at 1 January 39 30
Transfer to retained earnings reserve (1.6} 1.0y
Movement in year 34 19
Balance at 31 Decemper 5.7 39
The transfer to retainea earmings reserve 1s in espect of equity-settled share-based payments that vested during the year
The movemant 1n the year1s £3 4m (2017 - £1.9m) in respect of the share-based payment charge for the year,
28 HEDGING AND TRANSLATION RESERVES
Hedging Translation redging Translation
reserve reserve Total reserve reserve Tota'
Year ended Year ended Year gnded Year ended Year enasd Year erred
2018 2018 208 2017 2007 2007
£m £m £m frr firm £m
Balance at 1 January {41.3) 746 333 {60 5} 928 423
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operatons - 20.3 20.3 - (18.2) {18.2)
Change in fair value of hedging denvatives 6.7 - 6.7} s - 1.5
Tex on foroigr exchange contracts - cesh lowhedges 13 - 3 ey B3
Balance at 31 December {46.7) 84.9 48.2 {41 3} 74.8 33.3

Hedging Reserve
The Group uses [oreign currency forward contracts to manage its foraign currency risk associated with its highly probable forecast trarsactions,
as described within Note 70, These contracts are designated as cash flow hedga relationships

To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging nstrument 1s recognised n the hedging reserve.

Costs of Hedging
The Group designates the forward component of foreign currency forward contracts as hedging inst-uments in cash flow hedge relationships.

29 RETAINED EARNINGS

Year entled Year enced

2018 2017

Em fr

Balance at ) Jannn(y 438.8 4000
Dundends paid {29.6) (27.9
Profit for the year 50.1 60.3
Pension actuarnal gain 5.8 5.2
Transfer from equity reserve 1.6 10
Transfer from own share reserve 0.3) 05
Tax on deducuble temporary differences e 07
Balance at 31 December 465.6 438 8

36 OWN SHARES

Year ended rear ended

2018 2017

£m £m

Balance at 1 January 1 (1.5}
Transfer Lo retained earnings reserve 0.3 05
Purcnase of new shares (7.21 Qn
Balance at 31 December (8.0} (1.1}

The own shares reserve reoresents the cost of shares purchased in the market and held by the Senior plc Emmployee Benelit Trust to satisfy options
under the Group's share option schemes {see Note 34).

31. DISPOSAL AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During tne first half of 2018, the sale agrecmert that the Group had entered into to dispose of a property {land and buiidingl in the Senior Flexonics
Bartlett operation did not complete and the property 1s ne lorger marketed for sale As aresult, the property bas been re-classified from held *or sale
as at 31 December 2017 into propet ty, piant and equipment as at 31 December 2018, The net book value of the property at 31 December 2018 was
£3.5m {31 December 2017 - £3 9m).

On 9 Septermbaer 2017, the Group sold the BWT likeston facility. The sale enabled maragement o have greater focus on opportunities in its core
activities. A loss of £3 8m arose on disposal after taking nte account exit costs together with fair value of net assets disposed (€4 2m including £0.9m
of inventones and {0 7m of property, plant and equipment and £1 7m of goodwill}, offset by cash corsideration of £0 4m.
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32 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
a} Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

Year ended Year endcao
2018 Pty
£m frm
Qperating profit 699 655
Adustments for
Depreciatior of property, piant ard egupment 395 38.8
Amortisation of intangible assets 17.4 191
Loss/iprofitt on sale o* fixed assets 04 02
Share-based payment charges 3.4 1.8
Pension payments in excess of service cost {10.3} 18.7)
Persion curtalment gain 0.4} -
Costs on disposal - o8
UK Guaranteed Minimum Persions 24 -
Share of joint venture (0.6) nn
Increase in nventones (16.8) {79
Increase in recevables {7.6) 17.6)
Increase in payables and provisions 13.3 279
US class action lawsuits 37 -
Working capital and provisions Curféncy movements 17 10.5}
Cash gemératéd by dberét:ons 16.0 1258
Income taxas paid (6.0} 149
Interestpaid {9.3) {10.0)
Ne: cash from operating activuies 100.7 110.9

bj Free cash flow

Free cask flow, a non-statuiory iiem, enhances the reporting of the cash-generating ability of the Group prior to corporate activity such as

acouisitions, disposals, financing and transactions with shareholders. 1115 used as a performance measure by the Board and Executve Commuttee

and Is derived as follows:

Year ended Year enced
2018 2017
£m fm
Net cash from ocperating activities 100.7 1109
Interest received 0.4 04
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 05 1.8
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {54.6) 52 3
Purchase of intangibie agsets o . . .7 {2 5)
Frea cash flow 45.3 583
¢) Analysis of net debt
At At
1 January Exchange 31 December
2018 Casl movement 2018
£m £m £m £m
Cash and bank balarcas 12.6 36 1.0 17.2
Overdrafts iz 27 - {0.2)
Cash and cash equivalents 97 683 1.0 17.0
Debt due within one year (57.6) 56 8 (1.7 {2.5}
Debt due after one year 106 7) {B4. A} 82} 1167.3)
Finance leases {0.5) 0.3 - (0.2}
Foreign exchange contracts - held for trading 0.2) - 0.2 -
Total {155.3) 9.0 6.7} (153.0}
Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
£m fm
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash and bank balances 17.2 1286
Overdrafts (0.2} {2.9)
Total 17.0 97

Cash and cash equivalerts twhich are presented as a single class of assets or the face of the Corsalidated Balance Sheet} compnse cash at oank and
other short-term highly Iquid Investments with a maturity of three months or less. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of cash and cash

equivalents approximates 1o therr tair value
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NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED HINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

Year ended Year crded
2018 2017
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recogmised in the Consolidated licome Statement for the year 10.5 104
The Group also received £0 1Tm under sub-leases recognised in the Consolidated Ircome Staterment for the year (2017 — £0 6m}.
At 31 December, tne Group had outstanding commitments for future min mum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due
as follows
Year ended Yoar enged
2018 7
£m £m
Within one year 10.6 9.2
In the second to fifth years inclusive 289 266
After five years L - . 24 127
659 479

The total of futre einimum sub-lease payments expected to be receved by the Group under nen-cancellable sub-leases at the end of 20718 was

£0.6m {2017 - £0.4m)

Operating lease payments principally represent rentals payable by the Group for certam of its manufacturing properties. The four most significart

leases, representing 61% (2017 - 40%) of the Group's commitment, expire in 2038, 2026 and two in 2024,

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group recogrused 1o1al expensas of £3 5m (2017 £2.1mr) related to share based payments, of which £3.4m (2017 — £1.9m) related 1o

equity-settled share-based payments, and £0 1m {2017 - £0.7m} related to social secunty costs on share-based payments As at 31 December
2018, the Group had a liability of £0.3m {2017 - £0 2im) ansing from share-based payrments relating to social security costs,

a) 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

On 28 February 2018, 1,676,130 shares were awarded under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Awards under this plan bave a three-year vesting

peariod, subiiect to adustad earnings per share (EPS) and total sharehoider return {TSR) nerformance conditions being meat Half the awards have an
attaching performance target for adpstea EPS growth over the three-year performance period of at least 15%. The other half of the awards begin to
vest If the Group's TSR falks in the top half of a comparator group ai the end of the three year performance perod. Vesting levels ‘nerease with higher

performance The awards are settlad by delivenna shares to the participanis

The estimated fair vaiue for the awards granted in the year, excluding for the Executive Directors, with adjusted EPS conditions 1s 286.8p, which is the
share price at the date of grant. The estimated fair value for the awards granted in the year, excluding for the Executive Directors, with TSR conditions
15 180.9p per share refiecting an adjustment of 37% to the far vaiue of the awards with adjusted £PS conditions due 1o the stningent TSR condition.

The respecuve farr values for awards made to the Executive Directors 1 261 Op and 164 3p reflecting the two-year retention cenod.

Ihese farr values were calcuated by applying a binomial option pricing made!. This model incorporates a techmigue called “boctstrapping”, which
models the impact of the TSR condition The maedel inputs at the date of grant were the share price {286.80p for the main award), expected volatiity
of 29% per annum, and the performance conditions as noted above Fxpected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatiity of the

Group's share price over the previous three years

The following share awards were cutstanding as at 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Year ended Year ended

2018 201/

Number of Murnber of

shares shares

Qutstanding at 1 January 4,857,368 3696 386
Granted 1,676,130 2,647,114
Exercised - -
Forfeted - e  (Bo1L193] (1,486,132
Qutstanding at 31 December 5,732,305 4,857.368
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b) Enhanced SMIS Deferred Share Award

On 28 February 2018, 402,123 shares were awarded under the Enhanced SMIS Deterred Share Awara Shares earned under this award have a
three-year deferra penod and would be subect to forfeture by a "bad leaver” over that deferral penioc There are no performance critena for this
award. The awards are settled by qelvering shares o the parmcipants.

The esumatec farr vatue for the awards granted in the year is 2B86.800 per snare, wrich 15 the share price at the date of grant

The following share awaras were outstard'ng as at 31 December 2618 and 2017

Year ended Yaar ended

2018 207

Number of Numkber of

shares shares

Outstanding at 1 January 484,376 500,728
Granted 403,123 247156
Exercised (116,329} {185,587]
Forfenad ) ) - (77,921}
Qutstanding at 31 December 771,170 484 376

¢) Savings-Related Share Option Plan
The Cormnpany operates a Savings-Refated Share Option Plan for eligible employees across the Group There are ne performance enteria for this

arrangement and optiors arg 1ssued to all participants in accordance with the HM Revenue & Customs rules for such savings plans Savings-Related
Share Options wese lastissacd on 2 May 2017,

The following options were cutstanding as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Year ended 2018 Year ended 2017

Weighted Weighteo

Number average Mumoer avorage

of share exercise of share Sxgroise

options price QpTONS grice

OQutstanding at 1 January 4,542,625 22617p 4133402 244.43p
Granted - - 2,182,727 207.200
Exercised (28,837)  218.83p {1.832) 219.57p
Forteitad {812,040) 252.48p (1,21787%) 245.85p
Expired ) ) ~ (58,966) 336.80p {553,697 244 40p
Outstarding at 31 December 3,642,782 218.60p 4,542,625 226.17p
Exercisable at 31 December 117,447 335.80p - -

28,837 shares were exercised in 2018 1,832 shares were exercised m: 2017, The waighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during 2018 was 282 84p. The aptions outstanding at 31 December 2018 had an exercise price of 207.20p, 222.00p and 335.80p
per share, and a weighted average remainirg contractual life of 1.4 years. The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had exercise prices of
207.20p, 222.00p and 335.80p per share. and a weighted average remaining coritractual ife of 2.3 years.

d} Other share awards

On 1 May 2015, one-off awards over 96,770 shares were granted to David Squires in connection with his apgointment as Group Chief Executive
comprising an award over 4,770 shares that was exercised on appointmient and twe long-term incentive awards over 32,000 and 60,008 shares that
rmurror the rutes and performance condsuons attaching to the LTIP awards madie to other Senior executives on 25 March 2013 and 21 March 2014

respectively under the Senior pic 2005 Long-Term Incentive Pian For tne 32,000 share award, 6,640 shares vested on 25 March 2016; the remainirg
60,000 share award lapsed during 2017

The following share awards were outstanding as at 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Year ended Year ended

2018 20107

Number of Number of

shares shates

Outstanding at 1 January - 50,000
Granted - -
Exereised - _
Forfeited _ - __ (B0.000;

Outstandiirrwé at 31 December - -
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34, SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS : N i) o

&) Restricted share awards

On 28 February 2018, 75,000 shares were awardad under this plan Shares granted under this award have a three-year deferral period and would be
subject 1o forfeiture by a “bad leaver” over that deferral perod There are no performance cnteria tor this award. The awards are scttled by delvering
shares [0 the parucipants

The estimated far valus for the awards granted . the year 1s 286 8p per share, which1s the share price ot the date of grant.

The following skhare awards were cutstanding as a1 31 Decermber 2018 ad 2017

Year ended Year enged

218 2017

Number of Nurmbar of

shates shares

Cutstanding at 1 January 25,000 -
Grantad 75,000 25,000
Exe c'sed - -
Ferfeited } N ) . ) - -
Qutstanding at 31 December 100,000 25,000

35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a number of pension plans in the UK, North Amenca and Europe. These nclude noth defined contrbution arrangements ana
detined benefit arrangements The Senior plc Pension Plan {"the UK Plan”}), which is a funded scheme in the UK and closed to future accrua! at the end
of 6 Aprii 2014, has the largest pension obligation In the Group and Company. This plan provides benefits based on Fnal pansionable emcluments for
the ermplayees of the Group and Comparny. The latest full actuaral valuation was carried out as at 5 April 2016 and, for the purposes of accounting
under 145 18, this valuation has been ralled forward to 31 December 2018

In addition, the Group operates two defined benefi: plans in he US, one of which was closad to future accrual from October 2608, The second plan
was closed to future participants from September 2013, and tre Executive sechon was also cosed to future aceraals from December 2013, Separate
disclosure 1s made for the funded UK and US definad benefit arrangements In both the UK and US, the assets of funded plans are beld in separate
trustee administerad funds managed by ndependent financia mstitutions and have persion costs assessed by consult ng actuaries using the
Projected Unit Method. The Trustees are required 1o act in the best interests of the plans’ beneficianes

The Group also has a small number of unfunded post-reurement plans, including a closed heslthcare scheme in the US Separate disclosure s proviaed
for these arrangements

Further details on the arrangement of the UK Plan arc given below.

The Trustee of the UK Plan s Senior Irustee Limited 1ne appo ntrment of the Dreciors o e Buand s detesmined by the artieles of association of

Senior Trustee Lumited  There are six Trusiee Directors in otal and in accordance with statutory requircments under the Pensions Act 2004 at least
two must be a Member Nominated Dyector. Currently, there are two Member Nomirated Directors and four Directors who have been nominated

by the Company, of which the Chairman and one other Drrector are viewed as independent.

The UK Plan exposes the Company to @ number of nsks. In particular:

« uncertainty i1 bencfit payments ~ the vatue of the obl gations will ultimately depend on the amount of benefits paid out. This in turn wilt depend
on the level of inflation and how long individuals live Inflation 1s capped, which reduces the exposure on the Plar labihues;

volatiity in asset values — the value of the assets held to meet future berefit payments s volat'e due to changss in stock rmarkets and

intergst rates; and

urcertainty in cash funding - movements in the value of the UK Plan’s obligations or assets may result in the Company being required to provide
higher levels of cash funding.

.

The investment strategy for the UK Plan is decided by the Trustee in consultation with Senior pie. The primary investment objective is for the plan to
be able o meet benefit payments as they fall due The UK Plan's average duration 1s around 16 years and benefits are exnected to be paid for the next
B0 to 70 years. | hese cash flow payments are expected to réach a peak around 2028, and gradually decline thereafter as the membership matures.
In setting this Strategy, the Trustae considers a wide range of asset classos, the nsk and rowards of a number of possible asset aliocator options,
the sustainabllity of each asset class waithin each strategy, and the need for approprate diversification between different asset classes. The pnimary
rvestment objective s implemented by setting strategic asset allocations using a “linear de-riskmg” approach Under this aporoach, the scheme’s
current asset strategy of 70% invested n low-rsk matching assets, such as "liability dnven investments” (LD} and bonds, and 30% i higher-nsk
1eturn seeking assels, such as equities, is expected to be lingarly moved inte 100% matching assets over the pericd from Apnl 2021 to April 2036.
LD!'s help to mitigate tnvestment risk for the UK Plan by minimising the fluctuations in the UK Plan's funding levels due to changes in the value of the
lisbilites This 1s achieved through hedging movements in the funding habilities caused by changes in interest rates and inflation expectations The
Trustee continues to review [ts Investment strategy and kas also implemented a switching meckanism to secure any outperformances of eguities
relative 1o bonds, by selling eguities to buy bonds.

While the UK Plan was in a deficit posimion of £3/.4m as at 5 Apnl 2016 when measured on the Trustee's funding pasis, the UK Plan s ir a surplus
position of £30 9m as at 31 Decermnber 20181201/ £19 4 surplus, 2016 - £4.0m surplus) when measured on an 185 18 basis The difference
betwean the trenral funding and annuat 1AS 19 valuation relates to the assumptions used For example, the funding discount rate 1s based on the
UK Plan's stated rvestment strategy, as opposed o the yields available on corporate bonds for the |IAS 19 discount rate.
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35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES © .~ . 1

The 1AS 19 s.arplis position on the UK Plan ‘s recognised as an assa: on the Cansolicated and Corroany Balance Sheet, with no requrement to
recognise an additoral lability on the UK Ptan, on the grourds that the Company Fas an unconditona nght to a refund, assuming the gradual
settleraert of Plan 1abilit es over time until ali mermbers have left. In considenng th s, the Company has taken into account that the Trustees do not
have unilateral powers to wind up the Plan or modify benefis. The JASE 1s cons dernng amendments to pension account.ng (IFRIC 147 as publishea mn
an exposure dra‘t in June 2015 If implemented by the IASE, some of these amenaments could resultin derecognit-or of the UK Pian’s IAS 19 surplus,
of recogrition of adaitional laolities The Group will recansider the implications of any amendment to IFRIC 14 and |AS 18 f and when it nas beer.
finalised ad aubiished.

Cash contribuations 1o the UK Plan are set by agreerent between the Company and the Trustee of the UK Plan. These are setin accordance with
legislation and take account of the imention to further reduce the risk associated with the UK Plar's investment strategy, as set out above Tne
contrbutions were last reviewed as at 5 April 2018 and were based on a forecast deficit at that time, as part of the 2016 tnennial funding valuation
The Company nas agreed with the Trastee of the UK Plan to make scheduled cortributions over a fve-year period from Apnl 2016 to March 2021
Annual cash fand ng contributions of £8.1m are expected aver this penod, subject to review and amendrent as approprate, at the next funding
valuation in 2019 The estimated contributions expectea to be paid aurng 2013 1n the US fundea plans s £2 5m (2017 £2.2m)

The Group 1s ulumately responsible for making ug any shortfall in the UK Plan over a pericd agreed with the Trustees. To the extent that actual
expenence 1s different from that assumed, tre funding position will ba better or worse than anticipated. As such, the contributions required by the
Group could vary in the fature,

a} Defined contribution schemes
The Group has a number of differert detined contribution and government-sponsored arrangements in place in e counties in which 1t operatos
Nore of these are irdividuatly matenal to the Group and the aggregate cost of such schemaes for the period was £10.8m (2017 — £10.3m)

b} Defined benefit schemes
The amount ncluded i the Censelidated Balance Sheet ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of its defined benefit plans 15 set out below.

31December 2018 31 December 2017

VK plans us pla'nisi Untfunded UK plans T ous plans Uriunded )
funded funded plans Total funded tunded plans Total
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m m

Present value of defined benefit
obligations {278.7) {52.5) {8.0} {339.2) 301 8 54.3) {79 {364 0)
Far value of nlan assets 309.6 413 o8 35727 3212 471 G4 368/

Plan surptusfideficitl per

Consolidated Balance Sheet 30.9 {5.2} (7.2} 18.5 19 4 (7.2} {75} 4.7

¢) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

31 December 2018 31 Dacember 2017
UK plans US plans Unfunded - UK plans us D\dnsﬁ Unfunded
funded funded plans Total funded funded plans Tortal
Notes £m £m £m £m £m fim £ fm
At 1 January 301.8 54.3 79 364.0 2974 54 5 1.0 3589
Current service cost - 0.4 01 0.5 - 0.4 05 08
Past service cost 9 24 - - 24 - - - -
Interest cost 7.0 1.9 o1 9.0 1.5 21 0.2 98
Expenence on benefit
obligations 05 - - 0.5 4.3 0.9 - 50
Actuanal llosses)/gains
- f'nancial (16.6) (4.1} a1 (20.6) 78 386 - 12
Actuanal losses
— demographic (1.9) (0.5} - (2.4} 3.2 0.4 - i3 6}
Benefits paid (14.5) (2.2) - (16.7) {11 6 123 - (139}
Curtailment ¢redit - - (0.4) (0.4} - - - -
Exchange diffarences - 27 0.2 29 - {4.5} 02 (4.3}
At 31 December 278.7 525 8.0 3392 3.8 54 3 79 3640

The UK Plan past service cost of £2 4m in 2018 relates to the UK Guaranteed Mimimum Pensions {see Note 9}
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35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES .07, ™.

d) Movements in the fair value of plan assets were as follows:

31 December 2018

31 Decomber 7007

UK plans US plans Unfunded LK plans s plans Urfunded
funded funded plans Total tunded funced flans jotal
£m £m £m £m £ £ fm fm
At January 3212 471 0.4 368.7 3014 471 - 3485
lnterest an plan assets 7.6 1.6 - 9.2 ‘7 18 01 86
Actual return an plan assets less
nterest (12.9) 3.8) - {16.7} 1556 2.3 - 17.8
Contributions from en-ployer 8.6 2.2 04 11.2 86 2.2 0.3 111
Benefits paid {14.5) (2.2) - {16.7) 111.6) 2.3 - {13.9)
Running costs (0.4} - - {0.4} 0 4) {eAN - (0.5
Exchange ditferences . = 24 - 24 138l 3.9+
At 31 December 309.6 47.3 0.8 3517 321.2 A/.1 0.4 368./
e} Amounts recognised in the Consclidated Income Statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
UK plans US plans Unfunded UK plars Us plans “Unfunded
funded funded plans Total funded funoed plans 1otal
fm £m £m fm tm fm £m £
Current service cost included
within operating profit - 0.4 01 0.5 - 0.4 05 0.9
Running costs 0.4 - - 0.4 04 0.1 - 05
Past service cost 24 - - 2.4 - - - -
Curtailment credit - - {0.4) (0.4) - - - -
Charge/incorne} Included within
operating profit 28 0.4 (0.3} 29 04 06 05 1.4
Included withir finarce
income)/costs {0.6) 0.3 0.1 0.2} 0.2 03 Q1 0z
Armount recogrised in the Income
Statement 2.2 0.7 (0.2} 27 02 0.8 06 1.6
f) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
; 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
UK plainrs" US plans Unfunded UK plars US plans Urfunded
funded funded plans Total funded funced plans Teral
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £
Net actuaral gainf{ osses in the
year due ta;
- Change i financal assumptions 16.6 41 {0.1} 20.6 {7.6} {3 6) - 11 2
- Change in demographic
assumptions 1.9 0.5 - 24 32 0.4 - 36
- Experience adjustments on
benahit obugations {0.5) - - {0.5) 4.1 0.9 5 0y
Actual return on plan assets less
interest on benefit ohligations (12.9) (3.8} - (16.7} 155 2.3 - 17.8
Gams/llosses) recognised in other
comprehensive mcome 51 0.8 (0.1} 5.8 7.0 {1.8i - 5.2

Actuarnal gaing of £5.8m (2017 — £5.2m} have been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The curaulative amount of actuanal losses
recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as at 31 December 2018 1s £42 4m (2017 - £48 2m).
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35 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES = "7, =
g) Assets and assumptions in funded plans

UK plars "L~dea JS pars furagea
208 2017 2018 217
fm fm £m £m

Fair value of plan assets
Eauities 235 618 - -
Bonds 93.7 918 47.3 471
Gits 131.8 1356 - -
Diversified growth funa 399 - - -
Cash and net current assels 207 320 - -
Total 309.6 321.2 47.3 471
Actua’ return on plan asse:s (5.3} 2372 (2.2} 4T

Tre UK Plan's assets are nvested in pocled funds, which a-¢ invested exclusive y withir instraments with quoted market prices in an active market,
with the excepton of te Plan's holdings in msurance annuity policies, valued at £6.0m (2017 - £6 7m). The value of the invested assets has neen
rmeasured at bid value and the value of the insurance annuity policies has been set equal to the value of the corresponding obligations

The Plan's equ ties are broadly split equally between UK and overseas companies. The UK equitcs are passively iInvested i line with the FTSE

All Share Index and the overseas eguities are passively nvested in ling with the FTSE World ex UK GBP Hedgen Index Tnerefore, the Plan is exposed
© a typcal breakdown of industries within those equity ndices. The Plan’s bonds are actively invested in investment grade UK corporate bonds, and
are exposed to a fairy typical range of UK businesses. The majority of the Plan’s giits are passively invested in a range of UK index-linked governmant
wonds, with the remainder actively invested in a range of swap instruments linked to mavements in government hond prices. The risks associated with
the Plan’s bond and gitt Investrments are largely offset by corresponding risks present wthin the pricing of the Plan's benefit obligations. The diversified
growth “und is an inves:ment in Pyrford's absolute return fund. This fund 1s conrnosed of positions in a range of assets, incluaing bonds and equities
These positions vary over time according o Pyford’s views The fund looks to generate equity-hke returns, with reduced volatility, whiist also providing
diversification benefits to the Plan's other investments.

The UK Plan does not irvest directly 1n property occupied by the Company or in financial secunties issuad by the Company

LK pans funded US plans funded

2018 2017 2008 2017
Major assumptions (per annum %)
Inflation 3.20% 310% N/A MN/A
Increase in salaries N/A N/A N/A N/A
Increase in pensions 3.10% 3.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Ircrease In deferred pensions 3.20% 310% 0.00% 0.00%
Rate used to discount plan habilit'es 2.90% 2.10%, 4.20% 350%
Li*e expactancy of a malo aged 65 at the year-end 218 219 20.0 207
Life expectancy of a male aged 65, 20 years after the year-end 23.2 23.3 217 223

The methodelogy used for determining the discount rate and inflaton rate, used In measuring the UK retirernent henefit scheme, have been updated
1IN 2018 1n ine with developing market practice foliowing actuanal advice, which do rot have a significart impact on the Financial Statements Benefits
under the US funded plans are not inked to inflation.

The UK Plan retirement benefit obligation 1s discounted at a rate set by reference to marker yields at the end of the reporting periad on high guahty
corporate bords. Estimation 1s required when setiing the criteria for bonds 1o be included in the podulation frore which the yield curve is deriven

The most significant cneria considered for the selection of bonds inciude the issue size of the corporate bonds, quaity of the bonds and the
identification of outliers which are excluded. Tne assumption for estimating future Retail Prices Index (RPI inflation s based on the difference in
yields on fixed-interest and index-linked gilts. Demographic assumptions are set broadly in line with the mast recent actuarial valuation of the UK Plan.
The mertality assumption 1s 105% of standard mortaiity tables with an allowance for future improvements “n line witk the CMI 2017 core projections,
with a long-te*m annual rate of improvement of 1.25% for males and for females.
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

For the UK Plan. tne estimated impact en the plan surplus at 31 December 2018 for changes in assumptions 1s as follows:

Decroase n

piar sdrplus

Em

0.5% decrease in the discount rate 21.0
One-year increase . life expectancy 10
0.5% ingrease in nflation 13.0

These sensitivities, which factor in inflationary capping, have been calculated to show the rrovermnent in tne surp.us, including alowance for an increase
16 the value of nsured annuity assets, but assuming no other changes n assets as at 31 December 2018, This 1s unlikely in practice — for example,
a change ir discount rate 15 unhikely to occur withoul any movement in the value of the assets held by the Plan

h} Other post-retirement liabilities

This balance comprises an unfunded German pens-on plan of £3.6m 12017 — £3 7m), untunded closed pension and post-retirement hoatthcare pians
i the USA of £0 4 (2017 — £6.4m), a provis.on for post-retirernent payments in France of £2.9m (2017 ~ £3.4m! and £0.3m for postretrement
paymients in Thaland (2017 - Immateraf).

The closed pension and post-retrement healthcare plans in the US have been valued on & Projected Unit Method using a discount rate of 4.2%; and
3.5% respectively (2017 - 3.5% and 3.5%). No partcipants were eligible for medical benefits under the healthcare plan in 2018 The German plan has
peen subject to formal acluaral valuation on a Projected Unit Method wath the following assumptions. discount rate 2.1%, salary growth 0.0% and
pension increase 1.8% (2017 - 1.8%, 0 0% and 1.6%). In France, the provision anses from a legal obligation to make payments to retrees in the first
two years post-retirement. Hence, it is not subject 1o discounting to the same extent as the other longer-term post-retirement labilites. The Thailand
plan has been subject te a formal actuanal valuation on a Projcoted Unit Method with the following assumptions: discount rate 3.19%, inflation rate

2 75%., salary growth 6%

36, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and
relability Vanious Group undertakings are parties to iegal actions or claims whicn arise in the ordinary course of business, some of which coula be
for substantiai amounts. in May 2015, Senior Aerospace Ketema was named as co-defendant in a putative class action lawsuit and a related lawsuit
alleging property damage fiied against Ametck, Inc. In the USA. Subsequently, Servar Aerospace Ketema was naned as a co-defendantina number
of similar lawsuits filed by additional plaintiffs Each of the lawsuits clam that Ametek had polluted the groundwater dunng its tenure as owners of
the site where Senior Aerospace Ketema 1s currently located, allegealy causing harm to neighbouring properties and/or creating health nisks. On

16 November 2017, the European Commission published its preliminary decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's Controlled Foreign
Company legislation, finding that the legislation is in breach of the EU State Aid rules  Like many other multinational groups that have acted in
accordance with this UK legisiation, the Group may be affected by the fina: outcome of this investigation. While the outcome of some of these
matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the Directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing

for provisions already made where appropriate, to result in significant ioss to the Group.

37 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 15 February 2019, the Group sold its Flexonics operating company in France, Senior Flexonics Blois SAS {"Blois”). Tne sale erables management
to have greater focus on opportunities In Its core actvities and to deploy capital in other parts of the Group wath higher returs. For tie financial year
ended 31 December 2018, Blois external revenue was £19 6rm and it incurred an operating 1088 of £0.9m

The financial effect of this transaction 15 being processed Currently, the loss on disposal 1s estimated 10 be n the range of £6m to £8m, after

<aking into account the fair value of nct assets disposed and an initial estmate of the costs of disposal offset by an initial cash corsideration and the
previously recorded foreign cxchange gain that will be recycled to the Consoiidated Income Statement. The actual loss on disposal is subject to charge
from this estimate as costs of disposal are incurred and deferred corsideration recevad. This ene off charge will be presented separatcly as an
adjusting itern in the Consolidated Income Statement for the year ending 31 Decermber 2019.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 Decerrber 20018

Year ended Year enaec
2018 207
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
investment in subsicdaries 40 259.9 2599
Property, plant ana equipmert 4 0.2 03
Other intangible assets 39 0.3 03
Debtors amounts due after morg tnan one year a2 28.0 289
Persion surplus assct B 52 309 194
Total non-current asssts o 319.3 3083
Current assets
Debrtors: amounts due within one year 42 86.2 1226
Cash at bank and in hand 49 1.9 -
Current tax 51 1.6 -
Total current assets 837 1226
Total assets 409.0 4314
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other creditors 44 126.8 74.0
Borrowings o 43 2.5 608
Total creditors: amourits falling due witnin one year 129.3 1348
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one yéar 7
Borrowings 13 129.7 103.0
Deferred tex hability 81 48 79
Total creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 134.5 1069
Total liabilities 263.8 240.7
Net assets 145.2 190.7
Capital and reserves
Issued share capital a5 41.9 19
Share premiutm account 14.8 148
Cquity reserve 57 39
Hedging and translation reserve 46 {0.3} {03
Profit and loss account 47 91.1 1315
QOwn shares o 48 (8.0} 1
Total shareholders’ funds 145.2 1907

The Financial Staterments of Senicr ple (registered number 282772) were approved by the Board of Directors and autherised for 1ssue on

1 March 2019 They were signed on its behalf by

DAVID SQUIRES BINDI FOYLE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

oo - ‘Cﬁ‘:” s oAl Y fale
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN tQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Hedying

Issued Srare Aned Profin and

share  pramum Fowty  translauon loss e fotal

capital arcrunt reserye reserve FTCOT shares ~quily

MNotas £m £ £m £ frm fn £

Balance at 1 January 2017 41.9 14.8 30 03 120.0 15} 1779
Profic for the year 2017 - - - ~ 31.9 - 319
Actuanat gains on defined benelit pension scnemes - - - ~ 70 - 70
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - ~ 389 - 36.9
Share based paymeont charge - - 19 - - 19
Furchase of shares held by employee benefit rust 48 - - ~ - - omn (0.1)
Use of shares held by ernployee benefit trust 48 - - - - 0.5 05 -
Transfer to profit and loss account 47 - - 11.Q1 - 1.0 - -
Dividends paid 1 - - - - (27.9) - (27.9)
Balance at 31 December 2017 M9 148 39 0 3} 131.5 on 1907
Loss for the year 2018 - - - - (16.4) - (16.4}
Actuanal gans on defined bonefit pension schemes - - - - 5.1 - 51
Tax relating 1o components of other comprehens ve
Incoms - - - - {0.8) - {0.8)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - {12.1) - {12.1}
Share-based payment charge - - 34 - - - 34
Purchase of shares held by employee benefit trust 48 - - - - - (7.2 (7.2}
Use of shares held by employee benefit trust 43 - - - - ©.3) 0.3 -
Transler to profit and loss account 47 - - (1.6 - 1.6 - -
Dividends pa 11 - - - - {29.6) - (29.6)
Balance at 31 December 2018 419 14.8 57 {0.3} 91.1 (8.0} 1462
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting {Company only)

The Company is incorparated in England and Wales under the Comparies Act The Company meets the definitien of a qualifying entity under
FRS 100 (Finarcial Reporting Standard 100} 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Counc | The Fiancial Statements have been preparea in accordance

with FRS 107 {Financial Reporting Standard 107 Reduced Disclosure Framewsork).

As permitted by FRS 101. the Company has taker advantaye of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation 1o share-based
cayments, fimancial Instruments, fa r value measuremerts, capital management, presentation of a cash flow statement ard cisclosure of related

oarty transactions

The Financia Statements have beer prenared on the historica. cost and goirg concern basis. The prmcipal accounting policies adoptes are the same
as those set out In Note 2 1o the Consaolidated Financial Statements, except n respect of mvestmrents in subsidianes, which are stated at cost less,

where appropriate, provis ons for impairment

39. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended Year ended

2018 2017
Computer Computer
software software
£m fm
Cost
At January 08 0.8
Additions 01 -
At 31 December 0.9 08
Amortisation
At 1 January 0.5 04
Charge for the year LA
At 31 December 0.6 05
Carrying amount at 31 December 0.3 03

40. INVESTMENTS N SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the significant investments in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation, and proport.on of ownership interest 1s gven

on pages 123 10 125,

Year ended Year ended

2018 2017
£m fm
At 1.January 2599 259.9
Additional investment i subsidianes 3 - —_
At 31 December 259.9 2593
41. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
Plant and Flar: and
equipment aguipment
£m £
Cost
At 1 January 08 0.8
Additions - -
Disposals 0.1 -
At 31 December 0.7 oe
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 05 04
Charge for the year 01 01
Eliminated an Disposals (0.7) -
At 31 December 05 0.5
Carrying amount at 31 December 0.2 0.3
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. BEBTORS
Debtors at 31 Decamber compnse the following:
Year ended Year ended
2018 017
£m Em
Debtors. amounts due more than one year
Due from subsidanes 280 285
28.0 28.9
Debtors” amounis due w-th n oneg year
Value addod tax 0.2 a1
Prepayments and accrued income 0.7 03
Due fromi subsid arfes 85.3 1222
86.2 122.6
Tatal debtors 1142 15156

The Directors consder that the carrying amount of debtors approximates ta therr fair value, The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date

15 the fair value of eack cass of debtor above. The Company does not ho'd any collateral as security,

The carrying amaounts due from subsidiaries approximaces to ther fair value. There are no past due or impared debtor balances {201/ - £nil)

As at 31 December 2018, debtors due in more than one year consist of £2.8m (2617 - £1.8m) due in accordance with the vesting perods of share-
based payments and £25 2mi (£24 8t of Ioans 1o subsdianes, due to mature after 2019 at an mierest rale based on a 1% margin sbove CURIBOR
As at 31 December 2017, loars to subsidiaries also contained £2.2m due to mature after 2019 at an interest rate of 6.9%

43. BORROWINGS

Year ended Year ended
2018 201/
£m Erm
Bank overdrafts - 53
RBank loans 21 44
Other loans 1830 1541
132.2 163.9
T1e borrowings are repayable as foliows
On demand ar within one vear 2.5 608
in the second year 15.6 S0
in the third to fifth years inclusive 15.2 29.0
Atter five years 98.9 B3SO0
132.2 183.8
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months
{shown urder current llabilities) o L (2.5) 160.8)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 129.7 103.0
Analysis of borrowings by currency
31 Decernber 2018
Pound us
Total Sterling Euros Dofiars Others
£m 'm £m £m £m
Bank overdrafts - - - - -
Bank loans 21 21 - - -
Other loans 13¢.1 26.3 25.2 78.0 -
132.2 29.0 25,2 78.0 -
31 December 2017
Pound us
Tota Stering Euros Dollars Others
fm “m fm £m £y
Bank overdrafts 53 53 - -
Bank loans 44 4.4 - - -
Other loans 1541 - 247 1294 -
163.8 9.7 247 129 4 -
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43 BORROWINGS .77
The weighted average incerest rates pad veere as ‘ollows

Yaar ended Year ended

2018 2007

% %,

Bank loans and overdrafts 2.47 162
Other Ioans 3.37 4/8

Bank loans and overdrafts of £2.1m {207/ - £3 7m are arranged at “'cating rates, thus exposing the Company to cash flow interest -ate nsk Ciner
borrowings ae mainly arrangea at f-xed interest rates and expose the Company to farr value interest rate nsk No interest -ale swaps were taken out

N 2017 or 2018.

The Drectors estimate the far value of the Corrpany’s borrowings to be as follows.

Year ended Yexar ended
2018 201/
£m fn
Bank loans and overdrafts 21 g7
Other loans 1315 157.0
133.6 186.7
44, TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS
Trade and other credtors at 31 December compnse the folowing'
Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
£m Im
Creditors' amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors 07 02
Social secunty and PAYE 0.2 0.1
Other creditors and accruals 55 1.9
Foreign currency derivatives - 02
Due to sups.diaries 7 o : B 1204 686
Total trade ard other creditors 126.8 740
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade creditors approximates to their far value
45, ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
Year ended ‘Year ended
2018 20/
£m [
Issued and fully paid
419.4 milhon ordirary snares of 10p each 419 41.9

At 31 December 2017, the 1ssued and fully paid up share capital was 419.4 mikion ordinary shares of 10p each.
(2017 — 1,832 shares).

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry ro nght to fxed income.

No shares were issued during 2018
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NOTES TC THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. HEDGING AND TRANSLATION RESERVES

Hedging Translation Hedging Translation

reserve reserve Total reserve reserve Tora

Year endad Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

2018 2318 2018 201/ Zaty 2017

fm Em £fm fro fm frr

Balance at 1 January and 31 December - {0,3) {0.3) 03 03
47. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Year ended Year ended

2018 201/

Em £

Balarce at 1 January 1315 1200

Dividends paid (29.8) 127.9)

{LossHprofit for the year {16.4} 31.9

Pension actuanal gain 51 /0

Trarsfer from equity reserve 16 1.0

Transfer from own share reserve {0.3) 10.5)

Tax on deductible temporary differences (0.8} -

Balance at 31 Decermber 911 13156

£7.5m (2017

£7 5my) of the Company's retained earnings are considered undistributable.

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presentsd its own Statenent of Comprehensive Income, including

the Incame Statemeant and related Notes.

48. OWN SHARES

Year ended Year ondad

2018 2007

£m m

Balance at 1 January (1.1} (15
Transfer to profit and loss account 0.3 05
Purchase of new shares (7.2) on
Balance at 31 December (8.0} (1.1

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares purchased in the market and held by the Senior plc Employee Benelit Trust te satisfy optiors

under the Group's share option schemes see Nole 34}

The norminal value of each share 1s £0.1 {2017 - £0.1) The total number of treasury shares at 31 Deceriber 2018 15 2.673,409 {2017 - 401,361}

49. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Year ented Year ended
2018 2017
£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents comprise.
Cash 18 _
Rank averdrafts ) e - - B3
Total 19 5 3}

Cash at bank and in hand held by the Corrpany (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the Balance Sheet) compnse cash at
bank and other short term highly lquid iInvestments with a matunty of three -nonths or less The Directors consider that the carrying amount of cash

and casn equivalents approximate to their face value
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50. DOPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company as lessee

Year ended Yoar ended

018 20'7

£m Er

Minimum lease payments unde- operating -eases recognised in the Income Statement for the year 0.1 01

At 31 December, the Compary had outstanding commitmerts for fature minirmum lease payments under non-canceilable operating leases, which fail
due as fol ows.

Year ended Year enced

2018 2017

£m fn

Within one year 0.2 [eR
In the second to fiftk vears inclusive 0.9 05
Atter five years ) ) ) ) 0.8 o7
19 13

As at “he date of approving the accounts, the Company has guarantead £0 5m (2017 — £1 Omi} of annual lease commitmerts of certan current and
previous subsidiary entities,

51. TAX BALANCE SHEEY
Current tax

The current tax recervable of £1.6m (2017 - £nil] includes excess tax paid to tax authorities that is expected to be recovered within 12 menths by
way of offset against future tax habilites or refund

Deferred tax liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised by the Company and movements thereon dunng the current and pr or
reperting peried:

Accelerated Share-

tax Relirement based
deprociaton benefits NaYMonts Totai
fm Em fm rm
At 1 Januvary 2017 {o3vd] 07 Q.1 04
Charge/lcredit) to Income _ o 26 0.1 ) 25
At 1 January 2018 (0.2) 33 0.2} 29
Chargeficredit} to income 0.1 1.1 (0.1} 11
Chargefic-edit} to other comprehensive income ) 7 i - 0.8 - 0.8
As at 31 December 2018 {0.1] 52 {0.3) 4.8

Deferred 1ax assets and liabiities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable night to do so The following 1s the analysis of the deferred
tax balances fafter offset) for firancial reporting purposes:

Year ended Year cnded

2018 207

£m £m

Deferred tax liabilities 4.8 29

At the Balance Sheet date, the Company has unused capital losses of £15.6 (2017 - £15.6m) available for offset against future capital gains.
No deferred tax asset has been recogrised as no such capdtal gains are anticipated to anse in the foreseeable future.

52 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
The Company's nefined benefit schemes are shown in Note 35 1n the "UK plans funded” column

53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The 'emuneraton of the Drectors ang Servor Managers, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out in the Remuneration Report
on pages 63 to 72.

The Group has a relatea party relatonstip with a number of persion schemes Transactions between the Group ana these pension schemes are
disclosed in Note 35

Bloom Energy Corporation; is a related party of the Group as Susan Brennan, an independent non-executive Directar of the Group, is its Executive
Vice-President and Chief Operations Officer. In 2018, the Group sold £1.8m {2017 — £2.4m) of components to Bloom Energy Corporation. The gross
receivable position as at 31 December 2018 was £0.2m 131 December 2017 - £0.5m}.

54. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has a number of share-based payment arrangements that existed during 2018, the detalls of which can be fourd n Note 34

For the savings-related share aption plan, no shares were exercised in 2018 or 2017, The options outstanding at 31 Decerber 2018 had an exercise
price of 207.20p, 222.00p and 335 80p per share, and a weighted average remaming contractual life of 1.5 years. The options cutstanding at
31 Decernber 2017 had exercise prices of 207 20p. 222 00p and 335 80p per share, and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 5 yaars

Share-based payment costs refating to subsidianes are recharged from the Company.
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FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

2018 201/ 2016 008 2011
Group income statement £m £ £m £m £
Revenue
Canunuing operations 1,082.1 1.0234 917.0 8485 820.8
Adjusted operating profit
Continuing operations 91.6 B2 8 8b 6 1078 me
Amarusation of intangible assets from acquisitions {15.4) 7.1 {19.8) (i2.2} {7.2}
Loss on sale and wnte down of fixed assets - - - (1.5} -
Googwillimpairment - - - 118.8) 9.4)
Impairment of assets held for sale -~ - - (1.8 -
Acquisition costs ~ - 1.2} 10.6)
Wite-down of L85 inventory -~ - - - {18
Restructunng costs -~ - - - 15}
UK Guaranteed Minimum Pensions 2.4) - - - -
US class action lawsuits (3.9) - - - -
Excepuonal pension charge ~ = - - (1.5}
Operating profit - 69.9 65.6 658 723 896
Finance costs, net of investment income (8.8} 9.3 {107} 8.0 81
Ne: finance incomelicost) of retrement berefits 0.2 {02 0.2 0.5} 09
Loss on disposal - (38 - - =
Profit befare tax 61.3 52.2 55.5 63.8 808
Tax 1.2 81 {10.1 (15 2} (117.1)
Profit for the year 501 60.3 454 485 635
Depreciation and amortisation of intangibles 56.9 579 54.0 40.0 321
Gross capital expenditure {including finance lease assets) 56.3 54 8 52.8 48 6 311
Basic earnings per share 11.99p 14.39p 10.84p 11.5%9p 15.25p
Diluted earnings per share 11.83p 14 30p 10 83p 11.47p 15 06p
Adjusted earnings per share 16.08p 14.39p 14.37p 18.98p 19.84p
Dividends in respect of years — per share 7.42p 6.95p 6.57p B 20p 5.63p

- value 30.9 290 27.5 260 235
Group Balance Sheet
Non-current assets 662.0 6243 6847.0 5724 466.4
Net current asseis 131.0 66.0 94.0 98.3 84.4
Non-current labilities {224.8) 158.7) (240.5) 1239.8) 139 2)
Net assels 568.2 5316 500.5 4309 411.6
Net borrowings (153.0) {1655.3) (198.1; 11594 6) {(105.00
Group cash flow
Net cash from operating activities 100.7 1109 1003 59.4 388
Interest received 0.4 0.4 0.2 02 [oN]
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.5 18 o] 07 0.2
Purchase of property, plart and eguipment  cash (54.6) 523 s 45.4) (7961
Parchase of intangible assets 1.7} (2.5} 2.0 {2.2) (1.5
Free cash flow 453 58.3 48.5 517 5178
Dividends paid (29.6) (279) {26 .4) {24.3) {21 9)
Acquisitions less disposals - 0.4 1.3 1103.9} (60.1)
Loan to joint venture 05 02 05 0.1} 1.
Share 1ssucs - - - - 1.1
Purchase of shares held oy employec benefit trust (2.2} nmn (11} {09} 07
{Decrease)/increase in toans (2.4} 37.1) {19.5) 817 (18.4}
Lecrease in finance lcases (0.3} _oB 08 0.6) (4}
Increase/ldecreasel in cash and cash equivalents 63 (6.6} 25 36 44.7}
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GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Country of
Operating Companies Business Units Locations Incorperation Registered Office
Semor UK Limited Senior Asrospace Bird Bellows  Congletor Ergland & Wales 53/61 High Streer,

Lymington Precision
Engineers Co Limited

Senor F.exonics Brasil Lida

Senior Fiexonics Crzech s 1.0

Serior Aerospace krmeto SAS

Senior Calorstat SAS

Sen or Flexonics GmbH

Senior India Private Limited

Senior Aerospace BWT

Serior Flexonics Crumiin
Sericr Aerospace Weston
Seniar Aerospace Therma,
Engineering

Seriar Flexonics Lymington

Senior Flexoies Sace Paulo

" Sac Paulo, Braal

Macclesfigla

Crumiin
Colne
Royston

Lymington Englard & Wales

Brazii

Senior Flexonics Czech

Senior Aerospace Ermeto

Senior Aerospace Calorstat

Senior Flexonics Kassel

Senior Flexonics New Delhi

Sermor Asrospace Bosman BV,

Serior Operations (Canada)
Lirmited

Senior Acrospace Bosman

Senior Flexonics Canaca

Senior Flexonics SA PEy) Limited  Senier Flexonics Cape Town

Senior Operations LLC

Steico Industries, Inc.

Senior Aerospace Absolute
Manufacturing

Roticrdam,

Olomeuc, Czech Republic

Czech Republic

Blois, France Frarce
Dourdan, Frarce France
Kassel, Germany Germany
New Delhi, India Incha

Rickmansworth, Hertfardshire,

W3 1RH, UK

59/61 High Street,

Rickmansworth, Hertfordshire,

WD3 1RH, UK

Praca Faustno Roncoron 7,

Drstrito Industna:, CEP —
18 147 -000 — Aracanguama,
Sao Paulo, Brastl

Olomoue, Pramyslova 733/9,

postcode 779 00

Czech Republic

7 A Euro Vai de Lore,

8 rue du Clos Thomas,
41330 Fasse, France

Z |. La Gaudree, 11 rue des
Soufflets, 91410, Dourdan,
France

Fransfurter Strasse 199,
34121 Kassel, Germany
Ath, Floor, Rectangle Na.l,
Commercial Complex D-4,
Saket-New Delhi-110017, India

Nethertands
Netrherlands

Brampton, Ontario Canada

Cape Town, South Africa

South Africa
Arlingten, USA
Washingion

Senior Aerospace AMT

Senior Ae'rospa_ce Jet Products
Senior Aerospace Ketema
Senior Acrospace Metal Bellows

Senior Aerospace Damar
Senior Agrospace SSP

Arlington,
Washington

San Diego, Californa
El Cajon, Califorria

Sharon,
Massachusetts
Monroe, Washington
Burban<, Calformia

Senior Aerospace Connecticus
Senior Flexanics Bartlett
Somor Flexories GA

Semar Flexonics Pathway

Semor Aerospace Steico
Industries

Enfisld, Connecticut
Bartlett, llinols i
Franklin, Wisconsin
New Braunfels, Texas
& Maine, Delaware

" Oceanside, California USA
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Bergen 6, 2993 LR Barendrecht,

Netherlands

134 Nelson Street Weast,
Brampton, Ontario, L6X 1C9,
Carada

11 Thor Circe, Viking Place,
Thornton, Cape Town, 7460,
South Africa

Corporaton Trust Center,
1209 Orange Street,
Wilmirgton, DE 19801, USA

818 West Seventh 5t ,Ste.
930, Los Angeles, CA 90017
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ADDITICNAL INFORNVATION

GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Operating Companies

Business Units Locations

Country of
incerporation

Registered Office

Senior Acrospace
(I nhailand) Lirmited

Upeca Aerotech Sdn Bhd

Upeca Flowtech Sdn Bnd

Upeca Engmnearing {Tanpn}
CoLtd

Flexgnics Limited

Lyrmington Pracision Engineering
{LPE} Lirmted

Senor Aerospace Limited
Senior Americas One Limited
Seror Amencas Two Limited
Senior Automotive Limited
Atlas Composites Limted

Senor Frgineering
Investments Limited

Semor Five Limited

Senior Finance Four Umited
Senor Finance Six Limited
Seniar Finance Soven Limited
Senior Flexorucs Limited
Senior Trustee Limited

Semior Aerospace Tharand Chonburi, Thalland

Semor Aerospace Upcca Selangor, Malaysia

Selangor, Malaysia

Senior Flexonics Upeca

Senigr Flexonics Upeca (Chunat Tranjin, China
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Thalland

Malaysia

Malaysia

" Ching

" England & YWales

78%/115-116 Mool

Pinthong Industnal Estaie,
Sainhongkor Lamchabang
Road, Tambol Nhongkham,
Amphar Srracha, Chom Bun
Province 20230, Thailand

10th Hoor, Menara Hap Seng.
No 1&3. Jalan P Ramlee,
50250 W.P - Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia

10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng,
No 1&3, Jalan P Ramiec,
50250 W P - Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia

No. 12 Quanhe Road, Wu Oing
Development Area,

Tiarjin 301700, PR China
59/61 High Swrest,
Rickmansworth, Hertfordshire,
WD3 1RH, UK



Operating Companies

Business Units

Locations

Country of
Incorporation

Registered Office

Serior France SAS

Ser'or Investments
{Deutschland) GmbH
Ser or Operations GmbH
Senor Hodings LLC

Serior Aerospace GmbH
Senior Investments GmbH
Senior IP GmbH

Flexonics, Inc
Senior Investments LLC
Serior US Holdings Inc

Upeca Engineering Sdr Bhd

Upeca Technalogies Sdr Bhd —

Upeca VYalve Automation Sdr Bhd

France

Germany

USA

Switzerland

usa

Malaysia

Malaysia

Malaysia

Zila Gaudres, Rue acs
Soutf ets, F-91410 Douraan,
France

Frankfurter Strasse 1399,
34121 Kassel, Gernany

"Corporation Trust Center, 1200

Crange Street, Wimirgton,
DE 19801, USA

Fronwagplatz 10, CH-8200.

Schafthausen, Switzerand

Corporaton Trust Center, 1209

QOrange Street, Wilmington,
OE 19801 USA

£.03, 8th Floor, Plaza First
Matiomwide, 1681, Jalan Tun
H.S. Lee, 50000 Kuala Lumpur,
hMalaysia

10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng,
No 1&3, Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250
W P - Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
8 03, 8th Moor, Plaza First
Nationwide, 187, Jalan Tun

HS Lee, 50000 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia

Thermal Engineerng Halding Limited and Thermal Engineenng Limited were wound up on 12 February 2019, the business cortinues to trade as a

business unit of Senior UK Limited.

Senior Aerospace and Flexonics Business Units in Mexico are operated by a third party under contract manufactunng agreements

The Group has a 49% irterest in Serior Flexonics Technologies (Wuhan Limited, a jointly contrellea entity ‘ncorporated in China

Senior Flexonics Blois SAS was sold on 15 February 2019,

All Group undertakings are wholly and directty owned by subsidiary undertakings of Serior ple, and in every case the principal country of operation

is the country of incorparation.

SEMIQR 71 C ARMUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2018 128

LHOd3H 21931vH1S

JINYNUIAOD

SINIWILVLS TVISNVNE

NOLLYIANHOANE TYNOHIO0Y I



ACDITWGNAL INFORMIAT O

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANALYS!IS OF SHAREHOLDERS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Snarehrlders Dharenolders Issoed shares Issued shares

Mumber ko) SAalhors G
By category
Corporate bodies 739 28.94 410.39 9785
Other shareholders 1,815 7106 9.03 215
2,554 100.00 419.42 100.00
By range of holdings
1-24,999 7181 8461 7.72 1.84
25,000 - 48,999 8b 3.33 3.01 072
50,000 - 249,999 129 505 1525 364
250,000 - 499,999 58 2.27 2012 480
500,000 - 999,999 37 145 26,60 632
1,000,000 - and over 34 3.29 346.82 82469
2,564 100.00 419.42 100.00

The number of shares in1ssue at 31 Decamber 2018 was 419,418,082,

Share Registrars

All shareholder records are maintained by Equiniti and all correspondence should be addressed to the Registrar, Senior ple at the Equinit address
shown on the inside back cover, cucting the reference number starting with 0228 detaled on your dividend vouchers. The registrar should be notified
regarding changes to name of address, loss of share certificate, or request for, or change 1o, a dividend mandate.

Equintti provides a range of shareholder information on-line Shareholders can check their holdings, update details and obtain practical help on
transfernng shares at: www. shareview.co uk.

Instead of paymat by post 1o your registared addrass, dividends can be pand through the BACS system direct inio a UK bank or building socety
account, with the dividend voucher stil sent to your registered address. If you wish to use this faciity and have not previously applied, then please
apply direct to Equiniti and request a daidend mandate form. Sharcholders who are currently recenang duplcate sets of Company malings, as 2
resu't of any inconsistency in name or address details, shodld wnte direct to Eguinin sg holdings can be combined, if appropriate

CREST Proxy Voting

CREST members who wish 1o appoint a proxy or prox es through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 26 April 2019 and any adjournment(si thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST marnual. Further details refating
to voung via CREST may be found on the 2019 AGM Notice of Mecting and Form ot Proxy
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2019 FINANCIAL CALENDAR

THEKEY EVENTS FOR SENIOR ARE SET QUT BELOW
Sorme of the dates are indicative only and may be sub ect to change

Monday 4 March
Arnouncemert of the 2018 Final Results

Publication of the Anrual Report & Accounts 2013 at
WAV SENIOPIC.COM:

Friday 15 March
Publication of the Annual Report 2018

Friday 26 April
Annual General Meeting

Thursday 2 May
Shares ex-dividend for tne 2018 final dividend

Friday 3 May
Record Date for shareholders on register to recoive
2018 final d'wvidend.

OFFICERS AND ADVISERS

SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE

Andrew Bodenham

Senior plc

59/61 High Street, Rickmansworth, Hertfordshire WD3 1RH

Registered in England and Vales No. Q0282772

REGISTRARS
Equiniti
Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN939 6DA

AUDITOR
KPMG LLP
15 Canada Squars, London £14 5GL

SHAREGIFT

It you have only a small numnber of shares which would cost more

for you w0 sell than they are worth, you may wish to consider donating
them to the charity ShareGift (Registered Charity 10562686) which
specialises in accepting such shares as donations. The ShareGift

Transfer Form rmay be obtained from Eguiniti, the Company’s Registrars,

at www shareview.co uk There are no implications for Capital Gans
Tax purposes (ho gan or loss) on gifts of shares to chanty and it 1s also
possible to obtam income tax relief. Further information atout ShareGift
may be obtaned on 020 7930 3737 or from www.ShareGift org

Dresigned by CONRAN DESIGN GROUP
Printad by Park Communications

Friday 31 May
Payment of e 2018 firal dividend.

Monday 5 August
Announcerment of the 2019 Intenm Resuls

Thursday 31 October
Sharas ex-d'v dend far the 2019 ntenm d viderd

Friday 1 November
Record Date for sharcholders on register to receive
2019 intenr dividend.

Friday 29 November
Payment of the 2019 intenm dividend

SOLICITORS
Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row, London ECTY 8YY

PRINCIPAL UK CLEARING BANKERS
| loyds Bank plc
25 Gresharm Street, London EC2V 7HN

FINANCIAL ADVISERS
Lazards & Co., Limned
50 Stratton Strect, London W1J BLL

STOCKBROKERS

Jetferies International L mited
Vinthers Place

68 Upper Tharnes Street
London EC4V 3BJ
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